WASHOE COUNTY

Integrity =~ Communication  Service
www.washoecounty.us

STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 8, 2019

DATE: Tuesday, January 8, 2019
TO: Board of County Commissioners

FROM: Nancy Parent, Washoe County Clerk
784-7287, nparent@washoecounty.us
THROUGH: Nancy Parent, Washoe County Clerk

SUBJECT: Acknowledge the communications and reports received by the Clerk on
behalf of the Board of County Commissioners.

SUMMARY

This matter is brought to the Board’s attention to publicly set forth on the record various
communications and reports received by the Clerk on behalf of the Board of County
Commissioners.

Washoe County Strategic Objective supported by this item:
Regional and Community Leadership

PREVIOUS ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND
None.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDATION

Acknowledge the communications and reports received by the Clerk on behalf of the
Board of County Commissioners.

POSSIBLE MOTION

“Move to acknowledge of the communications and reports received by the Clerk on
behalf of the Board of County Commissioners.

AGENDA ITEM #


http://www.washoecounty.us/

COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS
January 08, 2019

The following communications and reports were received, duly noted, and
ordered placed on file with the Clerk:

COMMUNICATIONS:

A. Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources, to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 18, 2018,
requesting the County levy a special assessment in the amount of $2,000 on all
taxable property within the confines of the Tracy Segment Groundwater Basin for
Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

B. Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 23, 2018,
requesting the Board levy a special assessment in the amount of $2,500 on all
taxable property within the confines of the Pleasant Valley Groundwater Basin for
Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

C. Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 23, 2018,
requesting the Board levy a special assessment in the amount of $2,000 on all
taxable property within the confines of the Truckee Canyon Segment
Groundwater Basin for Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

D. Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 23, 2018,
requesting the Board levy a special assessment in the amount of $3,000 on all
taxable property within the confines of the Spanish Springs Valley Groundwater
Basin for Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

E. Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 23, 2018,
requesting the Board levy a special assessment in the amount of $2,500 on all
taxable property within the confines of the Lemmon Valley Groundwater Basin
for Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

F. Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 30, 2018,
requesting the Board levy a special assessment in the amount of $2,500 on all
taxable property within the confines of the Truckee Meadows/Sun Valley
Groundwater Basin for Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.



Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County Commissioners, dated October 23, 2018,
saying a special assessment should not be levied on all taxable property within the
confines of the Cold Springs Valley Groundwater Basin for Fiscal Year July 1,
2019 to June 30, 2020.

Letter from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection to the Washoe
County Commissioners, dated October 31, 2018, regarding a 30 day proposed
action or request for public hearing related to a draft water pollution control
discharge permit for the Truckee Meadow Water Authority operations and
maintenance discharges (permit NV0024031).

Letter from the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources Division of
Water Resources to the Washoe County, dated November 2, 2018, notifying a
permit to appropriate waters of the State of Nevada requires a Proof of Beneficial
Use and Cultural Map on or before October 26, 2018.

Letter from the Office of the Washoe County Treasurer to the Washoe County
Commissioners, dated November 19, 2018, stating the Washoe County District
Board of Health determined at their October 25, 2018 meeting the Environmental
Oversight Trust account was no longer needed and funds in the amount of
$108,426.11 were deposited into the Washoe County’s main bank account and
accounted for in the Washoe County Health fund Environmental Health account
172400-485300. The Washoe County Health District Environmental Oversight
Bank account was closed on November 9, 2018.

MONTHLY STATEMENTS:

Office of the Washoe County Treasurer, Monthly Statement for Month Ending
October 31, 2018.

Office of the Washoe County Treasurer, Monthly Statement for Month Ending
November 30, 2018.

ANNUAL STATEMENTS:

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District, Financial Statements ending June 30,
2018.

Incline Village General Improvement District, Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018.

Regional Transportation Commission, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018.

Washoe County School District, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018.



o STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 « Fax (775) 684-2811

http://water.nv.gov
October 18, 2018

Washoe County Commissioners

P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520-0027

CERTIFIED MAIL: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 2363 25

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS § 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a
special assessment on all taxable property within the confines of the Tracy Segment Groundwater
Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020. The levy must be charged against each
taxable property in the subject hydrographic basin, as officially designated on March 1, 1978.

- The amount of $2,000.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for
supervision over the groundwater basin to include, but not limited to water level measurements,
crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections, intent to drill
card and well log review, associated data collection and management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate
necessary to support the proposed budget has been acted on by the County Commissioners and the
amount certified to the Assessor.

Sincerely,
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Jason King, P.E., State Engineer
Division of Water Resources
901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701

Dear Mr. King:

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the
supervision over the waters of the Tracy Segment Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1,
2019, to June 30, 2020, in the amount of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00), has been received by
WASHOE COUNTY in accordance with the provisions of NRS § 534.040.

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the

COUNTY COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY on the day of ,20__, and
the amount contained therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF WASHOE COUNTY.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK
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. . STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor e Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 ¢ Fax (775) 684-2811

http:/ /water.nv.gov
October 23, 201%

Washoe County Commissioners

P.0.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520-0027

CERTIFIED MAIL: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 2920 48

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS § 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a
special assessment on all taxable property within the confines of the Pleasant Valley Groundwater
Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020. The levy must be charged against each
taxable property in the subject hydrographic basin, as officially designated on March 1, 1978.

The amount of $2,500.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for
supervision over the groundwater basin to include, but not limited to special studies, water level
measurements, crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections,
intent to drill card and well log review, associated data collection and management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate
necessary to support the proposed budget has been acted on by the Washoe County Commissioners
and the amount certified to the Assessor.

Slncerely,

T < fe.

J ason King, P.E.
State Engineer
JK/aa
Enclosure




Jason King, P.E., State Engineer
Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada

Dear Mr. King:

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the
supervision over the waters of the Pleasant Valley Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1,
2019, to June 30, 2020, in the amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00), has
been received by Washoe County in accordance with the provisions of NRS § 534.040.

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the

WASHOE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS on the day of , 20__, and the amount
contained therein was certified to the WASHOE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK
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. . STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 ¢ Fax (775) 684-2811

http://water.nv.gov
October 23, 2018

Washoe County Commissioners

P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520-0027

CERTIFIED MAIL: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 3124 56

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS § 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a
special assessment on all taxable property within the confines of the Truckee Canyon Segment
Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020. The levy must be charged
against each taxable property in the subject hydrographic basin, as officially designated on March
1, 1978.

The amount of $2,000.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for
supervision over the groundwater basin to include, but not limited to water level measurements,
crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections, intent to drill
card and well log review, associated data collection and management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate
necessary to support the proposed budget has been acted on by the County Commissioners and the
amount certified to the Assessor.

Sincerely,

4
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Jason King, P.E.
State Engineer

JK/aa
Enclosure




Jason King, P.E., State Engineer
Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701

Dear Mr. King:

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the
supervision over the waters of the Truckee Canyon Segment Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year
July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020, in the amount of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00), has been
received by WASHOE COUNTY in accordance with the provisions of NRS § 534.040.

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the

COUNTY COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY on the day of ,20__,and
the amount contained therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF WASHOE COUNTY.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK
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. , STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor . Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 « Fax (775) 684-2811

http://water.nv.gov
October 23, 2018

Washoe County Commissioners

P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520-0027

CERTIFIED MAIL: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 3125 48

Ladies and Gentlemen;

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS § 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a
special assessment on all taxable property within the confines of the Spanish Springs Valley
Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020. The levy must be charged
against each taxable property in the subject hydrographic basin, as officially designated on March
10, 1975.

The amount of $3,000.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for
supervision over the groundwater basin to include, but not limited to water level measurements,
crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections, intent to drill
card and well log review, associated data collection and management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate

necessary to support the proposed budget has been acted on by the County Commissioners and the
amount certified to the Assessor.

Sincerely,

F—L e
Jason King, P.E.

State Engineer

JK/aa
Enclosure




Jason King, P.E., State Engineer
Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701

Dear Mr. King:

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the
supervision over the waters of the Spanish Springs Valley Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year
July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020, in the amount of Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00), has been
received by WASHOE COUNTY in accordance with the provisions of NRS § 534.040.

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the

COUNTY COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY on the day of ,20__, and
the amount contained therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF WASHOE COUNTY.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK
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STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
{775) 684-2800 » Fax (775) 684-2811

http://water.nv.gov
October 23, 2018

Washoe County Commissioners

P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520-0027

CERTIFIED MAIL: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 2919 42

Ladies and Gentlemen;

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS § 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a
special assessment on all taxable property within the confines of the Lemmon Valley Groundwater
Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020. The levy must be charged against each
taxable property in the subject hydrographic basin, as officially designated on July 14, 1971.

The amount of $2,500.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for
supervision over the groundwater basin to include, but not limited to water level measurements,
crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections, intent to drill
card and well log review, associated data collection and management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate
necessary to support the proposed budget has been acted on by the County Commissioners and the
amount certified to the Assessor.

Smce1ely,

’”““““"“ /< Fe

Jason King, P.E.
State Engineer

JK/aa
Enclosure




Jason King, P.E., State Engineer
Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701

Dear Mr. King:

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the
supervision over the waters of the Lemmon Valley Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1,
2019, to June 30, 2020, in the amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00), has
been received by WASHOE COUNTY in accordance with the provisions of NRS § 534.040.

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the

COUNTY COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY on the day of ,20  ,and
the amount contained therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF WASHOE COUNTY.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK
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STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 ° Fax (775) 684-2811

http://water.nv.gov
October 30, 2018

Washoe County Commissioners

P.O.Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520-0027

CERTIFIED MAIL: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 3696 41

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS § 534.040(2), it is respectfully requested that you levy a
special assessment on all taxable property within the confines of the Truckee Meadows/Sun Valley
Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020. The levy must be charged
against each taxable property in the subject hydrographic basin, as officially designated on March
1,1978..

The amount of $2,500.00 will be required for the payment of necessary expenses for
supervision over the groundwater basin to include, but not limited to water level measurements,
crop/pumpage inventories, field investigations, aquifer tests, well driller inspections, intent to drill
card and well log review, associated data collection and management.

We are enclosing a certificate to be signed and returned indicating that the assessment rate
necessary to support the proposed budget has been acted on by the County Commissioners and the
amount certified to the Assessor.

Sincerely,

acij AN
/b*’%"’“’“‘ ﬁ é‘.‘
Jason King, P.E.
State Engineer

JK/aa
Enclosure
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Jason King, P.E., State Engineer
Division of Water Resources

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701

Dear Mr. King:

I hereby certify that the State Engineer's budget for payment of necessary expenses for the
supervision over the waters of the Truckee Meadows/Sun Valley Groundwater Basin for the Fiscal
Year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020, in the amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
($2,500.00), has been received by WASHOE COUNTY in accordance with the provisions of NRS
§ 534.040.

The assessment rate necessary to support the proposed budget was acted upon by the

COUNTY COMMISSION OF WASHOE COUNTY on the day of ,20__, and
the amount contained therein was certified to the ASSESSOR OF WASHOE COUNTY.

Respectfully submitted,

COUNTY CLERK




. STATE OF NEVADA
BRIAN SANDOVAL BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor - Director

JASON KING, P.E.
State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 » Fax (775) 684-2811

http://water.nv.gov
October 23, 2018

Washoe County Commissioners
P. 0. Box 11130
Reno, NV 89520-0027

Ladies and Gentlemen:;

In the past years, pursuant to Chapter 534.040(2) of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), an
assessment has been required by the State Engineer for work performed by well supervisors in Cold
Springs Valley Groundwater Basin. The Statute states that "the Board of County Commissioners
shall levy a special assessment annually, or at such time as the assessment is needed" to pay for the
salaries and necessary expenses incurred by well supervisors working in that particular basin. Upon
review of past assessments and expenditures it has been deemed that a special assessment should
not be levied for the fiscal year July 1, 2019, to June 30, 2020.

Thank you very much for your continued cooperation and assistance in this matter.

Sincerely,

F—K g

Jason King, P.E.
State Engineer

JK/aa
Enclosures
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BRIAN SANDOVAL

BRADLEY CROWELL

Governor Director

STATE OF NEVADA JASON KING, P.E.

State Engineer

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 2002
Carson City, Nevada 89701-5250
(775) 684-2800 » Fax (775) 684-2811

(800) 992-0900
(In Nevada Only)
htip://water.nv.gov

FINAL NOTICE November 2, 2018 FINAL NOTICE

Washoe County Carl D. Herold Trust
P.O. Box 11130 ¢/o Amy Lathrop
Reno, NV 89520 Carl D. Herold
Certified Mail: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 5080 88 2380 W. 12th Ave.
Junction City, OR 97448-8340
Certified Mail: 9214 7969 0099 9790 1624 5081 32

Re: Final Notice for Permit 68313

The provisions of your above referenced permit to appropriate waters of the State of Nevada require you to
file a Proof of Beneficial Use and Cultural Map on or before October 26, 2018.

Our records indicate that you have not filed the required proof(s) and your permit is in danger of
cancellation unless the proof(s) or an application for an extension of time along with the appropriate filing fee(s)
with which to file the required proof(s) is/are received and filed with the State Engineer within thirty (30) days of
the date of this final certified notice.

Per NRS 533.390 and/or 533.410, if the required proof or extension of time is not received within
thirty (30) days after the mailing of this notice, your permit will be cancelled.

Please be advised that the permittee is responsible for notifying the State Engineer’s Office of any address
change. Furthermore, when multiple addresses are used by the applicant or agent, the required legal notices will be
sent to the latest address of record and not to earlier addresses unless proper written notification from the applicant
or agent directs otherwise. G

o| 14
\\\9

-/

el

y

LA D .

cc: Parsons, Behle & Latimer (Email) QJ

Schedule of Fees: ;)’?y . Fy

Fee for filing Proof of Completion - $60 e )
Fee for filing Proof of Beneficial Use - $60 0( ) 1
Fee for filing Request for Extension of Time - $120 T

If there are any questions regarding this notice please contact our office at (775) 684-28001)
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NEVADA DIVISION OF STATE OF NEVADA

Department of Conservation & Natural Resources

PROTECTION cresLoveo, Adinlnetor

October 31, 2018

Washoe County Board of Commissioners
1001 E. Ninth Street
Reno, NV 89512

Dear Commissioners:

The Division has completed developmient of a draft water pollution control discharge permit for the
Truckee Meadow Water Authority operations and maintenance discharges (permit NV0024031).
Attached is a copy of the Notice of Proposed Action. | have asked the Reno Gazette-Journal to publish
the Notice of Proposed Action in the legal section on November 5, 2018. The Notice of Proposed Action
and the Fact Sheet are also posted on the NDEP website: https://ndep.nv.gov/posts/category/water.

Comments on the proposed action or a request for a public hearing may be submitted to this office
during a thirty (30) day period following the date of newspaper publication of the Notice of Proposed
Action, ending December 5, 2018. If we find that a significant degree of public interest exists with
respect to the proposed permit, a public hearing will be held.

If no hearing is held, we would expect to issue the permit containing the final determinations of the
Administrator shortly after the expiration of the thirty (30) day comment period.

Please contact me at (775) 687-9569 or at plassaline@ndep.nv.gov should you have any questions
regarding this draft permit or the permit process.

Sincerely,

K q
\
{7 - (),O&\ ‘

Peter Lassaline

Bureau of Water Pollution Control \ -
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection \ N '

<\ \
Enclosures:  Permit NV0024031 Notice of Proposed Action

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001 o Carson City, Nevada 89701 e p: 775.687.4670 ° f: 775.687.5856 ° ndep.nv.gov

printed on recycled paper



NEVADA DIVISION OF STATE OF NEVADA
Department of Conservation & Natural Resources

. | ENVIRONMENTAL arian sandoval, Govenor
" | PROTECTION g oo, Abensatr

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION

The Administrator, Division of Environmental Protection, Carson City, Nevada is issuing the following
notice of proposed action under the Nevada Revised Statutes and/or the Clean Water Act, where
applicable. The Administrator has received an application for a Manufacturing, Commercial, Mining
and Silvicultural facility that discharges NON-PROCESS Wastewater . permit number NV0024031
from the following applicant;

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY
PO BOX 30013
RENO, NV - 89520

Permit NV0024031, TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY WATER SYSTEMS
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE:

The Permittee, Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA), has applied for the renewal of its
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit to discharge water from its drinking water
system. The Permittee owns and operates a system of drinking water treatment and supply facilities
in Washoe County, Nevada, including two water treatment plants, groundwater wells, storage
reservoirs and tanks, pumping stations, pressure regulating stations and water mains. In the interest
of protecting public health and safety by providing safe drinking water and fire protection water,
TMWA performs routine and non-routine maintenance and operational activities that result in the
discharge to waters of the State, including the Truckee River, which is also a Waters of the U.S. The
discharges are pertinent to all operations, maintenance and emergency activities performed by
TMWA throughout the water systems it owns and operates.

On the basis of preliminary review of the requirements of the Nevada Revised Statutes, as amended,
and implementing regulations, the Administrator proposes to issue Permit NV0024031 to discharge
for a five (5) year period, subject to certain effluent limitations.

Persons wishing to comment upon or object to the proposed determinations by the Administrator
regarding permit issuance, or request a hearing pursuant to the Nevada Administrative Code, Water
Pollution Control, should submit their comments or request, in writing, within thirty (30) days of the
date of newspaper publication, hand delivered or postmarked no later than 5:00 P.M. on 12/05/2018 ,
either in person or by mail to:

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
Division of Environmental Protection
Bureau of Water Poliution Control
901 South Stewart Street, Suite 4001
Carson City, NV 89701

The request must be filed within the comment period and must indicate the interest of the person
filing the request and the reasons why a hearing is warranted. All comments or objections received
within the thirty (30) day period will be considered in the formulation of final determination(s)
regarding the application. If written comments indicate a significant degree of public interest in the
proposed permit, the Administrator shall hold a public hearing. A public notice of such hearing will be
issued not less than thirty (30) days prior to the hearing date.

If no hearing is held and the determinations of the Administrator are substantially changed from the
tentative determinations, the Administrator will give public notice of the revised determinations.
Additional comments and objections will be considered at that time.

The applications, proposed permits, comments received, and other information are on file and may
be copied or copies may be obtained by writing to the above address or by contacting Peter

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001 » Carson City, Nevada 89701-5249 « p: 775.687.4670 « f: 775.687.5856 * ndep.nv.gov



Lassaline, Bureau of Water Pollution Control, at (775) 687-9569 or at plassaline@ndep.nv.gov. The
office facsimile number is (775) 687-4684. For further information, the fact sheet for this project can
be viewed at the following website: http://ndep.nv.gov/admin/public.htm.

Please bring the forgoing notice to the attention of all persons whom you know would be interested in
this matter.

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001 « Carson City, Nevada 89701-5249 - p: 775.687.4670 « f: 775.687.5856 » ndep.nv.gov
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OFFICE OF THE WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER
Tammi Davis, Treasurer

1001 E 9™ St - D140
P O Box 30039
Reno NV 89520-3039

November 19, 2018

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
WASHOE COUNTY
RENO, NEVADA

RE: WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT ENVIRONMENTAL OVERSIGHT
ACCOUNT

Honorable Commissioners:

The Washoe County District Board of Health determined at their October 25,
2018 meeting the Environmental Oversight Trust account was no longer needed.
On November 5, 2018, the funds in the amount of $108,426.11 were deposited
into the Washoe County’s main bank account and accounted for in the Washoe
County Health fund Environmental Health account 172400-485300. The
Washoe County Health District Environmental Oversight Bank account was
officially closed on November 9, 2018.

Respectfully,

Cygeds ([dLhogss

Brenda F/l h cting Chief Deputy Treasurer

CC: Anna Heenan, Health Department
Samantha Pierce, Internal Auditor

Telephone: (775) 328-2510 Fax: (775) 328-2500 email: tax@washoecounty.us
www,washoecounty.us/treas
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STAFF REPORT
BOARD MEETING DATE: October 25, 2018
TO: District Board of Health
FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer

328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us

SUBJECT: Approval of a staff recommendation for the Board to give direction to the County
Treasurer to close the Environmental Health Oversight account ending in 3027 held at the
Bank of America and further direction to deposit the funds in the Health District
Environmental Health account 172400-485300

SUMMARY

Approval of a staff recommendation for the Board to give direction to the County Treasurer to close the
Environmental Health Oversight account ending in 3027 held at the Bank of America and further
direction to deposit the funds in the Health District Environmental Health account 172400-485300.

District Health Strategic Priorities supported by this item:

5. Financial Stability: Enable the Health District to make long-term commitments in areas that will
positively impact the community’s health by growing reliable sources of income.

PREVIOUS ACTION
No previous action specific to this request.

BACKGROUND
Due to the County Treasurer’s Office moving banking services from Bank of America to Wells Fargo,

the County Departments, including the Health District, have been reviewing accounts that are with Bank
of America. The Health District has one checking account that is outside the County checking account
and it is for the Environmental Health Division.

At the July 26, 1995 and September 27, 1995 District Board of Health meeting the board approved a
settlement agreement for a Tank Farm Litigation with the Settling Defendants (multiple firms) and Golden
Gate Petroleum in the amounts of $150,000 and $3,000 respectively. The settlement agreements both contain
similar provisions whereby a trust account was to be established with the Washoe County Treasurer and said
funds and the interest thereon shall be utilized for payment of future oversight activities at the site during the
remediation period. Given the settlement agreements the County Treasurer established the District
Health/Environmental Oversight account with Bank of America.

The Washoe County Health District has received notification from the Chief of the Bureau of Corrective
Actions, Nevada Division of Environmental Protection and the Project Manager that the State does not
envision any further assistance or involvement from the Health District with the Sparks Tank Farm (NDEP
Facility ID# D-000084, Sparks Solvent/Fuel Site).

ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES
1001 East Ninth Street [ P.O.Box 11130 { Reno, Nevada 89520
AHS Office: 775-328-2410 1 Fax: 775-328-3752 | washoecounty.us/health

Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
g p Y Y q pp Y pioy Rupl%c“!'l.eglﬂl



Date: DBOH meeting October 25, 2018
Subject: Approval to close Environmental Health Oversight Account
Page2 of 2

The checking account has not had any activity in the last seven years and the average interest on the account is
$1.81 a month. Pursuant to Washoe County Code 15.190.5 we are required each month to turn into the
County Treasurer an account reconciliation. The cost to complete this reconciliation is greater than the
average monthly interest earnings. Alternative investment vehicles were explored but it was determined that
the funds would have to be locked up for years to earn enough interest to offset the cost of maintaining the
checking account and then the funds would not be available for use.

Given that the bank accounts have to be closed with Bank of America and given that the Health District is no
longer obligated to pay for remediation issues or future litigation at the Tank Farm sight it is being requested
that the Bank of America account be closed and the funds be deposited in the Washoe County Health Fund
Environmental Health account 172400-485300.

FISCAL IMPACT
The Health District Environmental Health Division revenue in account 172400-485300 will be increased
approximately $108,425, which is the anticipated final balance of the account.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board give direction to the County Treasurer to close the Environmental
Health Oversight account ending in 3027 held at the Bank of America and further direction to deposit
the funds in the Health District Environmental Health account 172400-485300.

POSSIBLE MOTION

Move to approve staff recommendation to give direction to the County Treasurer to close the
Environmental Health Oversight account ending in 3027 held at the Bank of America and further
direction to deposit the funds in the Health District Environmental Health account 172400-485300.




OFFICE OF THE WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER
Tammx Daws, Treasurer

1001 E 9™ St - DMO ,!
P 0 Box 30039, -
Reno NV 89520 3039

MONTHLY STATEMENT OF WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER FOR
‘MONTH ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2018

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
WASHOE COUNTY
RENO, NEVADA

RE: NRS 354.280

Honorable Commissioners:

I hereby submit this summary record of the source and amount of all receipts,
apportionments to, payments from and balances in all funds and separate accounts

as required by referenced statute. Detail information for these funds is available in
my office.

Beginning Balance Ending Cash Balance
$ 44,834,655.60 $ 30,225,657.50

INVESTMENTS (Reported at Market — All Groups)
$ 528,185,733.01

» Unapportioned Washoe Other Restricted Total
Funds (Secured County Agencies Funds
& Unsecured)

'$ 2,156,078.83 | $ 3,445,471.24 | $ 1,237,414.99 | $6,838,965.06

’-~

Tammi Davis, Treasurer

Telephone: (775) 328-2510 Fax: (775) 328-2500 email; tax@washoecounty.us
www.washoecounty.us/treas




OFFICE OF THE WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER
Tammi Davis, Treasurer '

1001 E9TH St -~ D140
P O Box 30039
Reno NV 89520-3039

MONTHLY STATEMENT OF WASHOE COUNTY TREASURER FOR
MONTH ENDING NOVEMBER 30, 2018

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
WASHOE COUNTY
RENO, NEVADA

RE: NRS 354.280
Honorable Commissioners:
I hereby submit this summary record of the source and amount of all receipts,

apportionments to, payments from and balances in all funds and separate accounts

as required by referenced statute. Detail information for these funds is available in
my office.

Beginning Balance Ending Cash Balance
$ 30,225,657.50 $ 12,526,038.77

INVESTMENTS (Reported at Market — All Groups)
$ 508,670,735.10

Unapportioned Washoe Other Restricted Total
Funds County Agencies Funds
(Secured &
Unsecured) :
$ 3,895,775.96 | $ 6,337,194.33 $ 2,244,954.00 | $12,477,924.29

Tammi Davis, Treasurer

Telephone: (775) 328-2510 Fax: (775) 328-2500 email: tax@washoecounty.us
www.washoecounty.us/treas




EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS
November 30, 2018

To the Board of Directors
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
Incline Village, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
and each major fund of the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (the “District”) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2018. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our engagement letter dated March 23, 2018, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal controls of the District solely
for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to
communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding a material weakness during our audit in our Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financal Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards dated November 30, 2018.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to
you.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kielzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE



Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the
engagement, if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the District is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.
The District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The
implementation of GASB Statement No 75 was reflected in the presentation of payroll-related
measures in required supplemenetary information. No other new accounting policies were adopted and
there were no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during 2018. No matters
have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1)
the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

e Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical collection
rates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance for
doubtful accounts and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimate of compensated absences is based on a weighted average of historical
payouts. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the compensated
absences and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefit liabilities is based on a third party
actuarial valuation. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the other
postemployment benefit liabilities and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

¢ Management’s estimate of the net pension liability is based on a third party actuarial valuation,
The actuarial valuation is calculated based on the employee information submitted by the
District to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS). We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the pension liability and determined
that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.




Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the District’s
financial statements relate to:

¢ The disclosure on the defined benefit pension plan in Note 5 to the financial statements provides
information on the assumptions made and inputs used to determine the pension liability and
related amounts.

¢ The disclosure on the other postemployment benefits liability in Note 10 to the financial
statements provides information on the assumptions made and inputs used to determine the other
postemployment benefits liability.

¢ The disclosure on contingencies in Note 12 to the financial statements provides information on
potential liabilities that have not been recognized by the District.

o The disclosure on restatements in Note 13 to the financial statements provides information on
adjustments that were necessary to beginning fund balance or net position balances.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us
to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant
classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.

The following misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures were brought to
the attention of, and corrected by, management:

General Fund:
To record amounts due from the OPEB Trust in the current and prior year
Accounts Receivable $249,346
Miscellaneous Revenue $466,166
Employee Benefits $463,315
Beginning Fund Balance $252,197

The following summarizes uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects in the current
and prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Governmental Activities:

Passed adjustment for the understatement of the OPEB liability
Public Safety Expense $ 80,000
OPEB Liability $ 80,000

Prior year passed adjustment for the understatement of compensated absences
Beginning Net Position $ 20,067
Public Safety Expense $ 20,067




Ambulance Fund and Business-Type Activities:

Passed adjustment for the overstatement of accrued payroll

Accrued Payroll $ 2,557

Salaries Expense $ 2,557
Passed adjustment for an asset that was not capitalized prior to disposal
Depreciation Expense $ 630
Loss on sale $6,925

Beginning Net Position $7,555

The effect of these uncorrected misstatements, including the effect of the reversal of prior year
uncorrected misstatements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is:

Governmental Activities:
An overstatement of change in net position of $59,933 and an overstatement of ending net position of
$80,000.

Ambulance Fund and Business-Type Activities:
An overstatement of change in net position of $4,998 and an understatement of ending net position of
$2,557

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, which could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such
disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management
We have requested certain written representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 30, 2018.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations
with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the District, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions
affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement.
None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the District’s auditors.

Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations
We have identified the following matters involving noncompliance with laws and regulations that came to
our attention during the course of the audit.

e Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) and the Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) is
disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.




Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents
containing the District’s audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial information
identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such
other information. However, in accordance with such standards, we have:

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes
in the District’s OPEB liability and related ratios, the schedule of the District’s contributions — OPEB, the
schedule of the District’s proportionate share of net pension liability, and the schedule of the District’s
contributions - pension, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic
financial statements, Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the RSIL

We applied procedures to the general fund budgetary comparison information. Such information was
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information section, which includes the individual fund
budget and actual schedules which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to
this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form,
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has
not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit
of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
account records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact, Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or
its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its
presentation, appearing in the financial statements.

Modification of the Auditor’s Report
We have made the following modification to our auditor’s report.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the financial statements, the District adopted the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, which resulted in a restatement of the net position as of July 1, 2017. Our
opinions were not modified with respect to this matter.




Correction of Errors

As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statements, certain errors occurred in the implementation
of GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — An amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, No. 68,
and No. 73, resulting in an overstatement of amounts previously reported for deferred outflows of
resources. In addition, certain errors occurred in the recognition of accounts receivable from the
OPEB Trust. Accordingly, these errors resulted in a restatement of net position as of July 1, 2017.
Our opinions were not modified with respect to these matters.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of
the District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

5&;/@"% L7

Reno, Nevada
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
Incline Village, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (the District) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 89511-2094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major
fund of North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the financial statements, North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District has
adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which has resulted in a restatement of the net position as
of July 1, 2017. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Correction of Errors

As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statements, certain errors occurred in the determination or
classification of payments to satisfy employee contribution requirements in the adoption, as of July 1,
2016 of GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — An amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68,
and No. 73, resulting in the overstatement of amounts previously reported for deferred outflows of
resources, net pension liability-related amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017, and were discovered by
management during the current year based on communications from the Public Employee’s Retirement
System of Nevada (PERS), including a restated Schedule of Employer Allocations for GASB 82
Implementation. Accordingly, amounts for deferred outflows of resources, net pension liability-related
amounts have resulted in a restatement of net position as of July 1, 2017. Our opinions are not modified
with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statements, certain errors occurred in the recognition of accounts
receivable, resulting in an understatement of amounts previously reported for accounts receivable for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and were discovered by management during the current year. Accordingly,
amounts for accounts receivable have resulted in a restatement of net position as of July 1, 2017. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4A-4G, the General Fund budgetary comparison on pages 43-44, the
Schedule of Changes in the District’s OPEB Liability and Related Ratios on page 45, the Schedule of
District Contributions - OPEB on page 46, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability on page 47, and the Schedule of the District’s Contributions - Pension on page 47, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
management’s discussion and analysis, the Schedule of Changes in the District’s OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios, the Schedule of District Contributions — OPEB, the Schedule of the District’s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schedule of the District’s Contributions -
Pension in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




The General Fund budgetary comparison information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the General Fund budgetary comparison information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The individual fund budget and actual schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund budget and actual schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, individual
budget and actual schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Prior Year Comparative Information

The individual fund financial statements and schedules related to the 2017 financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the 2017 financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2017 basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare those financial statements or to those financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. The statements and schedules referred to above are consistent in relation to
the basic financial statements from which they have been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30,
2018, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other

" matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

é‘,&% L7

Reno, Nevada
November 30, 2018




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District’s (the District) finances, we offer
readers of the District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the District’s
financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

+ The liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the District’s governmental activities
exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of resources at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $4,136,533, resulting in a negative net position.

+ The liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of the District’s business-type activities
exceeded its assets and deferred outflows of resources at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $1,075,311, resulting in a negative net position as discussed above.

» The assessed valuation of the District’s property tax base increased by 5.55% over last
year’s assessed value. The District’s consolidated tax revenues increased by 5.79% this
fiscal year.

+ In March 2016, one of the Ambulance Fund rescue units was involved in a non-injury
accident. The District was not at fault. The insurance claim has been resolved, after the
District asked the State of Nevada, Department of Insurance to intervene. In 2018, the
District wrote off the balance of the rescue unit of $16,142.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to private
sector business. The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets
and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of resources (as applicable), with the difference
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator as whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (uncollected taxes, earned but unused vacation leave and other
compensated absences, other postemployment benefits and net pension related items).
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Both of the government-wide financial statements show the public safety function of the District,
which is principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities).
All governmental activities of the District are included in the public safety function and all
business-type activities are included in Ambulance activities, a component of public safety
(business-type activities), since the District is a single-purpose entity.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 5 and 6 of the report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. The District has governmental and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of government funds is natrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

For the 2017-2018 fiscal year, the District maintained three individual governmental funds.
Information is presented separately in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and in the
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the
General Fund, Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund. The basic governmental fund
financial statements can be found on pages 5-10 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for its ambulance operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for
the Ambulance Fund, which is considered to be a major fund of the District. The enterprise fund
data is shown elsewhere in the report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found
on pages 11-13 of this report.

The District adopts an annual budget for each of its funds. A budgetary comparison schedule has
been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.
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Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 14-41 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning budgetary comparison
information, the District’s progress in funding its obligation to provide postemployment benefits,
and information on the District’s share of the net pension liability for PERS along with the
information for the District’s contributions to PERS. Required supplementary information can be
found on pages 42-46 of this report.

Accounting Changes.

As of July 1, 2017, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The implementation of this standard
replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and requires governments to
calculate and report the costs and obligations associated with postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB) in their basic financial statements, including additional note disclosures and
required supplementary information. Beginning net position was restated to retroactively remove
the prior OPEB liability reported under GASB Statement No. 45 and adopt the provisions of GASB
Statements No. 75 to report the beginning OPEB liability and deferred outflows of resources
related to contributions made after the measurement date.

During 2018, the District identified misstatements in the June 30, 2017 financial statements related
to the determination or classification of payments to satisfy employee contribution requirements
in the adoption, as of July 1, 2016, of GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — An amendment
of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. Based on the restated Schedule of Employer
Allocations for GASB 82 implementation provided by the Public Employees’ Retirement System
of Nevada (PERS), the beginning net pension was restated as of July 1, 2017 to report the previous
overstatement of the balances reported for deferred outflows of resources (net pension related) at
June 30, 2017.

During 2018, the District identified misstatements in the June 30, 2017 financial statements related
to the recognition of receivables due from the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District OPEB
Trust. Based on these misstatements, beginning net position was restated as of July 1, 2017 to
report the previous understatement of the balances reported for accounts receivable at June 30,
2017.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. Condensed versions of the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2018 and 2017 are
presented below.

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District's Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Current and other assets $12,083,902 $10,181,826 $ 464,924 $ 229,380 $ 12,548,826 $10,411,206
Capital assets 6,019,598 6,476,731 900.752 851,818 6,920.350 7.328.549

Total assets 18,103,500 16,658.557 1.365.676 1,081.198 19.469.176 17,739,755
Deferred outflows of
Resources 4.271.789 3,637,319 430,599 656,761 4,702,388 4.294.080
Noncurrent liabilities 24,638,373 19,699,655 2,604,401 2,507,628 27,242,774 22,207,283
Other liabilities 722.543 739.793 104913 81.860 827.456 821.653
Total liabilities 25.360.916 20,439,448 2709314 2,589.488 28,070,230 23.028.936
Deferred inflows of
Resources 1,150,906 1,048 987 162272 253415 1.313.178 1.302.402
Net assets:
Net investment in
capital assets 3,222,598 3,253,731 900,752 851,818 $4,123.350 4,105,549
Restricted for:
Capital projects - -
Debt service - 502,993 - - - 502,993
Unrestricted (7.359.131) (4.949.283) (1.976.063) (1.956,762) (9.335.194) (6.906,045)
Total Net Position ($4.136,533) ($1.192.559) ($1.075.311) (1.104.944) ($5.211.844) ($2.297.503)

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. Although recognizing
net pension liability related amounts indicates a deterioration of the District’s financial position,
the reader should be aware that the liability relating to the PERS is currently paid by the District
as a portion of employees’ salaries throughout each year. The District will not be required to pay
this entire amount at one time unless unforeseen circumstances arise. Total assets and deferred
outflows of the District at June 30, 2018 were $24,171,564 an increase of $2,137,729 from fiscal
year 2017, with capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation accounting for $6,920,350 of the
2018 fiscal year total and $7,328,549 of the 2017 fiscal year total. Deferred outflows of resources
for 2018 are $4,702,388 an increase of $408,308 from fiscal year 2017 of $4,294,080. The increase
is directly related to the net pension and OPEB related amounts recognized in 2018.

Total liabilities at the end of fiscal year 2018 were $28,070,230 and 23,028,936 at the end of fiscal
year 2017, an increase of $5,041,294 again related to reporting the net pension liability and OPEB
related amounts as of June 30, 2018. At June 30, 2018, the District’s net position was ($5,211,844).
This is a decrease in net position of $2,914,341 from fiscal year 2017 balance of ($2,297,503). As
was explained above, the negative net position is related to the recognition of the long-term liability
for the District’s obligation in the Public Employees’ Retirement System and other post-
employment benefits.
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North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District's Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 3,076,596 $ 2,825,280 $ 841,088 $ 625,439 $ 3,917,684 $ 3,450,719
Operating grants,
interest and contributions 458,629 186,239 458,629 186,239
Capital
grants/contributions - 12,500 49,180 169,679 49,180 182,179
General revenues:
Property taxes 8,712,031 8,414,850 - - 8,712,031 8,414,850
Consolidated taxes 3,828,914 3,619,224 - - 3,828,914 3,619,224
Other taxes 681,530 638,005 - - 681,530 638,005
Unrestricted interest
income 82,568 27,814 610 807 83,178 28,621
Other 40,000 40,000 - - 40,000 40,000
Gain on sale of capital
assets - 23,757 3.871 1,892 3871 25.649
Total Revenues 16.880.268 15,787.669 894.749 797.817 17.775.017 16.585.486
Expenses:
Public Safety 13,774,396 13,361,427 - - 13,774,396 13,361,427
Interest on long- term
debt 105,626 86,262 105,626 86,262
Ambulance services - - 2.235.129 1.991.8i8 2,235,129 1.991.818
Total expenses 13.880.022 13.447.689 2,235,129 1.991.818 16,115.151 15.439.507
Change in net assets 3,000,246 2,339,980 (1,340,380) (1,194,001) 1,659,866 1,145,979
Transfers (1,567,993) (1,540,581) 1,567,993 1,540,581 - -
Change in net assets 1,432,253 799,399 227,613 346,580 1,659,866 1,145.979
Net Position, Beginning
of Year (1,192,559) (1,991,958) (1,104,944) (1,451,524) (2,297,503) (3,443,482)
Prior Period Adjustment (4,376,227) - (197,980) - (4,574,207) -
Net Position, Beginning
of Year, as Restated (5.568.786) - (1.302.924) - (6.871.710) -
Net Position, End of Year ($4.136.533) ($1.192.559) ($1.075.311) ($1,104.944) ($5.211.844) ($2.297.503)

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

As such, revenues and expenses are reported in this Statement for some items that will only result
in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned but unused vacation leave and net
pension related amounts). Total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2018 were $17,775,017 and
consisted primarily of taxes and intergovernmental revenues. This represents a $1,189,531
increase over fiscal year 2017 total revenues of $16,585,486. The increase is mainly related to an
increase in property taxes of $297,181, consolidated taxes of $209,690 and fuels management
grant and mutual aid reimbursements of $272,390. The Ambulance charges for services are up
from the previous year by $215,649. Total expenses for fiscal year 2018 were $16,115,151, an
increase of $675,644 over fiscal year 2017 expenses of $15,439,507. The increase relates to an
increase of salaries and wages and compensated absences of $639,372. Although the District is
not staffed to budget, in past two years the District has promoted personnel and hired firefighter
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paramedics, a Fire inspector Il and a Compliance Officer. With the increase in personnel and the
past fire season, salaries have increased, with most of these increases offset by mutual aid
reimbursements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year or available for use in unexpected circumstances.

At of the close of the fiscal year 2018 the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $10,911,438, an increase of $1,850,993 when compared to the close of fiscal year
2017. Of the $10,911,438 combined ending fund balance, $9,691,278 is unassigned.

The increase from the prior fiscal year in the District’s combined governmental fund balances of
$1,850,993 as noted above is due to an increase in the General Fund ending fund balance of
$2,631,485; a decrease in the Debt Service Fund ending fund balance of $502,993 and a decrease
in the Capital Projects Fund ending fund balance of $277,499.

The $2,631,485 increase in the General Fund is due to a combination of items: (1) An increase in
revenues of $769,015 due to an increase in property tax, consolidated tax, and fuels management
grant revenue; (2) A decrease in transfers out of the General Fund of $734,255 and a decrease in
overall expenditures; (3) An increase of $252,197 due to the restatement of a prior period, as
explained in Note 13. The decrease in the Debt Service Fund of $502,993 is because no transfers
were made from the General Fund to the Debt Service. The $277,499 decrease in the Capital
Projects Fund was due to a transfer of $167,993 to the Ambulance Fund for the purchase of cardiac
monitors. The balance of the decrease was due to the purchase of radios and a utility vehicle.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and at June 30, 2018, the fund balance
was $10,729,322. General Fund revenues exceeded the budget by 7.19%. Salaries, wages and
benefits were under budget by $351,362 due to unfilled positions. Service and supplies
expenditures were under budget by $3,352,264 mainly because the District budgeted to repay the
taxpayers of Incline Village and Crystal Bay $3,050,000 for property tax refunds and interest. The
court case has not been resolved; therefore, the payments were not made.

Proprietary Funds. The accounting records for the Proprietary Funds are maintained on the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized at the time they are earned
and expenses are recognized when the related liabilities are incurred. The measurement focus of
these funds is on capital maintenance, where the revenues derived from current operations are
generally intended to provide those resources necessary to maintain continued delivery of such
services in future periods.
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The proprietary fund for the District is the Ambulance Fund, which accounts for the emergency
medical services operations of the District. The net position for this fund increased $29,633 in the
2017-2018 fiscal year, due to the Ground Emergency Medical Transport cost reimbursement from
Medicaid of $180,788, a transfer in from the Capital Projects Fund that was $167,993 larger than
expected and a decrease of $197,980 for a prior period adjustment that is explained in Note 13

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets: The District’s capital assets at June 30, 2018 were $6,920,350 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, vehicles, and equipment.
The decrease in capital assets is related to depreciation. Detailed information regarding capital
assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Long-term liabilities: At the end of the fiscal year, the District had total outstanding long-term
liabilities of $27,242,774. The District’s outstanding liabilities included accrued compensated
absences for $1,321,205, unfunded liability of Other Post-employment Benefits of $7,385,981, a
net pension liability of $15,583,104 and $2,797,000 in general obligation bonds, and medium term
financing debt. In addition, the District owed a sales tax refund of $155,484 at June 30, 2018.
Detailed information regarding long-term liabilities can be found in Note 5, Note 7 and Note 11.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

o The District relies primarily on two types of tax revenues. The first of these is ad valorem
or property taxes and is directly affected by the assessed property tax values in Incline
Village and Crystal Bay, Nevada. Property tax revenues are projected to increase for
2018-2019 as property values increased by 2.67% for the coming fiscal year. The
District’s property tax rate is .6291 for fiscal year 2018-2019, the same as the previous
five years.

e The second significant tax revenue for the District, the consolidated tax, consists
primarily of sales taxes. For the year ended June 30, 2018, taxable sales in Washoe
County increased by 4.5% over the previous fiscal year. The District continues to budget
sales tax revenue conservatively. The District’s 2018-2019 budget is based on actual
sales tax revenue collected for 2016-2017.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all
those with an interest in the District’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Business
Manager, 866 Oriole Way, Incline Village, Nevada 89451.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 9,856,550 164,877 $ 10,021,427
Accounts receivable, net 341,675 242,406 584,081
Property taxes receivable 61,288 - 61,288
Due from other governments 1,744,345 - 1,744,345
Prepaid expense 80,044 57,641 137,685
Capital assets:
Land 1,019,283 30,588 1,049,871
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 5,000,315 870,164 5,870,479
Total Assets 18,103,500 1,365,676 19,469,176
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Net pension - related amounts 2,969,471 430,599 3,400,070
OPEB - related amounts 1,161,806 - 1,161,806
Deferred charge on refunding 140,512 - 140,512
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,271,789 430,599 4,702,388
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 106,744 31,704 138,448
Accrued liabilities 601,633 73,209 674,842
Accrued interest 14,166 - 14,166
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 943,305 66,308 1,009,613
Due in more than one year 3,254,293 9,783 3,264,076
Net pension liability 13,054,794 2,528,310 15,583,104
Other postemployment benefits 7,385,981 - 7,385,981
Total Liabilities 25,360,916 2,709,314 28,070,230
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB - related amounts 31,853 - 31,853
Net pension - related amounts 1,119,053 162,272 1,281,325
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,150,906 162,272 1,313,178
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,222,598 900,752 4,123,350
Unrestricted (7,359,131) (1,976,063) (9,335,194)
Total Net Position $ (4,136,533) (1,075,311) $ (5,211,844)

See accompanying notes.




NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PROGRAM REVENUES
Operating Grants, Capital Grants,
Charges for Interest, Interest,
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities:
Public safety $ 13,774,396 $ 3,076,596 $ 458,629 $ -
Interest on long-term debt 105,626 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 13,880,022 3,076,596 458,629 -
Business-Type Activities:
Ambulance 2,235,129 841,088 - 49,180
Total $ 16,115,151 $ 3,917,684 $ 458,629 $ 49,180

General Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes

Consolidated tax

SCCR taxes- AB104

Unrestricted interest income

Miscellaneous

Gain on the sale of capital assets
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ORIGINALLY STATED
RESTATEMENTS
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes,



NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ (10,239,171) - $ (10,239,171)
(105,626) - (105,626)
(10,344,797) - (10,344,797
- (1,344,861) (1,344,861)
(10,344,797) (1,344,861) (11,689,658)

8,712,031 - 8,712,031

3,828,914 - 3,828,914

681,530 - 681,530

82,568 610 83,178

40,000 - 40,000

- 3,871 3,871

(1,567,993) 1,567,993 -

11,777,050 1,572,474 13,349,524

1,432,253 227,613 1,659,866
(1,192,559) (1,104,944) (2,297,503)
(4,376,227) (197,980) (4,574,207)
(5,568,786) (1,302,924) (6,871,710)

$ (4,136,533) (1,075,311) $ (5,211,844)




NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018
Debt Capital Total
General Service Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 9,663,371 h) - $ 193,179 $ 9,856,550
Accounts receivable 341,675 - - 341,675
Property taxes receivable 61,288 - - 61,288
Due from other governments 1,744,345 - - 1,744,345
Prepaid expense 80,044 - - 80,044
Total Assets $ 11,890,723 $ - $ 193,179 $ 12,083,902
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 106,159 $ - $ 585 $ 106,744
Accrued liabilities 591,155 - 10,478 601,633
Total Liabilities 697,314 - 11,063 708,377

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - delinquent property taxes 61,288 - - 61,288
Unavailable revenue - project reimbursements 278,101 - - 278,101
Unavailable revenue - miscellaneous 41,766 - - 41,766
Unavailable revenue - mutual aid reimbursements 82,932 - - 82,932

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 464,087 - - 464,087

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 80,044 - - 80,044
Committed - - 182,116 182,116
Assigned 958,001 - - 958,001
Unassigned 9,691,277 - - 9,691,277

Total Fund Balances 10,729,322 - 182,116 10,911,438

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balances $ 11,890,723 $ - $ 193,179 $ 12,083,902

See accompanying notes.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 10,911,438

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the governmental funds.
Governmental capital assets $ 18,574,042
Less: Accumulated depreciation (12,554,444)

6,019,598

Deferred outflows of resources is the consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so is not
recognized as an outflow of resources until then.
Defetred outflow on funding escrow 140,512

Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Medium term financing payable (630,000)
Bonds payable (2,167,000)
Accrued interest (14,166)
Net pension liability (13,054,794)
Sales tax refund (155,484)
Compensated absences (1,245,114)
Other postemployment benefits obligation (7,385,981)

(24,652,539)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions
and other post-employment benefits are applicable to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 1,161,806
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (31,853)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 2,969,471
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (1,119,053)

2,980,371

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources until that time by governmental funds.
Deferred inflows related to property taxes and reimbursements 464,087

Net Position - Governmental Activities $  (4,136,533)

See accompanying notes.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Public safety
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over (under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers:
Transfers out

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF
YEAR, AS ORIGINALLY STATED

RESTATEMENT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF
YEAR, AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes.

Debt Capital Total
General Service Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
8,709,331 $ - $ - $ 8,709,331
4,969,073 - - 4,969,073
3,086,515 - 40,000 3,126,515
16,764,919 - 40,000 16,804,919
12,985,631 - - 12,985,631
- - 149,506 149,506
- 426,000 - 426,000
- 76,993 - 76,993
12,985,631 502,993 149,506 13,638,130
3,779,288 (502,993) (109,506) 3,166,789
(1,400,000) - (167,993) (1,567,993)
2,379,288 (502,993) (277,499) 1,598,796
8,097,837 502,993 459,615 9,060,445
252,197 - - 252,197
8,350,034 502,993 459,615 9,312,642
10,729,322 $ - $ 182,116 $ 10,911,438
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures and
the proceeds from the sale of assets as other financing
sources. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of
those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives
and only the gain or loss is recorded when assets are sold.

Additions to capital assets $
Less: Current year depreciation

149,506
(606,639)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in govermental funds.
Change in deferred inflows of resources

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds. Repayments of debt principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities
in the Statement of Net Position. This is the amount by which debt
issued exceeded repayments.

Change in accrued interest
Principal payments

(7,016)
426,000

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in long-term compensated absences
Change in sales tax refund
Change in deferred outflows

(350,215)
(155,484)
(21,617)

Governmental funds report the District PERS and OPEB contributions as
expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of
pension and other post-employment benefits earned is reported as
pension or OPEB expense.

District OPEB contributions
District OPEB expense
District OPEB implicit subsidy
District PERS contributions
District pension expense

1,161,806
(757,133)

138,208

961,888
(1,181,196)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes.
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1,598,796

(457,133)

75,349

418,984

(527,316)

323,573

$

1,432,253




NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

AMBULANCE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2018
Business-Type
Activities
Enterprise Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 164,877
Accounts receivable, net 242,406
Prepaid expense 57,641
Total Current Assets 464,924
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated 30,588
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 870,164
Total Noncurrent Assets 900,752
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Net pension - related amounts 430,599
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 31,704
Accrued salaries and benefits 73,209
Compensated absences 66,308
Total Current Liabilities 171,221
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net pension liability 2,528,310
Compensated absences 9,783
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,538,093
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net pension - related amounts 162,272
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,871,586
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 900,752
Unrestricted (1,976,063)
Total Net Position $ (1,075,311)

See accompanying notes.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
AMBULANCE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type
Activities
Enterprise Fund

OPERATING REVENUES

Ambulance fees, net of bad debt 582,744
Paramedic education 77,556
Ground emergency medical transport 180,788
Total Operating Revenues 841,088
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 941,552
Employee benefits 622,848
Services and supplies 507,269
Depreciation 163,460
Total Operating Expenses 2,235,129
Operating Income (Loss) (1,394,041)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest revenue 610
Gain on sale of capital assets 3,871
Grant revenue 49,180
Total Nonoperating Revenues 53,661
Income (Loss) before Transfers (1,340,380)
TRANSFERS
Transfers in 1,567,993
Changes in Net Position 227,613
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ORIGINALLY STATED (1,104,944)
RESTATEMENT (197,980)
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED (1,302,924)
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR (1,075,311)

See accompanying notes.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

AMBULANCE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type

Activities
Enterprise Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from patients $ 555,610
Cash received from others 258,344
Cash payments for salaries and benefits (1,523,704)
Cash payments for services and supplies (539,970)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,249,720)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 1,400,000
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (247,021)
Transfers from other funds 167,993
Sale of capital assets 38,498
Grant proceeds 49,180
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 8,650
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 610
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 159,540
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,337
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 164,877
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (1,394,041)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 163,460
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (27,134)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense (48,870)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 16,169
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits 6,884
Increase (decrease) in pension related items 31,799
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 2,013
Total Adjustments 144,321
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (1,249,720)

See accompanying notes.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018
NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Reporting Entity:

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (District) is a municipality of the State of Nevada located
in Washoe County, Nevada. The District is under the direct jurisdiction of the Board of Directors of
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District.

Accounting Changes

As of July 1, 2017, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The implementation of this standard
replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and requires governments to
calculate and report the costs and obligations associated with postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB) in their basic financial statements. Employers are required to recognize OPEB
amounts for all benefits provided through the plan which include the total OPEB liability, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense. The effect of the
implementation of this standard on beginning net position is disclosed in Note 13 and the additional
disclosures required by this standard are included in Note 10.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
report information about the activities of the District. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function/activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function/activity and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function/activity. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues
are reported instead as general revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from an exchange transaction such as providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Nonoperating revenues and nonoperating expenses result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary
services.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and the enterprise fund (also, a major fund) are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2018

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as is the proprietary fund. Agency funds have no
measurement focus, but are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
carned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of the related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. The District’s net position is reported in three parts — net investment in capital
assets, restricted net position and unrestricted net position. The District first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days
of the end of the current fiscal period. When revenues are due, but will not be collected within this 60
day period, the receivable is recorded and an offsetting deferred inflow of resources is established.
Deferred inflows of resources also arise when the government receives resources before it has legal
claim to them, and thus in subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or
when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the deferred inflow of resources is removed
and revenue is recognized. Expenditures generally are recorded when the related liabilities are
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences, claims, and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest earnings associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the District.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:
* The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the District, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
» The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of funds for the payment of
principal and interest on long-term debt.
o The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial resources to be used for the
acquisition and construction of major capital assets.

The District has one proprietary fund, which is considered to be a major enterprise fund:

» The Ambulance Fund accounts for the operations of the District’s ambulance service.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:

Budget Policies:

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act
incorporated within the statutes of the State of Nevada, which include the following major procedures
to establish the budgetary data, which is reflected in these financial statements:

1.  On or before April 15, the Board of Directors files a tentative budget with the
Nevada Department of Taxation for all funds.

2. Public hearings on the tentative budget are held in the third week in May.

3. Priorto June 1, at a public hearing, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made
to the tentative budget and adopts a final budget by the favorable vote of a majority
of the members of the Board. The final budget must then be forwarded to the
Nevada Tax Commission for approval. In any year in which legislative action,
which was not anticipated, affects the local government's final budget, the Board
may file an amended final budget before August 15 of the budget year.

4. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records of all funds is employed to
enhance management control during the year.

5. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

6. Budget amounts within funds, and between funds, may be transferred if amounts do
not exceed the original budget. Such transfers are to be approved by the Board of
Directors.

7. Budget augmentations in excess of original budgetary amounts may not be made
without prior approval of the Board of Directors, following a scheduled and noticed
public hearing. Such augmentations become effective upon receipt of a resolution
by the Nevada Department of Taxation.

8. In accordance with state statute, actual expenditures generally may not exceed
budgetary appropriations of the public safety function of the General Fund. State
statutes do not require that debt service payments (Debt Service Fund) be limited
by the budget. Also, state statutes generally do not require that capital payments
(Capital Projects Fund) be limited by the budget. Actual expenses of the Proprietary
Funds may not exceed the sum of budgeted operating and nonoperating expenses.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity:

Cash Deposited and Invested:

Cash balances from all funds are combined and, to the extent practicable, invested as permitted by
law. Investments are carried at fair value.

Pursuant to NRS 355.170, the District may only invest in the following types of securities:

Certain “A” rated notes and bonds purchased by a registered broker-dealer that are issued
by corporations organized and operating in the United States and that mature within five
(5) years from the date of purchase; asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage
obligations rated “AAA™ or higher by a nationally recognized rating service. These
investments must not, in the aggregate, exceed 20 percent of the total portfolio at the time
of purchase, nor include notes and bonds issued by any one corporation in excess of 25
percent of such investments.

United States bonds and debentures maturing within ten (10) years from the date of
purchase.

Certain farm loan bonds.

Bills and notes of the United States Treasury, maturing within ten (10) years from the date
of purchase.

Obligations of an agency of the United States or a corporation sponsored by the
government, maturing within ten (10) years from the date of purchase.

Obligations of state and local governments if, (1) the interest is exempt for federal income
tax purposes, and (2) the obligation has been rated "A" or higher by a nationally
recognized bond credit rating agency.

Negotiable and nonnegotiable certificates of deposit from commercial banks and insured
savings and loan associations.

State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool.

Certain securities issued by local governments of the State of Nevada.

Certain bankers' acceptances.

Certain short-term paper issued by a corporation organized and operating in the United
States.

Other securities expressly provided by other statutes, including repurchase agreements.
Certain "AAA" rated mutual funds that invest in (1) securities issued by the Federal
Government or agencies of the Federal Government, (2) Master, bank notes or other short-
term commercial paper rated as “A-1" or “P-1” issued by a corporation or depository
institution organized, licensed and operating in the United States and/or (3) Repurchase
agreements that are fully collateralized by (1) and (2) above.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid
investments, generally with original maturities of three months or less. All cash and investments are
considered to be cash equivalents.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Property Taxes Receivable:

Real property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes receivable from the delinquent roll years.
Delinquent taxes from all roll years prior to 2016-17 have been written off. No provision for
uncollectible accounts has been established since management does not anticipate any material
collection loss in respect to the remaining balances.

Personal property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes management believes to be collectible.
Delinquent taxes from all other prior years have been written off.

Amounts not collected within 60 days after year end have been recorded as unavailable revenue at the
governmental fund level.

Receivables:

The allowance method is used to provide for estimated uncollectible amounts in the Ambulance Fund.
At June 30, 2018, the allowance for uncollectible accounts was $226,554.

The District has not established an allowance for uncollectible receivables for Governmental Funds
since prior experience has shown that uncollectible receivables are not significant.

Inventory/Prepaid Expense:

For all funds, the District charges consumable supplies against appropriations at the time of purchase.
Any inventories of such supplies at June 30 are not material to the individual funds and are not
recognized in these financial statements.

When payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods, they are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets:

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, and vehicles and
equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial statements and the enterprise fund financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of more
than $1,000 for office equipment and tools, $2,000 for equipment, $3,000 for buildings and land
improvements, $5,000 for construction and remodel projects and a normal useful life of more than
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
the asset's life are not capitalized. Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using
the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land improvements 25
Buildings and improvements 15-25
Vehicles and equipment 3-10

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position/Governmental Funds Balance Sheet may report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. The separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has
the following items that fall under this category:

The deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
The OPEB related amounts reported in the government-wide statement of net position results from
the District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the OPEB liability. This item
is deferred and recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the subsequent year.

The Net pension related amounts reported in the government-wide statement of net position results
from the differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes
in the District’s proportionate share, changes of assumptions or other inputs, and the District’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability. These items are
deferred and recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position/Balance Sheet Governmental Funds may report
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

The OPEB related amounts reported in the government-wide statement of net position results from
differences between projected and actual earnings. This item is deferred and recognized as an
increase to the OPEB liability in subsequent periods.

The Net pension related amounts reported in the government-wide statement of net position results
from differences between expected and actual experience and changes in the District’s
proportionate share. These items are deferred and recognized as an increase in the net pension
liability in subsequent periods.

Unavailable revenue is reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. The governmental
funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes and other revenue items. These items are
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS)
Base Plan (Base Plan) and additions to/deductions from Base Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Base Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Long-Term Liabilities:

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts and
prepaid bond insurance, if applicable, are amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed during
the current period.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of bonds issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses, when applicable. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Compensated Absences:

The costs involved in vacation time and sick leave benefits are accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported
in the governmental funds only if they have matured as a result of employee resignations and
retirements; costs are recorded as payroll costs only when the accumulated benefits are paid or accrued
as a result of a termination of service.

Upon death, permanent disability, or termination of an employee after two years of full-time service,
all personnel, whether union or non-union, shall be compensated for 50% (75% upon retirement) of

accrued sick leave in accordance with the employment contract in effect and District policy.

Equity Classifications:

In the governmental-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in
three components:

e Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2018

* Restricted Net Position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on its use either
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations
of other governments; (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted Net Position — All other net position that does not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance
is further classified in the following components:

e Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

* Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions, enabling legislation, or because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the law or regulations of other
governments.

¢ Committed — Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund
balance is reported pursuant to actions passed by the Board of Directors, which is the
District’s highest level of decision making authority. A similar action is required to
rescind or modify a commitment.

* Assigned — Amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, that do not
meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the District’s policy,
amounts may be assigned by the Business Manager under the authorization of the Board
of Directors.

e Unassigned — all other spendable amounts in the General Fund.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned
funds, as needed, unless the Board of Director’s has provided otherwise in its commitment or
assignment actions,

Property Taxes:

All real property in the District is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each
parcel being subject to physical reappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used to adjust the
appraised value during the years between physical appraisals. The valuation of the property and its
improvements is being assessed at 35 percent of "taxable value" as defined by statute. The amount of
tax levied is determined by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

which the property is located. The maximum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at $5
per $100 of assessed valuation; however, as a result of the legislative action, the tax rate was further

limited to $3.64 per $100 of assessed valuation, except in cases of severe financial emergency defined
in NRS 354.705.

Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1 of the year for which the taxes
are levied. Taxes may be paid in four installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the
first Mondays in October, January, and March, to the Treasurer of Washoe County. Penalties are
assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment within ten days of the installment due date. After a
two-year waiting period, if taxes remain unpaid, a tax deed is issued conveying the property to the
County with a lien for back taxes and accumulated charges. Redemption may be made by the owner
and such persons as described by statute by paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest,
and costs before sale.

Taxes on personal property are collected currently. Personal property declarations are mailed out
annually and the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department
of Taxation and tax rates described above.

The major classifications of personal property are commercial and mobile homes. In Washoe County,
taxes on motor vehicles are collected by a State agency and remitted to the District as part of
Consolidated Tax revenue.

NOTE 2 — Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) and the Nevada Administrative Code
(NAC):

The District conformed to all significant statutory and Nevada Administrative Code constraints on its
financial administration during the year. Actual operating expenses in the Ambulance Fund exceeded
appropriations by $108,708, which appears to be an apparent violation of NRS 354.626, however it
is covered under one of the exclusions to NRS 354.626.

NOTE 3 — Cash and Investments:

As of June 30, 2018, the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District had the following investments
and maturities:

June 30, 2018

Investments:
State of Nevada Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP) $ 8,105,242*
Total Cash 1,916,185
Total Cash and Investments $10,021,427

* Represents average weighted maturity of 142 days
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

The District is a voluntary participant in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP), which has regulatory oversight from the Board of Finance of the State of Nevada, The
District’s investment in the LGIP is reported at fair value. The District’s investment in the LGIP is
equal to its original investment plus monthly allocations of interest income, and realized and
unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares.

As noted, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 355.170) set forth acceptable investments for Nevada
local governments. The District has not adopted a formal investment policy that would further limit
its investment choices nor further limit its exposure to certain risks as set forth below.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a security,
especially a bond, resulting from a rise in interest rates. As noted above, the District does not
have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates beyond those specified in
the Statute.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will
not fulfill its obligation and is a function of the credit quality rating of investments. The LGIP
is an unrated external investment pool and as noted above, the District does not have a formal
investment policy that specifies minimum acceptable credit ratings.

Custodial Credit Risk on Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District’s bank deposits are
covered by FDIC insurance and collateralized by the office of the State Treasurer/Nevada
Collateral Pool.

Investment income has been allocated to funds pursuant to the provisions of NRS 355.170 — 175,
which allow income from investments associated with one fund to be assigned to another fund.
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NOTE 4 — Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and building

improvements
Vehicles and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and building
improvements
Vehicles and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated,
net

Governmental activities capital assets
net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases June 30,2018
$ 1.019.283 § - $ - $ 1.019,283

99,428 - - 99,428
9,923,046 15,378 - 9,938,424
7.382.779 134,128 - 7.516.907

17,405,253 149.506 - 17.554.759
(99,428) - - (99,428)
(5,815,342) (331,332) - (6,146,674)
(6,033.035) (275.307) - (6,308.342)
(11,947.805) (606.639) - (12.554.444)
5.457.448 (457.133) - 5,000.315

$ 6476731 $(457.133) $ - $ 6,019,598
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Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases  June 30,2018

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 30,588 $ - $ - $ 30,588
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 338,550 - - 338,550
Vehicles and equipment 1,360,137 247,021 (216.,740) 1.390,418
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,698,687 247,021 (216.,740) 1,728,968
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (291,153) (13,542) - (304,695)
Vehicles and equipment (586.304) (149.918) 182,113 (554.109)
Total accumulated depreciation (877.457) (163.460) 182,113 (858.804)
Total capital assets, being depreciated,
net 821,230 83,561 (34,627) 870.164
Business-type activities capital assets,
net $ 851.818 $§ 83,561 $ (34,627 § 900,752

Depreciation expense of $606,639 was charged to the public safety function and $163,460 was
charged to Ambulance operations.

NOTE 5 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan:
Plan Description

The District contributes to the Public Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Nevada
(PERS). PERS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’
retirement system which includes both Regular and Police/Fire members. PERS was established by
the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948. PERS is administered to provide a
reasonable base income to qualified employees who have been employed by a public employer and
whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially impaired by age or disability.

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are determined by the
number of years of accredited service at time of retirement and the member’s highest average
compensation in any 36 consecutive months with special provisions for members entering PERS
on or after January 1, 2010. Benefit payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be
entitled under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits.
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Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each
accredited year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this
multiplier is 2.67% of average compensation. For members entering PERS on or after January 1,
2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier and for regular members entering PERS on or after July 1, 2015,
there is a 2.25% factor. PERS offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement
allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee to accept a reduced service retirement
allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional monthly payments to a
named beneficiary after his or her death.

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579.
Vesting

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10
years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or
after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age 62 with
10 years of service, or any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering PERS on or
after July 1, 2015 are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or at age 62 with
ten years of service, or at age 55 with 30 years of service, or any age with 33 1/3 years of service.

Police/Fire members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with
ten years of service, at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of
service. Police/Fire members entering PERS on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement
at 65 with five years of service, or age 60 with ten years of service, or age 50 with twenty years of
service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Only service performed in a position as a police
officer or firefighter may be counted towards to eligibility for retirement as Police/Fire accredited
service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation.
However, a member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a
benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become fully
vested as to benefits upon completion of five years of service.

Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member
contribution rates, is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay
Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution
plans. One plan provides for matching employee and employer contributions, while the other plan
provides for employer-pay contributions only. The District contributes under the employer-pay
contribution (EPC) option.
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Under the Employer-Pay provisions, the contributions made by employers on behalf of employees
are not credited to the member’s PERS account and are not refunded upon termination. For
employees covered by the Employer-Pay provisions, average compensation is increased by half the
total contributions made by the District and may not be less than it would have been if contributions
had been made by the member and the employer separately.

PERS’ basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due.

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required
to fund PERS on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the
required rates established by the Nevada Legislature. These statutory rates are increased/decreased
pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

The actuary funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. It is intended to meet the
funding objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a
percentage of salary.
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the statutory employer/employee matching rates
were 14.50% for Regular and 20.75% for Police/Fire. The employer-pay contribution (EPC) rates
were 28.00% for Regular and 40.50% for Police/Fire.
The District’s contributions were $1,101,370 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
PERS Investment Policy
PERS’ policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by
the PERS Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk

and return needs of the System.

The following was the PERS Board adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017:

Target Long-Term Geometric Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 42% 5.50%
International Equity 18% 5.75%
Domestic Fixed Income 30% 0.25%
Private Markets 10% 6.80%

As of June 30, 2017, PERS" long-term inflation assumption was 2.75%.
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At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability of $15,583,104. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the
District’s share of contributions in the PERS pension plan relative to the contributions of all
participating PERS employers and members. At June 30, 2017, the District’s proportion
was 0.11717%, which was an increase of .00776 from its proportion measured at June 30, 2016.

Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the net pension liability of the District as of June 30, 2017, calculated using
the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate
(6.50%)

1% Increase in

Discount Rate
(7.50%)

Discount Rate
(8.50%)

Net Pension Liability

$23,557,303

$15,583,104

$8,960,407

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the PERS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, available on the PERS website (www.nvpers.org).

Actuarial Assumptions

The District’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate 2.75%
Payroll Growth 5.00% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%
Productivity Pay Increase 0.50%

Projected Salary Increases

Regular: 4.25% to 9.15%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 4.55% to 13.9%, depending on
service

Rates include inflation and productivity increases

Consumer Price Index

2.75%

Other Assumptions

Same as those used in the June 30, 2017 funding
actuarial valuation
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Mortality rates for healthy were based on the Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant
Table projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries.
For ages less than 50, mortality rates are based on the Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Employee
Mortality Tables. Those mortality rates are adjusted by the ratio of the mortality rate for healthy
annuitants at age 50 to the mortality rate for employees at age 50. The mortality rates are then
projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016. Mortality rates for disabled were based on the Headcount-
Weighted RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, set forward four years. Mortality rates for pre-
retirement were based on Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Employee Table, projected to 2020 with
Scale MP-2016. The additional projection of 6 years is a provision made for future mortality
improvement.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the
experience review completed in 2017.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 2017. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer
contributions will be made at the rate specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position at June 30, 2017, was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2017.

Changes in assumptions include changes in the inflation rate and consumer price index from 3.50%
to 2.75%, changes in the investment rate of return from 8.00% to 7.50%, changes in the
productivity pay increase from 0.75% to 0.50%, and changes in the projected salary increases. In
addition, the mortality rates are now based on the Headcount-Weighed RP-2014 Mortality Tables
rather than the RP-2000 Mortality Tables.

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $1,352,477. At June

30, 2018 the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:
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B

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 1,022,567
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 1,033,791 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 101,179 -
Changes in the employer’s proportion and differences

between the employer’s contributions and the employer’s

proportionate contributions 1,163,730 258,758
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,101,370 -

Total $ 3,400,070 $ 1,281,325

Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $1,101,370 related to pensions resulting
from Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2019.

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with
pensions through PERS (active and inactive employees) determined at July 1, 2016 (the beginning
of the measurement period ended June 30, 2017) is 6.39 years.

Other estimated amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2019 $ 70,622
2020 (520,401)

2021 (279,747)
2022 86,303
a 2023 (256,313)
Thereafter (117,839)

Additional Information
Additional information supporting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the Schedule of

Pension Amounts by Employer is located in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links — Publications.
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NOTE 7 - Long-Term Debt:

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Date of Original

Issue Issue Interest Rate
Governmental Activities:
2012 General Obligation (Limited Tax)

Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 12/04/12 3,429,000 2.35%
Medium Term Financing, Series 2013 12/11/13 1,000,000 2.70%
Sales tax refund N/A N/A N/A
Compensated absences N/A N/A N/A

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated absences N/A N/A N/A

Total Long-Term Debt

The annual requirements to amortize outstanding general long-term liabilities, excluding
compensated absences and other post-employment benefits, at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Year Ending General Obligation Medium Term Financing
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2019 $ 336,000 $ 50,924 $ 100,000 $ 15,660
2020 345,000 43,029 100,000 12,960
2021 355,000 34,921 105,000 10,192
2022 366,000 26,578 105,000 7,358
2023 379,000 17,978 110,000 4,455
2024 386.000 9.071 110,000 1.485

$2,167,000 182,501 $ 630,000 52,110

Interest expense of $76,993 was incurred during the 2017-2018 year for long term liabilities.
Compensated absences will be liquidated from the General Fund for Governmental Activities and
from the Ambulance Fund for Business-Type Activities. The General Obligation Revenue Bonds and
the Medium Term Financing will be liquidated from the Debt Service Fund, after transfers from the
General Fund.

The District has pledged 15% of the Consolidated Tax revenue receipts for the repayment of the
General Obligation (Limited Tax) Refunding Bonds, Series 2012. The Bonds are general obligation
(limited tax) bonds additionally secured by the pledged revenue. The total principal and interest
remaining to be paid on the 2012 General Obligation Refunding bonds is $2,349,501 through fiscal
year 2024. The current year principal and interest on the 2012 Refunding Bonds was $389,703 and
the pledged revenue was $574,337.
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Principal Principal

Outstanding Outstanding ~ Due Within

July 1,2017  _Additions Reductions  June 30,2018 _One Year

$ 2,498,000 $ - $ 331,000 $ 2,167,000 $ 336,000

725,000 - 95,000 630,000 100,000

- 155,484 - 155,484 103,656

894,899 767.839 417,624 1,245,114 403,649

4,117,899 923,323 843.624 4,197,598 943,305

74,078 71.434 69.421 76,091 66,308

$4,191,977 $ 994,757 $913,045 $4273,689  $1,009.613
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NOTE 8 — Interfund Transfers:

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Transfers To:

Ambulance
Transfers From: Service Fund
General Fund $ 1,400,000
Capital Projects Fund 167,993

$ 1,567,993

Transfers are used to move revenues from the General Fund to the funds that will expend them in
accordance with the budget and to use unrestricted revenues collected or resources in the General
Fund and Capital Projects Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

NOTE 9 - Risk Management:

The District is exposed, as are all entities, to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; illness and injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The District carries commercial insurance for risks of loss related to property and casualty liabilities.
The District also carries health insurance for all eligible employees.

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

The District has joined together with similar public agencies, under the Nevada Interlocal Cooperation
Act to create an intergovernmental self-insured association for Workers' Compensation insurance, the
PACT. The District pays premiums based on payroll costs to the PACT. The PACT is considered a
self-sustaining pool that will provide coverage based on established statutory limits.

NOTE 10 — Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan (OPEB):
Plan Descriptions

The District contributes to a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan, the North Lake Tahoe
Fire Protection District Health Insurance Benefit Plan (the District’s Plan). The District’s Plan is
administered through the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District OPEB Trust. The measurement
focus of this plan is its net OPEB liability. The District’s Plan will issue a publicly available financial
report, when available. More information can be obtained by contacting the North Lake Tahoe Fire
Protection District business office.
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The District also provides OPEB for certain former employees through the Nevada Public Employees’
Benefits Plan (PEBP), an agent multiple employer defined benefit plan. PEBP is administered by the
State of Nevada, and as such, no assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph
4 of GASB No. 75. The measurement focus of PEBP is the total OPEB liability associated with
participating former District employees. No separate financial reports are issued.

Benefit Provisions and Contributions (District Plan)

Benefit provisions for the District’s plan are established pursuant to NRS 287.023 and can be amended
by the District’s Board of Directors. Benefit provisions for PEBP are established pursuant to NRS
287.023 and subject to amendment through legislation by the State of Nevada, each biennium. The
District’s plan provides medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits to eligible retired District
employees and beneficiaries.

Employees must have at least fifteen years of full-time service to be eligible for benefits and must be
at least 50 years of age. Employees who separate from the District with at least fifteen years of service
may activate this benefit upon attainment of age 50. The District pays the entire cost of retiree health
benefits for retirees, their spouses and their dependent children for employees hired prior to March 1,
2012. The coverage is provided until the employee and/or their spouse attain Medicare eligibility,
and/or the children are no longer dependents as defined by the health insurance plan. For employees
hired on or after March 1, 2012, the District will pay 65% of the premiums for the retiree until they
attain Medicare eligibility.

Under state law, retiree loss experience is pooled with active loss experience for the purpose of setting
rates. The difference between the true premium cost and the blended premium is an implicit rate
subsidy that creates an OPEB cost for the District. The District’s contribution requirements for retirees
relate to the implicit subsidy that results from using the blended rates, as well as the percentage of
pay-as-you-go premiums and is determined in actuarial studies contracted by the District.

Contribution requirements of the District’s Plan may be amended through negotiations between the
District and the employee associations. The contribution to the OPEB Trust is determined by the
collective bargaining agreement and requires a minimum amount of $25,200 be contributed. The
District may contribute additional amounts based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements
and actuarial studies contracted for by the District. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District
contributed $691,366 to the OPEB trust and paid $463,315 in pay-as-you-go premiums to benefit the
District’s Plan.

Benefit Provisions and Contributions (PEBP)

PEBP provides medical, prescription, vision, life and accident insurance, and dental for retirees.
Retirees can choose between a self-funded preferred provider organization (PPO) and a health
maintenance organization (HMO) plan. Retirees are responsible for payment of unsubsidized
premiums. The District is required to provide a subsidy for their retirees who have elected to join
PEBP. Contribution requirements for plan members and the participating employers are assessed by
the PEBP Board annually. The contributions required for PEBP subsidies depends on the date of
retirement and years of PERS service former employees earned in total and while working for the
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PEBP
Increase
(Decrease)
Total OPEB
Liability
Balance as of June 30, 2016 $ 127,903

Changes for the year:

Service cost -
Interest on the total OPEB liability 8,881
Changes of benefit terms -
Differences between actual and
Expected experience with regard to

economic or demographic factors -
Changes of assumptions

Benefit payments (6,178)
Other changes -
Net changes 2,703
Balance as of June 30, 2017 $ 130,606

The OPEB liability of both plans as of June 30, 2017 is $7,385,981.
Sensitivity Analysis

The following presents the OPEB liabilities of the plans, as well as what each plan’s OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.0%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
District's Plan - Net OPEB Liability $ 7,850,404 $ 7,255,375 $ 6,717,390
PEBP - Total OPEB Liability 141,317 130,606 120,922
OPEB Liability $ 7,991,721 $ 7,385,981 $ 6,838,312
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The following presents the OPEB liabilities of the plans, as well as what each plan’s OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower
(7.0% decreasing to 3.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.0% decreasing to 5.5%) than the current

healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
(7.0% (8.0% (9.0%
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to
3.5%) 4.5%) 5.5%)
District's Plan - Net OPEB Liability $ 6,620,242 $ 7,255,375 $ 7,981,231
PEBP - Total OPEB Liability 119,173 130,606 143,672
OPEB Liability $ 6,739,415 $ 7,385,981 $ 8,124,903

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Detailed information about the OPEB plan fiduciary net position will be available in a separately
issued North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District OPEB Trust financial report. The audit of the

OPEB Trust is currently in progress.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB:

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense of $757,133:

District Plan $ 748,252
PEBP 8,881
$ 757,133
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At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

District Plan PEBP
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources

Net difference between
projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments $ - $ 31,853 $ - $ -
Contributions made
subsequent
to measurement date 1,154,681 - 7,125 -
Total $ 1,154,681 $ 31,853 $ 7,125 $ -

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30, District Plan PEBP Total
2019 $  (7,963) $ - $  (7,963)
2020 (7,963) - (7,963)
2021 (7,963) - (7,963)
2022 (7,964) - (7,964)

NOTE 11 — Tax Abatements

Consolidated sales taxes collected in Nevada are partially allocated to local governments in
accordance with the distribution formulas established by Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). The State
of Nevada has entered into various tax abatement agreements which have reduced fiscal year 2018
intergovernmental revenues of the District by $108,661.

State of Nevada Tax Abatements

Aviation Tax Abatement (NRS 360.753) § 3,114
Data Centers Abatement (NRS 360.754) 43,248
Local Sales and Use Tax Abatement* 62,242
Renewable Energy Abatement (NRS 701A.370) 57

*Local Sales and Use Tax is a component of the State’s Standard Tax Abatement (NRS 360.750).
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NOTE 12 — Commitments and Contingencies

There are various lawsuits with property owners disputing the Assessor’s valuation methods used for
property within the Lake Tahoe Basin, which may ultimately impact the District. The outcome of the
disputes is not presently determinable.

NOTE 13 —- Restatements

Adoption of a New Standard

Asof July 1, 2017, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The implementation of this standard replaces the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, and requires governments to calculate and report the
cost and obligations associated with other postemployment benefits other than pensions in their
financial statements, including additional note disclosures and required supplementary information.
Beginning net position was restated to retroactively remove the prior OPEB liability reported under
GASB Statement No. 45 and adopt the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 to report the beginning
OPEB liability and deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made after the
measurement date.

Correction of Errors

During 2018, the District identified misstatements in the June 30, 2017 financial statements related
to the determination or classification of payments to satisfy employee contribution requirements in
the adoption, as of July 1, 2016, of GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — An amendment of
GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No.73. Based on the restated Schedule of Employer Allocations
for GASB 82 implementation provided by the Public Employee’s Retirement System of Nevada
(PERS), the beginning net position was restated as of July 1, 2017 to report the previous overstatement
of the balances reported for deferred outflows of resources (net pension related) at June 30, 2017.

During 2018, the District identified misstatements in the June 30, 2017 financial statements related
to the recognition of receivables due from the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District OPEB Trust.
Based on these misstatements, beginning net position was restated as of July 1, 2017 to report the
previous understatement of the balances reported for accounts receivable at June 30, 2017.

The following summarizes the effect of the restatements:
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018
Business-
Governmental Type General Ambulance
Activities Activities Fund Fund
Net position/fund balance at June
30, 2017, as previously reported $ (1,192,559) $(1,104,944) $8,097,837 $(1,104,944)
GASB 82:
Restatement of deferred outflows
of resources, net pension
related amounts (1,121,890) (197,980) - (197,980)
GASB 75:
Remove previous reported OPEB
liability reported under GASB
Statement No. 45 3,292,375 - - -
Addition of OPEB liability under
GASB Statement No. 75 (7,521,987) - - -

Addition of deferred outflows of
resources related to
contributions made during the
year 723,078 - - -

(3,506,534) - - -

OPEB Trust:
Recognition of amounts due from
the OPEB Trust 252,197 - 252,197 -
Net position/fund balance at July 1,
2017, as restated $(5,568,786) $(1,302,924) $8,350,034 $(1,302,924)

NOTE 14 — Subsequent Events

Effective July 1, 2018, the District entered into a new collective bargaining agreement that changes
the benefits provided for employees on the District’s Retiree Health Benefit Plan. These new
provisions may have a significant impact on OPEB related amounts.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017)

(1 of2)
Budget Amounts 2018 2017
Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Real and personal property $ 8,726,876 $ 8,726,876 $ 8,709,331 $ (17,545) 8,388,660
Intergovernmental:
State shared revenues
Consolidated tax revenue 3,168,380 3,168,380 3,828,914 660,534 3,619,224
AB 104, fair share 593,835 593,835 681,530 87,695 638,005
Federal and state grants - - 458,629 458,629 186,239
3,762,215 3,762,215 4,969,073 1,206,858 4,443,468
Miscellaneous:
Interest 15,000 15,000 82,568 67,568 27,814
Fire suppression reimbursement and other 3,135,707 3,135,707 3,003,947 (131,760) 3,135,962
3,150,707 3,150,707 3,086,515 (64,192) 3,163,776
Total Revenues 15,639,798 15,639,798 16,764,919 1,125,121 15,995,904
EXPENDITURES
Public safety:
Fire:
Salaries and wages 7,001,268 7,001,268 7,045,899 (44,631) 6,463,208
Employee benefits:
Retirement 2,134,008 2,134,008 1,912,353 221,655 1,817,678
Group medical insurance 1,041,338 1,041,338 1,090,464 (49,126) 1,078,034
Retiree medical 722,409 722,409 698,491 23,918 722,878
Industrial insurance 636,291 636,291 509,283 127,008 537,181
Clothing allowance 31,200 31,200 30,148 1,052 26,150
Medicare portion of Social Security 98,981 98,981 100,829 (1,848) 93,285
Unemployment insurance 125,000 125,000 64,284 60,716 114,915
Social Security 38,640 38,640 26,024 12,616 47,866
4,827,867 4,827,867 4,431,876 395,991 4,437,987
Services and supplies:
Utilities 117,197 117,197 98,863 18,334 96,571
Telephone 50,981 50,981 46,239 4,742 46,019
Professional services 284,360 284,360 241,176 43,184 275,581
Membership and meetings 4,448 4,448 4,110 338 7,444
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017)

(2 of 2)
Budget Amounts 2018 2017
Actual Variance with Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Services and supplies (continued):
Training $ 95,422 $ 95422  § 68,175 $ 27,247 $ 45,294
Public education supplies 10,500 10,500 11,127 627) 9,326
Dispatch 231,000 231,000 231,000 - 231,000
District insurance 138,938 138,938 127,433 11,505 114,535
Vehicle repairs and maintenance 221,340 221,340 204,279 17,061 228,799
Equipment supplies 80,836 80,836 66,778 14,058 69,486
Radio and alarm 45,000 45,000 43,854 1,146 24,155
Operational expense 20,674 20,674 11,912 8,762 14,120
Station supplies 10,175 10,175 12,255 (2,080) 14,395
Publications and subscriptions 2,816 2,816 275 2,541 194
Physical fitness 44,250 44,250 27,537 16,713 31,391
Postage 5,200 5,200 4,070 1,130 5,258
Reimbursable expenditures 134,548 134,548 71,278 63,270 253,588
CPR/FACTS 24,000 24,000 30,176 (6,176) 28,760
Employee recognition 12,269 12,269 6,922 5,347 10,407
Office supplies 10,960 10,960 8,548 2,412 12,996
Special clothing and gear 95,275 95,275 51,990 43,285 86,915
Building repairs and maintenance 169,928 169,928 139,859 30,069 225,181
Interest expense 1,250,000 1,250,000 - 1,250,000 -
Real property tax refunds 1,800,000 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 -
4,860,117 4,860,117 1,507,856 3,352,261 1,831,415
Total Expenditures 16,689,252 16,689,252 12,985,631 3,703,621 12,732,610
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (1,049,454) (1,049,454) 3,779,288 4,828,742 3,263,294
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingency (100,000) (100,000) - 100,000 -
Transfers out (1,400,000) (1,400,000) (1,400,000) - (2,134,255)
Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (1,500,000) (1,500,000) (1,400,000) 100,000 (2,134,255)
Net Change in Fund Balances (2,549,454) (2,549,454) 2,379,288 4,928,742 1,129,039
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF :

YEAR, AS ORIGINALLY REPORTED 7,451,193 7,451,193 8,097,837 646,644 6,968,798
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - - 252,197 252,197 -
FUND BALANCES. BEGINNING OF

YEAR, AS RESTATED 7,451,193 7,451,193 8,350,034 898,841 6,968,798
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 4,901,739 $ 4901739  $ 10,729,322 $ 5,827,583 $ 8,097,837
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Changes in the District's OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District Health Benefits Plan (District Plan):

2017
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 250,647
Interest 548,689
Benefit payments (629,708)
Net change in total OPEB liability 169,628
Total OPEB liability - beginning 7,899,306
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 8,068,934
Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions $ 855,108
Net investment income 82,937
Benefit payments (629,708)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 308,337
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 505,222
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 813,559
District Plan net OPEB liability -ending (a) - (b) $ 7,255,375
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability 10.08%
Covered-employee payroll 6,402,732
District's Plan net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 113.32%

Nevada Public Employees' Benefits Plan (PEBP):

2017
Total OPEB liability
Interest $ 8,881
Benefit payments (6,178)
Net change in total OPEB liability 2,703
Total OPEB liability - beginning 127,903
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 130,606

Notes to Schedule:
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75 for PEBP.

The District adopted GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than

Pensions, for the year ended June 30, 2018. Information is not available prior to that time.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of District Contributions - OPEB

Last 10 Fiscal Years

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District Health Benefits Plan (District Plan):

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll

Notes to Schedule:

2017
§ 882,177
855,108
$ 27,069
$ 6,402,732
13.36%

Valuation date: July 1, 2017, rolled backward to June 30,2017

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution amount:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Healthcare inflation rate

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Mortality

Entry Age Normal

Level dollar, open

30 years

Market value

8.0% initial, 4.50% ultimate

Ranges from 14.3% with less than one year of service to 4.6%
with 13 or more years of service

7.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense
RP-2014 Mortaility Tables adjusted to reflect Mortality

Improvement Scale MP-2017 from the 2006 base year,
and projected forward on a generational basis

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75 for PEBP.

The District adopted GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, for the year ended June 30, 2018. Information is not available prior to that time.

The schedule reports information by the fiscal year of the measurement date as that is when information is

available.

46



NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada (PERS)

Last 10 Fiscal Years
2017 2016 2015 2014

District’s portion of net the pension liability 0.11717% 0.10941% 0.11230% 0.10800%
District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $15,583,104 $14,722,931 $12,868,725 $ 11,255,393
District’s covered payroll $ 5,772,945 $ 4,827,941 $ 4,740,506 $ 4,405,244
Districts' proportional share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of its covered payroll 269.93% 304.95% 271.46% 255.50%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 74.42% 72.23% 75.13% 76.31%

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data is
available, the District will present information for only those years for which information is available.

Schedule of the District Contributions - Pension
Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada (PERS)
Last 10 Fiscal Years

2018 2017 2016 2018
Statutorily required contribution* $ 1,103,370 $ 1,051,687 $ 927,603 $ 866,686
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required contributior $ 1,103,370 $ 1,051,687 $ 927,603 $ 866,686
Contribution (deficiency) excess $ - 8 - $ - 3 -
Employer’s covered payroll $ 6,019,370 $ 5,772,945 $ 4,827,941 $ 4,740,506
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 18.33% 18.22% 19.21% 18.28%

GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until ten years of data
is available, the District will present information for only those years for which information is available.

Changes in assumptions include changes in the inflation rate and consumer price index from 3.50% to 2.75%, changes in the
investment rate of return from 8.00% to 7.50%, changes in the productivity pay increase from 0.75% to 0.50%, and changes

in the projected salary increases. In addition, the mortality rates are now based on the Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Mortality
Tables rather than the RP-2000 Mortality Tables.

*All contributions shown reflect employer-paid contributions only. Member contributions are excluded. Prior values are restated

due to GASB No. 82, which classifies contributions as member contributions for the purposes of GASB No. 68 if they are made
by an employer to satisfy what are actually deemed to be member contribution requirements.
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017)

2018 2017
Budget Amount
Original Final Actual Variance Actual
EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal $ 426,000 $ 426,000 $ 426,000 $ - $ 415,000
Interest 76,993 76,993 76,993 - 87,081
Total Expenditures 502,993 502,993 502,993 - 502,081
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (502,993) (502,993) (502,993) - (502,081)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - - 494,182
Net Change in Fund Balances (502,993) (502,993) (502,993) - (7,899)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 502,993 502,993 502,993 - 510,892
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 502,993
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017)

2018 2017
Budget Amount
Original Final Actual Variance Actual
REVENUES
Miscellaneous:
Other $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ - $ 40,000
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 354,474 354,474 149,506 204,968 285,888
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (314,474) (314,474) (109,506) 204,968 (245,888)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - - 340,073
Transfers out - - (167,993) (167,993) (240,581)
Sale of capital assets - - - - 23,757
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - (167,993) (167,993) 123,249
Net Change in Fund Balances (314,474) (314,474) (2717,499) 36,975 (122,639)
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 607,403 607,403 459,615 (147,788) 582,254
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 292,929 $ 292,929 $ 182,116 $ (110,813) § 459,615
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NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
ENTERPRISE FUND - AMBULANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017)

2018 2017
Budget Amount
Original Final Actual Variance Actual
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Public safety:
Ambulance $ 502,157  § 502,157 § 582,744 $§ 80,587 § 584,405
GEMT Cost Settlement - - 180,788 180,788 -
Other 70,725 70,725 717,556 6,831 41,034
Total Operating Revenues 572,882 572,882 841,088 268,206 625,439
OPERATING EXPENSES
Public safety:
Ambulance:
Salaries and wages 822,068 822,068 941,552 (119,484) 837,942
Employee benefits 541,334 541,334 622,848 (81,514) 560,384
Services and supplies 680,452 680,452 507,269 173,183 472,336
Depreciation 82,567 82,567 163,460 (80,893) 121,156
Total Operating Expenses 2,126,421 2,126,421 2,235,129 (108,708) 1,991,818
Operating Income (Loss) (1,553,539) (1,553,539) (1,394,041) 159,498 (1,366,379)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Interest revenue 744 744 610 (134) 807
Gain on sale of capital assets - - 3,871 3,871 1,892
Insurance recovery - - - - 82,943
Grant revenue - - 49,180 49,180 86,736
Total Nonoperating Revenues 744 744 53,661 52,917 172,378
Income (Loss) before Transfers (1,552,795) (1,552,795) (1,340,380) 212,415 (1,194,001)
TRANSFERS
Transfers in 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,567,993 167,993 1,540,581
Changes in Net Position $ (152,795 % (152,795) 227,613 § 380,408 346,580
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ORIGINALLY STATED (1,104,944) (1,451,524)
RESTATEMENT (197,980) -
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED (1,302,924) (1,451,524) .
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ (1,075,311) $ 1,104,944y
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
Incline Village, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
(the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 30, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses we identified a certain deficiency in internal control
that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as Finding
2018-A to be material a weakness.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com
5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F775.689.9299 | EOE
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District’s Response to Finding

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

@M Le7

Reno, Nevada
November 30, 2018
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EideBailly.

CPAs 8 BUSINESS ADVISORS

Auditor’s Comments

To the Board of Directors
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
Incline Village, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District (the District) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, except as noted,
nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the District failed to comply with the specific
requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below. However, our audit was not directed primarily
toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional
procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with the
requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

Current Year Statute Compliance
The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the
year as noted in Note 2 of the accompanying financial statements.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance
The District has arranged for audits of the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District Post-employment
Plan and Trust.

Prior Year Recommendations
The prior year finding 2017-A was corrected.

Current Year Recommendations
The current year finding is included in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses.

éfv,&ﬁuz/urp

Reno, Nevada
November 30, 2018

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com 33
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North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018-A: Accounts Receivable — OPEB Trust
Material Weakness

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Views of Responsible
Officials:

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system
of internal control over financial reporting. Properly reporting receivables is a
key component of effective internal control over financial reporting.

During our testing over transactions involving the North Lake Tahoe Fire
Protection District OPEB Trust (OPEB Trust), we noted that the amounts paid by
the District for retiree premiums on behalf of the OPEB Trust during the six
months ended June 30, 2017 were not being recognized as amounts due from the
OPEB Trust for reimbursement. A similar amount was not recognized at June 30,
2018.

North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District did not have adequate controls in place
to ensure the amounts due from the OPEB Trust were appropriately reflected in
the financial statements.

Prior to adjustment, beginning fund balance/net position in the General Fund and
Governmental Activities, was understated by $252,197. In addition, accounts
receivable was understated in the General Fund and Governmental Activities by
$249,346.

We recommend North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District enhance controls over
amounts due from the OPEB Trust to ensure they are accurately and timely
recorded.

The requirement for financial statements, an audit, and filing tax returns for the
North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District Post-Retirement Plan & Trust, which
was established February 18, 2015, was brought to management’s attention
November 2017 at the completion of the District’s 2016-2017 audit.
Management relies on Eide Bailly for guidance in financial accounting and
reporting requirements and now that management is aware of these requirements
management will ensure enhanced controls are in place.

54
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GREETINGS!

The following pages comprise the Incline Village General Improvement
District {VGID) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018. Our financial records support
what is further proof of a financially sustainable government model,
which IVGID offers the communities of Incline Village and Crystal
Bay.

IVGID's enviable financial condition continues with our increases in
net position, readily available cash, low debt ratio and no unfunded

pension and medical liabilities.

Over the past five years:

e  Our cash position remains adequate while our net investment
in capital assets has increased to $117.3 million.

e Our 2018 expenses have increased entirely due to meeting
service levels for our venues, while remaining on average an increase of 2 percent per year.

e  Our utility revenues have increased to ensure adequate cash flow to not only fund annual operations, but to also fund
future capital improvement needs, especially the effluent pipeline project.

e  Our recreation user fees have been otherwise stable.

e  Our governmental revenues (property tax and combined taxes) are no longer subject to litigation refunds and have been
steady to increasing over the entire period.

e  Our bonded indebtedness has dropped from $1546 to $767 per capita.

e Our total recreation fee cost to the property owners has remained flat over the entire period.

Current Conditions:

e  Our unrestricted net position of $28 million is 400% greater than our total outstanding indebtedness of $7 million.
e  Since 2008, our outstanding indebtedness has dropped from a high of $27.2 million to $7 million.
e  Our outstanding indebtedness is only .8% of our statutory debt capacity.

e Our ratio of debt service to total expenditures has dropped to 5.4%.

Conclusion

Despite this track record of exceptional financial performance, we refuse to rest on our performance so far. We will continue to
endeavor to provide quality service to all of our customers at the lowest cost possible. In addition, we will continue to excel in
financial and capital planning in the most transparent, inclusive manner possible.

I'd like to personally thank our dedicated management staff for all the work that they do throughout the year and in conjunction
with this important document. I'd also like to thank all of our stakeholders: property owners, business owners, residents, guests and
our employees for their continuing support of all of our operations. Togethert, we all play a part in making Incline Village/Crystal
Bay one of the most livable communities in the nation.

Steven J. Pinkerton
General Manager
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November 30, 2018

Citizens of Incline Village and Crystal Bay
Board of Trustees for the Incline Village General Improvement District

The Incline Village General Improvement District (the District) hereby submits our Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (the Report) for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Finance Department publishes the Report to
provide financial and general information about the District to members of the Incline Village/Crystal Bay
community, customers, the investment community, and general public. The data presented is designed to help
readers assess the financial condition of the District and to understand the services that the District provides to the
Incline Village/Crystal Bay community. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability
of the information contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control. Since the
cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable assurance,
rather than absolute assurance, that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

State law requires that each local government publish, within five months of the close of each fiscal year, an annual
audit of all of its financial statements. The audit must be presented at a meeting of the governing body held not
more than 30 days after the report is submitted. Also, the report must be presented in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with United States Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. We hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report of the Incline Village General Improvement District.

The District’s financial statements are audited by Eide Bailly, LLP. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2018, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified opinion that the District's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are faitly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The unmodified Independent Auditors’ Report appears in the Financial
Section.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statement in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with that overview. The District’s MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the District

The District was formed in 1961 in accordance with the State of Nevada’s Revised Statutes, Chapter 318, pertaining
to General Improvement District Law as a body corporate and public and a quasi-municipal corporation in the
State of Nevada. The District is located on the northeast corner of Lake Tahoe, in the Sierra Nevada Mountains,
and occupies a land area of approximately 15.36 square miles and serves a base population of approximately 9,000
residents. In accordance with the enabling legislation, the District provides water, waste water, and solid waste
services within its boundaries, as well as various recreational amenities including downbhill skiing, two golf courses,
a multi-use recreation center, tennis facilities, meeting facilities, parks, recreation programs, beaches, playgrounds
and other recreation-related programming. The District serves approximately 4,200 water/sewer customers,
accommodates over 100,000 skiers, 35,000 golfers, and 170,000 beach users, and oversees a variety of other
activities including over 120,000 visits to the Recreation Center annually.




IVGID’s Vision Statement

With passion for quality of life and our environment, Incline Village General Improvement District will

enhance the reputation of our community as an exceptional place to live, work, invest, and play.

IVGID’s Mission Statement

Incline Village General Improvement District delivers exemplary recreational experiences and provides the

highest level of water, sewer, and solid waste services while striving for fiscal and environmental sustainability.

IVGID’s Value Statement

We are dedicated people providing quality service, for our community and environment, with integrity and

teamwork.

IVGID’s Mantra Statement
One District ® One Team

IVGID’s Long Range Principles

The District adopted a Strategic Plan for July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018. Part of the plan includes six Long
Range Principles. Under the direction of the Board of Trustees and the leadership of the District General Manager,
the Principles align our activities to the strategy of the District. Each Principle addresses objectives over the two
years of the Plan, as well as annual budget initiatives.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT - Initiating and maintaining effective practices of environmental
sustainability for a healthy environment, a strong community and a lasting legacy.
e Review and upgrade District policies and practices to encourage or require waste reduction, recycling
and environmentally preferable purchasing.
e Develop sustainability measures, goals and metrics to create and/or maintain a sustainable District.

e Provide the community with environmental education and technical services on watershed
protection, water conservation, pollution prevention, recycling and waste reduction.

FINANCE - The District will ensure fiscal responsibility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining
effective financial policies for operating budgets, fund balances, and capital improvement and debt management.

e Adhere to Government Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

e Comply with State and Federal regulations.

e Maintain Performance Measurement.

e Report results and demonstrate value.

e Develop and maintain a long term plan to sustain financial resources.

WORKFORCE - Attract, maintain and retain a highly qualified, motivated and productive workforce to meet
the needs of District venues.

e  Staff will evaluate open position job descriptions, for need to fill, level of and related compensation

for the position.

e Re-evaluate, during the budget process, the optimum level of Staff and related total compensation,

necessary to each department based on industry standard and level of service.

e Comply with State and Federal regulations.

e Continue to provide a safe environment and continue to strive for low worker’s compensation

incidents.

e Identify individuals for retention and growth for management succession within the District.
SERVICE — The District will provide superior quality service and value to its customers considering responsible
use of District resources and assets.

e Provide well defined customer centric service levels consistent with community expectations.

e Apply Performance Management to meet or exceed established venue customer service levels.

e  Utilize best practice standards for delivery of services.



e Commit to evaluate customer loyalty/satisfaction to demonstrate the value of results.
e Maintaining customer service training for new, returning and existing employees.
ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE — The District will practice perpetual asset renewal, replacement and
improvement to provide safe and superior long term utility services and recreation activities.
e  Maintain, renew, expand and enhance District infrastructure to meet the capacity needs and desires
of the community for future generations.
e  Maintain, procure and construct District assets to ensure safe and accessible operations for the
public and the District’s workforce.
e  Maintain current Community Service and Public Works master plans.
e Maintain a 5-Year and 20-Year capital improvement plan.
e Conduct planning and design, in advance of undertaking projects or procurement, to ensure new
District assets meet operational requirements and enhance the customer experience.
e Maintain an asset management program leveraging technology, as approptiate by venue/division, to
ensure timely and efficient asset maintenance.
e Comply with regulatory requirements and industry standards.

COMMUNICATION - The District will engage, interact and educate to promote understanding of the
programs, activities, services, and ongoing affairs.

e Promote transpatrency in all areas including finance, operations and public meetings.

e Provide clear, concise and timely information in multiple, publicly accessible formats.

e Ensure that both internal and external communication is responsive, comprehensive and inclusive.

District Management

A five-person elected Board of Trustees, with 4-year terms, governs the District. Every other year, two or three of
the trustee terms expire and are up for election. Upon being elected, the trustees assume office on January 1 or
the first board meeting of the year. The District has benefited from longevity and management experience. The
Senior Management Team is led by District General Manager Steven ]. Pinkerton. The District has made a
commitment to developing strategy that leads to results. It has also continued a commitment for sustainability in
financing for capital assets. The District has made many capital investments out of current resources, along with
paying off bonds utilized to finance improvements. The Facility Fee, which is charged by patcel, is a significant
source for both capital expenditure and debt service for the Community Services and the Beach activities. This fee
has been at the same total for the eight years, but has transitioned more for capital improvement and less for debt
service. The Utility Fund has been increasing its rates for several years in anticipation of a major improvement to
the effluent export pipeline that is several years away from construction.

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Nevada Revised Statutes, which
includes prescribed procedures to establish the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements. On or before
April 15, 2017, the Board of Trustees filed a tentative budget with the Nevada Department of Taxation. Public
hearings on the budget and Facility Fees were held on May 24, 2017. On or before June 1, 2017, the Board adopted
final budget for the year ended June 30, 2018 was filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all funds. Formal budgetary integration in the financial
records is employed to enhance management control during the year for all funds requiring budgets. Budgets are
adopted for all governmental and proprietary fund types. The governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a
modified accrual basis and the proprietary funds type budgets are adopted on an accrual basis. The District can
amend or augment the budget after following State statutes and public hearing procedures. The District did
augment its budget for the Community Services Special Revenue to reflect higher than expected activity for the ski
resort and filed the documents with the State of Nevada.

District Financial Initiatives and Accomplishments
The Board of Trustees establishes policy and direction, within the framework of the District Strategic Plan and its
Long Range Principles. That direction provides initiatives for each budget year. For the year ending June 30, 2018

emphasis continues on developing performance measures, stabilizing planning for capital improvements, and
enhancing communication at many levels. Italso marks the completion of the first plan under our General Manager
which ran from 2015 to 2018. An updated Strategic Plan has been adopted for 2018-2020.



Performance measurement through Fund Accounting Governmental Fund Accounting demonstrates sources and
uses through budgeting and reporting. The District’s parcel owners pay a facility fee that is dedicated to operational,
capital improvement and debt service by functions or activities. By using the Special Revenue, Capital Projects and
Debt Service Fund Types; the District can demonstrate and communicate the relationship of the facility fee paid
to how it was used for these very different types of transactions. Many of the District’s service venues require
substantial capital investment and improvements. Operating statements alone do not represent the true scope of
activity to make services available. This accounting not only provides a record of accomplishment, but allows for
focused planning to meet the strategic objectives of sustainability and capital maintenance.

Utility Rates to Support Infrastructure The District has identified approximately 6 miles of effluent pipeline for

replacement over a series of years. This project is expected to cost at least $15,000,000. This replacement will be
paid for by rate increases over a period of years, rather than debt. Sewer Rates have been increased for several
years to accumulate more resources for this project. Water rates are set to a strictly pay for what you use as a cost
of service. The latest rate increase went into effect in May 2018. Results of the Utility operations exceed budget.
The resources intended for the long term portion of the effluent project, have been invested.

Holding the combined Recreation and Beach Facility Fee at $830 The fiscal year 2017-18 marks the eighth year in
which the combined fee totaled $830. The facility fee revenue was realized as planned.

Minimizing the vear to year changes in the Facility Fee to support capital expenditures Fiscal year 2017-18 also

marks the eighth year for what has become known as “smoothing”. This is an initiative integrated with the 5-year
capital plan, to schedule projects in a way to provide reasonably level amounts for capital expenditure thus avoiding
increases in the total Facility Fee from year to year. The Recreation and Beach Facility Fee is intended to generate
resources for operations, debt service and capital expenditures. The debt service and capital expenditure
components are budgeted based on specific issues and projects. Following the maturity of bond issues, resources
for debt service were directed toward capital improvement. Results of operations for 2017-18 in the Community
Services Special Revenue Fund were over budget. The Community Services Special Revenue fund balance
continues to be evaluated and is expected to be used for several major capital projects that have been identified for
completion in the next three years.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

Located on the northeast shore of Lake Tahoe, Nevada, near the California border in Washoe County, the District's economy
is largely dependent on tourism, centered on summer and winter recreational activities. Due to its location, the region’s
economy is closely tied to the California/San Francisco Bay Area economy. The Reno-Spatks Convention & Visitors Authotity
report at June 2018 indicates the combined room occupancy rate is up 2.6% from last year.

Development within the District is challenged by the availability of parcels for redevelopment. There are
commercial projects planned in Crystal Bay. The preliminary development permits for the projects have been
approved. The scope of the development will be determined by future events. It is anticipated they will have a
positive effect on the area.

Located in Incline Village, Sierra Nevada College (SNC) is Nevada's only private residential four-year liberal arts
college which serves the community at large and those looking for a unique educational experience. The college
has forged a unique partnership with Tahoe Center for Environmental Sciences (TCES). This partnership, between
public and private institutions of higher education in two states, includes Sierra Nevada College, the University of
California, Davis (UC Davis), the Desert Research Institute (DRI) and the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR).

The 2010 census population of 9,087 reflects an 8% decrease since 2000. Of the District’s 7,954 housing units, the
Census reports 3,353 for seasonal recreation use. This is 14% more than the number in 2000. There is no indication
of a change in these factors as of 2018. The median housing value at June 30, 2018 for single family residence and
condo sales for Incline Village and Crystal Bay are $1,197,500 and $557,500, respectfully, representing a 14%
decrease on residence and a 30% increase on condos over last year. For the entire Washoe County the values were
$387,000 and $244,900 respectively. Values in Incline Village and Crystal Bay tend to be more than the general
County because of a strong demand by California buyers looking for a preferred tax address in the Tahoe Basin.

The Reno-Spatks June 2018 unemployment rate of 3.5% and is slightly under the State at 4.7% and is below the
national level at 4%.



Lake Tahoe is known as one of the most beautiful regions in the world and as the largest alpine lake in North
America, it offers an alpine environment untouchable anywhere else. The pristine beauty of Lake Tahoe draws over
three and one-half million visitors annually from around the world. From snow skiing to golfing to boating to
gaming, Lake Tahoe is one of the premier resort destinations, offering visitors countless activities. Additionally,
Incline Village/Crystal Bay offers a spectacular and serene mountain neighborhood for property owners.

The 2004 Legislature passed Assembly Bill 489 to provide property tax relief which provides a partial abatement
of taxes by applying a 3% cap on the tax bill of the owner’s primary residence and a higher cap on the tax bill of
other properties beginning with the 2005/2006 tax roll in Washoe County. For the fiscal year 2017-2018 the
abatement was $380,953, based on State of Nevada Department of Taxation formulas. The pre-abated Ad Valorem
levy was $1,918,003.

Beginning in 2010, the District has had a portion of its property tax settlements offset to settle a court ordered tax
refund by Washoe County. The General Fund was able to meet this obligation while maintaining service levels
while the refund was completed. Over the course of four years the total offset was approximately $1,200,000. A
new action has been taken to the NV Supreme Court and Washoe County District Court to decide if another round
of refunds should be ordered. A decision has not been reached, nor is the outcome and possible affected
determinable as of June 30, 2018.

Budget augmentation, application of budget contingency and other budget reconciliations

The District approves a budget for each fiscal year by completing Form 4404LGF as prescribed by the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation Local Government Finance. Preparation of this form set includes prescribed
account titles and allowable levels of detail. This form set in essence creates a Budgetary Basis accounting and
presentation. To provide adequate financial planning, the District’s approach to the budget includes an
evaluation in more detail of the flow of resources for both governmental and business-type activities. This
results in the District budgeting for capital expenditure and debt service in the enterprise funds, similar to
governmental type funds. The District has presented additional schedules to reconcile basic financial statement
presentations with information included in Form 4404LGF for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

The District has leased its two golf cart fleets for a number of years. The 80 cart fleet for the Championship
Course was replaced ahead of the 2017 season. The Board of Trustees voted to buy the fleet outright, when it
had been budgeted to be leased. This required an augmentation in March 2017 to utilize fund balance. The
Community Services Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds were amended for the $448,000 expenditure.

As a result of a late season surge in visits at the ski resort, the District’s skier visits far exceed budget. A budget
augmentation was adopted June 13 which increased Community Service Special Revenue Fund revenues by
$850,000 and expenditures by $370,000. This augmentation was largely focused on setting expenditures at a
proper level to be in compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes.

The District budgeted contingency in the General and Special Revenue Funds. None of the contingency was
used for 2017-18.

The same record snow conditions that helped the results at the 2016-2017 ski resort also caused additional
maintenance costs for many other venues to recover from the 2016-17 winter which is being called
snowmageddon. These conditions continued to have consequences into the 2017-18 fiscal year by added costs to
the culvert capital improvement project.

The District has been engaged in a lawsuit for over five years that received a final order, which was then
appealed. Legal costs of the appeal were not budgeted. The majority of those costs were incurred in prior fiscal
years.



Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Incline Village General Improvement District for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This was the eighteenth year that
the District has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must
satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
Incline Village General Improvement District
Incline Village, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Incline Village General
Improvement District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

What inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidebailly.com

5441 Kietzke Ln., Ste. 150 | Reno, NV 895112094 | T775.689.9100 | F 775.689.9299 | ECE



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary
comparisons for the General Fund, Community Services Special Revenue Fund, and Beach Special
Revenue Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 12 through 20 and the schedule of employer required contributions on
page 56, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of American, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods or preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, individual fund schedules
including budgetary comparisons, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The individual fund schedules including budgetary comparisons are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the individual fund schedules including budgetary comparisons are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30,
2018 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

@M VP

Reno, Nevada
November 30, 2018

11



Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

As management of the Incline Village General Improvement District (District), we offer readers of the District’s financial statements
this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Incline Village General Improvement District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, financial statements, and notes to the financial statements to gain a more complete picture of
the information presented.

Financial Highlights

Weather continues to play a key role in financial performance of the District. The Community Services ski venue had a late season
surge in visits that resulted in additional revenue and costs to require a budget augmentation. A normal golf season allowed both
courses to work on programming and the use of dynamic pricing to improve their revenue realization. The Championship golf
course experienced an increase in food and beverage activities mote so than golf rounds. The beach season had above average
attendance. The Ultility services had an average year for their flows. Overall the District still maintains a healthy financial condition
for liquidity, operations and capital management. The District continues to meet its financial obligations and provide setvices to the
community at large. Maintaining the care and condition of infrastructure is a high priority for all venues. The Utility Fund continues
to build resources for a future Effluent Pipeline Project, while executing the preliminary study and design.

June 30, 2018 Fiscal Year Highlights Based on Government-wide Financial Statements:

e The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities, at the close of the most recent fiscal year, by $146 million (net position).
Of this amount, $28 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations.

e  The District’s net position increased $5.4 million. A significant portion will serve to provide resources for future capital
projects.

e  The General Fund’s ending fund balance is at $2.5 million.
e  The governmental activities included depreciation of $3.3 million while making investments in capital assets of $4.2 million.

e  The District retired $1.7 million in bond principal during the year. This included the maturity of the 2008 Medium Term
Recteation Bond.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements which consists of the
following:

e  Government-wide financial statements
e  Fund financial statements
e Notes to the financial statements
This report also contains other Supplementary Information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District finances in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as et position. Over time, increases or decreases, in net position, may serve as useful indicator
of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. For
example, the vacation wages liability recognizes a current cost while payment is in the future.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

(continued)

Both of the government-wide financial statements (INez Position and Statement of Activities) distinguish functions of the District that are
principally supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenue and charges for services (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their cost(s) through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activity of the District includes the administration by the General Fund, recreation and internal service activities. The business-type
activities of the District include utility activities that reflect enterprise operations where a fee for service typically covers all or most of
the costs of operations including depreciation and debt service.

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial related legal
requirements, hence, the principal role of a fund is to demonstrate fiscal accountability. All of the funds of the District can be divided
into two categories: governmental and proprietary.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statement, the governmental fund financial statement focuses
on near-term inflow and outflow of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of government funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statement, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this compatison between governmental funds and governmental activities. The District
maintains multiple governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund financial statements for the
General Fund, Community Services Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Services Funds, and the Beach Special Revenue,
Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds.

The District adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. For the other governmental funds similar
comparisons are provided elsewhere in the report.

Proprietary funds. The District operates two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented in business-type activities in the government-wide statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for its Utility
Fund. Internal Service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the District’s vatious
functions. The District uses an internal service fund to account for its maintenance of its fleet of vehicles, buildings maintenance, and
engineering functions. The District internal services fund also accounts for the Workers Compensation function. Each department
pays for coverage based on its payroll costs. Workers Compensation serves the entire District and uses these chatges, rather than
costs being allocated by department. The Internal Service Fund is classified as governmental-type activities in the government-wide
statement since the governmental funds are the most substantial users of these services.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
supplementary information concerning the District. There are individual fund schedules, providing budget to actual comparisons.
These schedules indicate compliance with budgetary constraints and management directives to enhance accountability at the fund
and function level. The State of Nevada Department of Taxation, Local Government Division, has a prescribed format for budget
data. The supplementary information reports actual results according to that format and terminology. The District has prepared a
schedule for its Multi-Employer Retitement Plans. Statistical information is provided on a five or ten-year basis, as available, for
trend and historical analysis. This information addresses a number of the major revenue sources of the District including the

Recreation and Beach Facility Fee.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

(continued)

Governmental-wide Financial Analysis

Net position is a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The District’s assets exceeded liabilities by $146 million at June
30, 2018. The largest portion of net position (80%) reflects net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment,
construction in progress less accumulated depreciation and bonds that are still outstanding). The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; therefore, they are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets is reported
net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets cannot be used

to liquidate these liabilities.

Incline Village General Inprovement Dis trict

Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities To tal
Assets 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and Otherassets $ 13,170,824  § 11,263,386 $ 8,435236 $ 10,028,628 $ 21,606,060 $ 21,292,014
Long Term and Net capitalassets 64267411 63,665,605 73,258,166 69,722,084 137,525,577 133,387,689
Total Assets 77,438,235 74,928,991 81,693,402 79,750,712 159,131,637 154,679,703
Liabilities
Current liabilities 4,631,434 5,240,470 2,306,442 1,973,031 6,937,876 7,213,501
Long-term liabilities 1,491,016 1,854,347 4,608,926 5,118,604 6,099,942 6,972,951
To tal Liabilities 6,122,450 7,094,817 6,915,368 7,091,635 13,037,818 14,186,452
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflo ws 242,019 36,218 - - 242,019 36,218
Net Position
Netinvestement in capitalassets 52,880,021 50,729,901 64,377,397 59,817,845 117,257,418 110,547,746
Restricted 183,037 180,564 309,344 305,022 492,381 485,586
Unres tricted 18,010,708 16,887,491 10,091,293 12,536,210 28,102,001 29,423,701

Total Net Position

$ 71,073,766

$67,797,956

$74,778,034

$72,659,077

$ 145,851,800

$ 140,457,033

Incline Village General Inprovement Dis trict
Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities To tal
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges forservices $ 20278250 $ 22,177,127 $ 1,925,557  § 1,813,169 $ 32,203,807 $ 33,990,296
Operating grants 17,000 18,440 - - 17,000 18,440
Capital grants and contributions 558,128 113,615 199,934 425,509 758,062 539,124
GeneralRevenues:

Ad valorem tax 1,546,575 1,476,148 - - 1,546,575 1,476,148
Consolidated tax 1,637,250 1,484,830 - - 1,637,250 1,484,830
FacilityFees 6,771,522 6,749,251 - - 6,771,522 6,749,251
Unrestricted investment earnings 175,122 83,842 77,280 60,132 252,402 143,974
Other 190,578 310,429 50,020 17,730 240,598 328,159

Total Revenues 31,174,425 32,413,682 12,252,791 12,316,540 43,427,216 44,730,222
Expenses

General Government 3,828,917 3,814,458 - - 3,828,917 3,814,458

InternalServices 3,056,400 3,107,668 - - 3,056,400 3,107,668

Utility - - 10,253,834 9,883,961 10,253,834 9,883,961

Community Services 19,043,639 18,599,633 - - 19,043,639 18,599,633

Beach 1,849,659 1,802,103 - - 1,849,659 1,802,103

Total Expenses 27,778,615 27,323,862 10,253,834 9,883,961 38,032,449 37,207,823
Tansfers In (Out) (120,000) - 120,000 - - -
Changes in Net Position 3,275,810 5,089,820 2,118,957 2,432,579 5,394,767 7,522,399
Beginning Net Postion 67,797,956 62,708,136 72,659,077 70,226,498 140,457,033 132,934,634

Ending Net Postion

$ 71,073,766

$67,797,956

$74,778,034

$72,659,077

$ 145,851,800

$ 140,457,033
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Governmental activities increased the Districts’ net position by $3,275,810. The majority of this increase is attributed to an

Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2018

(continued)

excellent operating season for the District’s ski resort.

Total governmental activity revenue overall decreased year-on-year in the area of charges for services. The record year in 2017 for the
ski resort was not expected to be repeated. Sales and consolidated taxes, mostly comprised of business and vehicle tax, and increased
year-on-year. These combined taxes come through an allocation of state-wide collections. Ad valorem taxes saw an increase. During
2005, the Nevada Legislature passed a law to provide property tax telief (Assembly Bill 489) which provided a partial abatement of
taxes by applying a 3% cap on the tax bill of the owner’s primary residence and a higher cap on other properties beginning with the
2005/2006 tax roll in Washoe County. As of July 1, 2017 that abatement has a value of $380,953 as a reduction of othetwise eligible
ad valorem taxes for the current fiscal year. The decrease in Charges for Services is attributed to the ski resort and while we continue

to see increases for banquets and events at the Championship Golf Course.

The District ski resort budgets its operations on 110,000 skier visits. For 2017-18 the resort had 120,847 visits. The added usage
resulted in revenue exceeding the original budget by over $887,000. Though some expenses also increased by $323,000, many costs
are fixed and the resulting increased results flows to fund balance. By comparison, the Community Services Special Revenue Fund

for 2017 was about $3.8 million in revenue over budget for the ski resort operations alone, from 160,613 skier visits.

Incline Village General Improvement District Governmental Activities Revenues

2018 2017
Property taxes $ 1,546,575 5% $ 1,476,148 5%
Combined taxes 1,637,250 5% 1,484,830 5%
Charges for Services -Community Service 14,726,788  47% 16,820,165  52%
Charges for Services - Beach 1,266,613 4% 1,065,015 3%
Charges for Services - Internal Services 4,284,849 14% 4,291,947 13%
Facility Fees - Community Services 5,799,206 19% 5,973,914 18%
Facility Fees- Beach 972,316 3% 775,337 2%
Operating Grants 17,000 0% 18,440 0%

Capital Grants

The facility fee, assessed on parcel owners, is the most stable of the revenue streams for the District. The facility fee is assessed by the
District for recreation and beach privileges and is collected by Washoe County Assessor’s office through the real property quarterly
billing process. For 2017-18 the District assessed $5,776,770 in recreation facility fees and $969,500 in beach facility fees. The shift to

558,128 1% 113,615 1%

the Beach Fund was to provide more resources for future capital expenditure.

IVGID Facility Fees

District
Per Eligible Parcel Total Assessment Roll Assessed
Fiscal Community Community Recreation
Year Beach Services Beach Services Facility
2017-18 $ 125§ 705 $969,500  $ 5,776,770  $6,746,270
2016-17 100 730 774,400 5,972,860 6,747,260
2015-16 100 730 774,300 5,972,130 6,746,430
2014-15 100 730 774,300 5,971,400 6,745,700
2013-14 100 730 773,800 5,967,750 6,741,550
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Incline Village General Improvement District
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(continued)

Total governmental activities include the General Fund which provide District wide administration, Internal Services, and Recreation
and Beach programming, capital projects and debt service. Expenditures in the General Fund increased year on year primarily
related to Information Technology and Human Resources while Accounting was reduced from less staff. Internal services decreased
reflecting higher service levels while having a reduced cost in Work Comp because of claim liability changes. Recreation and Beach
programming reflect higher costs based on similar increase in service demand, while also increasing wages to houtly staff.

Incline Village General Improvement District

Governmental Activities Functional Expenses

2018 2017
Manager $ 355,012 $ 348,022
Trustees 176,450 168,718
Accounting 833,348 933,328
Information Services 820,658 689,500
Risk Management 127,032 128,644
Human Resources 597,875 527,667
Health & Wellness 24 594 22,966
Community & Employee Relations 188,682 233,073
Administration 462,552 551,749
Depreciation 242714 210,791
Total General Government $ 3,828,917 $ 3,814,458
Fleet 1,045,987 1,063,578
Engineering 751,111 767,712
Buildings Maintenace 909,796 880,746
Works Compensation 349,506 395,632
Total Internal Services $ 3,056,400 $ 3,107,668
Championship Golf $ 4,724,811 $ 4,633,645
Mountain Golf 1,165,185 1,002,359
Facilities 626,149 660,214
Ski 8,230,147 8,010,232
Recteation and Community Programming 2,564,677 2,547,383
Parks 1,063,374 1,062,086
Tennis 281,020 312,779
Recreation Adminsitration 388,276 370,935
Total Community Services $ 19,043,639 $ 18,599,633

Total Beach

$ 1,849,659

$ 1,802,103
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(continued)

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased their net position by $2,118,957, including $199,934 in Capital Grants.
This is less than the prior year’s $2,432,579 for the same activity, with $425,509 in Capital Grants. The Utility Fund has little
fluctuation from year to year in its units of service. The Utility Fund received $120,000 from the Internal Service Fund for a change
in the Work Comp claims liability. It continues to build added resources for a major capital project on the effluent pipeline.

Capital expenditures were $7,037,423 while depreciation expense was $2,973,632. Principal reduction on bonds was $495,761.

Financial Analysis at the Fund Level
The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on current inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance of $2,298,079 may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year. At the end of the fiscal year, the District’s General Fund balance increased to $2,522,786, with $224,707 non-spendable.

The District’s recreational programming is conducted under two activities; they are Community Services and Beach. As a result of
a deed restriction, a distinct constituency is served by the Beach fund and thus its inflows and outflows are measured separately to
demonstrate compliance. The Community Services Special Revenue Fund Balance increased to $10,645,469. This includes the
$645,000 received from the Internal Service Fund for discontinued Work Comp self-insured claims liabilities. The Beach Special
Revenue Fund Balance increased to $1,413,091 including $35,000 from the Internal Services Fund also for the change in Work
Comp claims liability.

Budgets are adopted for all governmental funds on a modified accrual basis. The focus of this basis is to capture transactions based
on current financial resoutces. Increases and decreases in financial resources are recognized only to the extent that they reflect near-
term inflows or outflows of cash.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund functional expenditures performed better to budget by $506,604. Savings occurred in Information Services because
of staff vacancies, in communications because of reduced contract setvices than planned, and in capital expenditure by cancelling a
$100,000 system upgrade. General Fund actual expenditures has increased slightly over the prior year.

Community Services Special Revenue Budgetary Highlights

Community Services cover a variety of venues. After several years of weather challenges the ski resort experienced record levels in
consecutive years for attendance and revenue in 2016 and 2017. 2018 was budgeted to be average but did experience a late season
surge to be over budget. This resulted in over $887,000 in additional revenue while only incurring just over $323,000 in additional
costs. Our golf courses saw a stable level of play and our banquets and events grew by over $50,000. The Parks and Recteation
venues saw stable use. A substantial schedule of capital projects were begun during the year. Of that, over $2,346,000 will have to
be carried over, and is reflected in Fund Balance.

Beach Budgetary Highlights

The District’s beach venues saw stable levels of use. The water levels on Lake Tahoe have also remained stable. The Beach is
independent of other operations and has sought to increase its resources for capital projects. The Beach Study identified a number
of possibilities. More definitively is an upcoming repair to a pool.

Proprietary funds: The District’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail by fund. The District’s proprietary funds consist of Utllities and Internal Services.
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Utility Budgetary Highlights

The net assets for the Utility Fund increased $2,118,957 for the year. Ultilities increased rates about 3% to cover its costs of service
and to continue to facilitate building resources for the effluent pipeline replacement project.

The Utility Fund saw a year on year increase in expenses mainly for personnel.
Internal Services Budgetary Highlights

Internal Setvices had a balance of charges and costs, however each was increased over the prior year with additional personnel in
both Fleet and Engineering. Workers Comp decreased because of the effects of entering into a Loss Transfer and Assumption
agreement which allowed the District to liquidate its claims liability from past years when it was under a self-insured program for
$98,000 less. However, that action allowed for the fund to release its retention reserve. Therefore $800,000 was returned as excess
resources to the operating funds which had paid in to the program over a period of years from 1992 to 2013. Another $300,000 is
budgeted to be returned in the next fiscal year. Readers may refer to Note 20 for more details on the changes to the Work Comp
Loss Transfer and Assumption Agreement.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Incline Village General Improvement District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities, as of June 30, 2018 amounts to $124,217,038 (net of accumulated depreciation). Investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, and recreation facilities. Readers desiring more information,
with respect to capital asset activity, should see Note 4 to the financial statements.

Incline Village General Improvement District Capital Assets, Net

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land - Governmental Activities $ 16,971,753 $ 16,904,036 $ - 3 - $ 16,971,753 § 16,904,036
Contruction in Progress - Governmental Activities 2,755,328 1,841,242 - - 2,755,328 1,841,242
Land - Utility Activities - - 6,715,544 6,715,543 6,715,544 6,715,543
Construction in Progress - Utility Activities - - 4,151,041 4,519,884 4,151,041 4,519,884
Buildings and Improvements 846,899 846,899 - - 846,899 846,899
Equipment and Vehicles 1,591,187 1,501,075 - - 1,591,187 1,501,075
Internal services equipment furniture and fixtures 263,912 246,777 - - 263,912 246,777
Utility service infrastructure - - 108,626,081 105,000,108 108,626,081 105,000,108
Utility buildings and improvments - - 15,166,010 11,900,859 15,166,010 11,900,859
Utility equipment, furniture and fixtures - - 3,721,984 3,483,937 3,721,984 3,483,937
Community services buildings and improvements 58,884,392 57,644,669 - - 58,884,392 57,644,669
Community services equipment, furniture and fixtures 11,613,546 10,637,543 - - 11,613,546 10,637,543
Beach buildings and improvments 4,861,698 4,722,020 - - 4,861,698 4,722,020
Beach equipment, furniture and fixtures 510,786 472,861 - - 510,786 472,861

Total Cost 98,299,501 94,817,122 138,380,660 131,620,331 236,680,161 226,437,453
Accumulated Depreciation (43,578,464) (41,045,874) (68,884,659) (66,188,122) (112,463,123) (107,233,996)
Capital Assets, Net $ 54,721,037 $ 53,771,248 $ 69,496,001 $ 65,432,209 $ 124,217,038 $ 119,203,457

The major capital asset events during the fiscal year was completion of an Equipment Storage Building, continuing pre-design efforts
for the effluent pipeline, and culvert repairs.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total bonded debt outstanding of $6,966,604. Of that
amount, $5,620,116 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the District. The actual source for repayment is service
revenues. The remainder of the District debt, $1,346,488 represents bonds secured solely by specified utility revenue sources. The
2008 Recreation Bond matured June 2018.
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Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Beginning New Principal Ending

Balance Issues Paid Balance

Governmental Type Activities:

Bonds Payable;

Recreation Revenue Supported  § 3,035,000  §
Business Type Activities:

1

$ 1,187,000 $ 1,848,000

Bonds Payable;
Utility Revenue Supported 5,614,365 - 495,761 5,118,604
Total $ 8,649,365 $ - $ 1,682,761 $ 6,966,604

Readers desiring more information, with respect to the District’s debt, should see Note 8 to the financial statements.

The District may borrow money and incur or assume indebtedness as provided in Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 318, Section

2717, so long as the total of all such indebtedness (but excluding revenue bonds and special assessment bonds) does not exceed an

amount equal to 50 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of taxable property.

The District holds a Moody’s rating which was last determined to be Aal on our limited tax general obligation bonds.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The District’s primary revenue sources are from service charges from users. These come mostly in two forms as amounts
charged at the point of setvice delivery and a standby charge paid by parcel owners to suppott the availability of services.
The standby charge, also known as the Facility Fee, is determined annually by venue to support its operations, capital
expenditure and debt service. The District has adopted a multi-year Strategic Planning process. Along with that, we
continue to look at capital expenditure and debt service planning, five to twenty years ahead.

Weather impacts demand for golf and ski and, to a much smaller extent, water and sewer charges based on the choice of
residents and visitors to spending time in our community. The several years of drought have affected the beach and ski
resort. With a more normal weather pattern, we look forward to less fluctuation year to year. A major initiative is to look
at summer usage of the ski resort. A regulatory review of those possibilities has begun. The general economy and
discretionaty spending has been considered during the budget process. Anticipated user levels are revisited each yeat to
assess probable service demands.

Beginning with the 2009-10 fiscal year, the Utility Rate structure was evaluated by the Board one year at a time. For 2009-
10 the Board decided on no increase in rates. This was applied to both the operating and capital component of rates. Rate
increases were implemented for the 2010-17 fiscal years. These increases were for additional costs and to provide resources
for the construction of the now completed Burnt Cedar Water Disinfection Plant Upgrade and the planned replacement
project for several miles of our effluent pipeline. The design of that project is ongoing and the major construction is
expected between 2017 and 2020.

Parcel Owner user rates are based on market data and operating needs of the community activities as determined during
budget preparation and adopted by the Board of Trustees.
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e Personnel cost comprised 38% of annual expenditures. The 2017-18 budgeted for base wages and salaries, and benefits to
increase including a 3% wage increase, and 10% for health benefits rates and to those covered and increased staffing for
increased service levels.

e In these economic times employee retention is a key to the success of the District. The District continues to seck a balance
of market forces and its economic realities with the benefits of longevity and employee institutional knowledge. Though
many employees are part time we strive to have them move from venue to venue or season to season.

Request of Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all interested parties. Questions
concerning the information provided in this report ot request for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Director of Finance, 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada, 89451. This report will also be available on the District's
website at www.yourtahoeplace.org.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,637,857 $ 2,770,355 $ 6,408,212
Shortt term investments 7,229,953 3,994,061 11,224,014
Receivables:
Acounts receivable, net 73,017 1,189,596 1,262,613
Interest on investments 53,847 26,111 79,958
Taxes and Fees from Washoe County 52,411 - 52,411
Grant receivable 412,483 127,668 540,151
Due from other governments 471,945 - 471,945
Inventoties and supplies 622,240 155,982 778,222
Prepaid items 617,071 171,463 788,534
Long term investments 9,121,318 3,452,821 12,574,139
Restricted assets:
Temporatily restricted investments 425,056 309,344 734,400
Capital assets:
TLand 16,971,753 6,715,544 23,687,297
Construction in progress 2,755,328 4,151,041 6,906,369
Buildings, Structures, Improvements, Infrastructure,
Equipment and Vehides, net of accumulated depredation 34,993,956 58,629,416 93,623,372
Total assets 77,438,235 81,693,402 159,131,637
LIABILITIES
Acounts payable 1,009,483 861,273 1,870,756
Acrued personnel costs 1,470,185 323,481 1,793,666
Acarued interest payable 13,859 68,492 82,351
Due to other governments 69,504 - 69,504
Unearned revenue 1,718,403 543,518 2,261,921
Noncutrent liabilities:
Due within one year 350,000 509,678 859,678
Due in more than one year 1,491,016 4,608,926 6,099,942
Total liabilities 6,122,450 6,915,368 13,037,818
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow 242,019 - 242,019
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 52,880,021 64,377,397 117,257,418
Restricted Investments by Third Party Agreement 183,037 309,344 492,381
Unrestricted 18,010,708 10,091,293 28,102,001
Total net position $ 71,073,766 $ 74,778,034 § 145,851,800

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 3,828,917 $ 1,094,000 $ - $ - $ (2,734,917) - $ (2,734,917)
Community Services 19,043,639 14,726,788 17,000 558,128 (3,741,723) - (3,741,723)
Beach 1,849,659 1,266,613 - - (583,046) - (583,040)
Internal Services 3,056,400 3,190,849 - - 134,449 - 134,449
Total governmental-type activities 27,778,615 20,278,250 17,000 558,128 (6,925,237) - (6,925,237)
Business-type activities:
Utilities 10,253,834 11,925,557 - 199,934 - 1,871,657 1,871,657
Total primary government $ 38,032,449 $ 32,203,807 $ 17,000 $ 758,062 (6,925,237) 1,871,657 (5,053,580)
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,546,575 - 1,546,575
Combined taxes 1,637,250 - 1,637,250
Fadlity Fees 6,771,522 - 6,771,522
Unrestricted investment earnings 175,122 77,280 252,402
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 79,083 50,020 129,103
Miscellaneous revenues 111,495 - 111,495
Transfers In (Out) (120,000) 120,000 -
Total general revenues and transfers 10,201,047 247,300 10,448,347
Changes in net position 3,275,810 2,118,957 5,394,767
Net position - beginning 67,797,956 72,659,077 140,457,033
Net position - ending $ 71,073,766 74,778,034 $ 145,851,800

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018
COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH TOTAL
SERVICES SPECIAL SERVICES CAPITAL SERVICES DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SPECIAL REV. REVENUE CAP. PROJECTS PROJECTS DEBT SERV. SERVICE FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 3,174,585 $ 11,689,289 $ 1,539,550 $ 2,610,032 $ 101,701 $ 51,553 $ 4,606 $ 19,171,316
Acounts receivable, net - 73,017 - - - - - 73,017
Interest receivable on investments 19,962 32,107 1,778 - - - - 53,847
Grants receivable - 1,417 - 411,066 - - - 412,483
Due from other governments 321,385 132,019 18,541 - - - - 471,945
Inventories - 532,842 - - - - - 532,842
Prepaid items 224,707 335,758 47,075 - - - - 607,540
Restricted deposits 242,019 78,157 1,000 - - - - 321,176
Total assets $ 3,982,658 $ 12,874,606 $ 1,607,944 $ 3,021,098 $ 101,701 $ 51,553 $ 4,606 $ 21,644,166
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Aaounts payable $ 125,533 $ 367,682 $ 34,445 $ 292,268 $ 15,961 $ - $ - $ 835,889
Adaxued personnel costs 1,032,308 269,979 23,989 - - - - 1,326,276
Due to other governments 60,000 - 9,504 - - - - 69,504
Unearned revenue 12 1,591,476 126,915 - - - - 1,718,403
Total liabilities 1,217,853 2,229,137 194,853 292,268 15,961 - - 3,950,072
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Deferred Inflow 242,019 - - 401,353 - - - 643,372
Fund balance
Non-spendable 224,707 868,600 47,075 - - - - 1,140,382
Restricted Deposits by Third Party Agreement - 78,157 1,000 - - - - 79,157
Committed - 9,698,712 1,365,016 - - - - 11,063,728
Assigned - - - 2,327,477 85,740 51,553 4,606 2,469,376
Unassigned 2,298,079 - - - - - - 2,298,079
Total fund balance 2,522,786 10,645,469 1,413,091 2,327,477 85,740 51,553 4,606 17,050,722
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 3,982,658 $ 12,874,606 $ 1,607,944 $ 3,021,098 $ 101,701 $ 51,553 $ 4,606 $ 21,644,166

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position that are not induded in the Governmental ]

Balance Sheet (because):
Total Fund Balance for Governmental Activities (page 22)

General Fund:
Taxes that are collectible beyond 60 days, and therefore
are recognized as receivable.

Capital Assets, net of acumulated depredation, and are not finandal
resources, and therefore are not reported in that fund

Community Services Fund:
Fees that ate collectible beyond 60 days, and therefore

are recognized as teceivable.

Capital Assets, net of acumulated depredation, and are not finandal
resources, and therefore are not reported in that fund

Acrued interest, not to be liquidated from currently

available resources
Capital Grants in Deferred Inflows due to collection beyond 60 days

Long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable, ate not due and payable
in the cutrent petiod, and therefore are not reported in that fund

Unamorttized Bond Discount, for the remaining bond liability, and
therefore not teported in the fund

Beach Fund:
Fees that are cllectible beyond 60 days, and therefore
are recognized as receivable.

Capital Assets, net of acumulated depredation, and are not finandal
resources, and therefore are not reported in that fund

Acued interest, not to be liquidated from currently

available resources

Long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period, and therefore are not reported in that fund

Unamorttized Bond Discount, for the remaining bond liability, and
therefore not reported in the fund

Internal Services Fund:
Total Net Position of this fund, as it is reported as a governmental
activity since a majority of the services are consumed by the
governmental -type activities (page 29)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 17,050,722

10,925

3,359,913
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH TOTAL
SERVICES SPECIAL SERVICES CAPITAL SERVICES DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SPECIAL REV. REVENUE CAP. PROJECTS PROJECTS DEBT SERV. SERVICE FUNDS
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,524,623 - - $ - $ - $ - - 1,524,623
Personal Property Tax 12,671 - - - - - - 12,671
Intergovernmental:
Consolidated taxes 1,388,529 - - - - - - 1,388,529
Local Government Tax Act 248,721 - - - - - - 248,721
Services - 20,220 - B - - - 20,220
Charges for Serviaes - 14,632,554 1,266,613 - - - - 15,899,167
Interfund Services - 74,014 - - - - - 74,014
Fadlity Fees - Operations - 1,759,641 657,842 - - - - 2,417,483
Fadlity Fees - Capital Expenditure - 2,700,842 301,833 - - - - 3,002,675
Fadlity Fees - Debt Service - 1,309,499 7,739 - - - - 1,317,238
Operating Grants - 17,000 - - - - 17,000
Capital Grants - - - 156,775 - - - 156,775
Investment income 89,960 69,303 2,288 - - - - 161,551
Miscellaneous 2,033 109,462 - - - - 111,495
Total revenues 3,266,537 20,692,535 2,236,315 156,775 - - - 26,352,162
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Manager 355,012 - - - - - 355,012
Trustees 176,450 - - - - - 176,450
Acounting 833,348 - - - - - 833,348
Information Services 820,658 - - - - - 820,658
Risk Management 127,032 - - - - - 127,032
Human Resources 597,875 - - - - - 597,875
Health & Wellness 24,594 - - - - - 24,594
Community & Employee Relations 188,682 - - - - - 188,682
Administration 462,552 - - - - - 462,552
Central Services Cost Alloation Income (1,094,000) - - - - - (1,094,000)
Capital Outlay 113,813 - - - - 113,813
RECREATION
Championship Golf - 4,055,702 - - - - - 4,055,702
Mountain Golf - 972,171 - - - - - 972,171
Fadlities - 448,797 - - - - - 448,797
Ski - 7,024,327 - - - - - 7,024,327
Community Programming and Recreation Center - 2,232,105 - - - - - 2,232,105
Parks - 818,298 - B - - - 818,298
Tennis - 228,530 - - - - - 228,530
Recreation Administration - 357,498 - - - - - 357,498
Beach - - 1,619,746 1,619,746
Capital Outlay - - - 3,905,926 221,248 - - 4,127,174
Debt Service
Prindpal - - - - - 1,181,494 5,506 1,187,000
Interest - - - - - 103,846 731 104,577
Total expenditures 2,606,016 16,137,428 1,619,746 3,905,926 221,248 1,285,340 6,237 25,781,941
Exaess revenues (expenditures) 660,521 4,555,107 616,569 (3,749,151) (221,248) (1,285,340) (6,237) 570,221
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Sale of Capital Assets 16 85,562 857 1,980 - - - 88,415
Transfers In (Out) - Fadlity Fees for Capital Expenditure (2,700,842) (301,833) 2,700,842 301,833 - -
Transfers In (Out) - Fadlity Fees for Debt Service (1,309,499) (7,739) 1,309,499 7,739 -
Transfers In (Out) - From (for) Other Sources (305,000) 35,000 950,000 - - 680,000
Net change in fund balance 660,537 325,328 342,854 (96,329) 80,585 24,159 1,502 1,338,636
Fund balance, July 1 1,862,249 10,320,141 1,070,237 2,423,806 5,155 27,394 3,104 15,712,086
Fund balance, June 30 $ 2,522,786 10,645,469 1,413,091 $ 2,327,477 $ 85,740 $ 51,553 4,606 $ 17,050,722

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities are different because the Governmental Funds account for

a flow of resources while the Statement of Activities is on a full accrual basis of accounting:

Total Net Change in Fund Balance for Governmental Funds (page 24 )

General Fund:

Taxes for periods through June 30 that are collectible, but
received after August 30, 2017.

Capital Assets acquired during the year and capitalized
Unallocated depredation expense for the fiscal year
Net book value of assets sold

Community Services Fund:

Beach Fund:

Fadlity Fees for periods through June 30 that are collectible, but
received after August 30, 2017.

Capital Assets acquired during the year and capitalized

Depredation expense for the fiscal year

Net book value of assets sold

Capital Grants in Deferred Inflows due to collection beyond 60 days
Prindpal paid on long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable
Interest accrued versus paid
Amortize Bond Premium for fiscal year

Amortize Bond Discount for fiscal year

Fadlity Fees for periods through June 30 that are wllectible, but
received after August 30, 2017.

Capital Assets acquired during the year and capitalized
Depredation expense for the fiscal year

Net book value of assets sold

Prindpal paid on long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable
Interest accrued versus paid

Amortize Bond Discount for fiscal year

Internal Services Fund:

Total Change in Net Position of this fund, as it is reported as a governmental

activity since a majority of the services are consumed by the
governmental -type activities page (30)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 1,338,636
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113,813
(242,714)
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29,224
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(2,823,174)
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221,248
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,537,050 $ 1,537,050 $ 1,524,623 $ (12,427)
Personal Property Tax 12,000 12,000 12,671 671
Intergovernmental:
Consolidated Tax 1,363,510 1,363,510 1,388,529 25,019
Loal Government Tax Act 216,000 216,000 248721 32,721
Investment earnings 36,000 36,000 89,960 53,960
Miscellaneous 3,600 3,600 2,033 (1,567)
Total revenues 3,168,160 3,168,160 3,266,537 98,377
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Manager 380,220 380,220 355,012 25,208
Trustees 215,977 215,977 176,450 39,527
Acaounting 850,951 850,951 833,348 17,603
Information Services 948,571 948,571 820,658 127,913
Risk Management 142,404 142,404 127,032 15,372
Human Resources 570,070 570,070 597,875 (27,805)
Health and Wellness 46,708 46,708 24,594 22,114
Communictions 307,055 307,055 188,682 118,373
Administration 465,764 465,764 462,552 3,212
Central Services Cost Allocation Income (1,094,000) (1,094,000) (1,094,000) -
Capital Outlay 278,900 278,900 113,813 165,087
Total expenditures 3,112,620 3,112,620 2,606,016 506,604
Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures 55,540 55,540 660,521 604,981
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of aapital assets - - 16 16
Contingency (120,000) (120,000) - 120,000
Total other finandng sources (uses) (120,000) (120,000) 16 120,016
Net changes in fund balance (64,460) (64,460) 660,537 724,997
Fund balance, July 1 1,837,533 1,837,533 1,862,249 24,716
Fund balance, June 30 $ 1,773,073 $ 1,773,073 $ 2,522,786 $ 749,713

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Charges for Services
Championship Golf $ 3,687,462 $ 3,687,462 $ 3,763,372 75,910
Mountain Golf 683,670 683,670 632,261 (51,409)
Fadlities 358,225 358,225 355,696 (2,529)
Ski 8,268,215 9,118,215 9,155,646 37,431
Community Programming and Recreation Center 1,266,772 1,266,772 1,289,953 23,181
Parks 54,400 54,400 48,910 (5,490)
Tennis 167,500 167,500 145,197 (22,303)
Recreation Administration (510,000) (510,000) (758,481) (248,481)
Subtotal Chatges for Services 13,976,244 14,826,244 14,632,554 (193,690)
Fadlity Fees - Operations 1,761,710 1,761,710 1,759,641 (2,069)
Fadlity Fees - Capital Projects 2,704,020 2,704,020 2,700,842 (3,178)
Fadlity Fees - Debt service 1,311,040 1,311,040 1,309,499 (1,541)
Intergovernmental Services 31,100 31,100 20,220 (10,880)
Interfund Services 91,000 91,000 74,014 (16,9806)
Operating Grants 17,000 17,000 17,000 -
Investment income 48,000 48,000 69,303 21,303
Miscellaneous - other 86,400 86,400 109,462 23,062
Total revenues 20,026,514 20,876,514 20,692,535 (183,979)
EXPENDITURES
COMMUNITY SERVICES RECREATION:
Championship Golf 3,868,494 3,868,494 4,055,702 (187,208)
Mountain Golf 1,035,767 1,035,767 972,171 63,596
Fadlities 497,074 497,074 448,797 48,277
Ski 6,701,155 7,071,155 7,024,327 46,828
Community Programming and Recreation Center 2,314,961 2,314,961 2,232,105 82,856
Parks 850,849 850,849 818,298 32,551
Tennis 278,428 278,428 228,530 49,898
Recreation Administration 428,446 428,446 357,498 70,948
Total expenditures 15,975,174 16,345,174 16,137,428 207,746
Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures 4,051,340 4,531,340 4,555,107 23,767
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In 645,000 645,000 645,000 -
Sale of assets - - 85,562 85,562
Contingency (475,000) (475,000) - 475,000
Operating Transfers (Out) - Capital Projects (5,604,020) (5,604,020) (3,650,842) 1,953,178
Operating Transfers (Out) - Debt Service (1,311,040) (1,311,040) (1,309,499) 1,541
Total other finandng sources (uses) (6,745,060) (6,745,060) (4,229,779) 2,515,281
Net changes in fund balance (2,693,720) (2,213,720) 325,328 2,539,048
Fund Balance, July 1 9,835,803 10,320,141 10,320,141 -
Fund balance, June 30 $ 7,142,083 $ 8,106,421 $ 10,645,469 2,539,048

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BEACH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Charges for Services
Beach $ 1,023,200 $ 1,023,200 1,266,613 $ 243,413
Fadlity Fees - Operations 659,260 659,260 657,842 (1,418)
Fadlity Fess - Capital Projects 302,484 302,484 301,833 (651)
Fadlity Fees - Debt service 7,756 7,756 7,739 (17)
Investment earnings 9,000 9,000 2,288 (6,712)
Total revenues 2,001,700 2,001,700 2,236,315 234,615
EXPENDITURES
BEACH RECREATION:
Beach 1,680,389 1,680,389 1,619,746 60,043
Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures 321,311 321,311 616,569 295,258
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of aapital assets - - 857 857
Contingency (50,000) (50,000) - 50,000
Operatign Transfers In 35,000 35,000 35,000 -
Operating Transfers (Out) - Capital Projects (327,484) (327,484) (301,833) 25,651
Operating Transfers (Out) - Debt Service (7,756) (7,7506) (7,739) 17
Total othet finandng sources (uses) (350,240) (350,240) (273,715) 76,525
Net changes in fund balance (28,929) (28,929) 342,854 371,783
Fund Balance, July 1 1,037,000 1,037,000 1,070,237 33,237
Fund balance, June 30 $ 1,008,071 $ 1,008,071 1,413,091 $ 405,020

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investements
Acoounts receivable
Interest receivable
Grants receivable
Inventoties
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Nonaurrent assets:
Investments - long-term
Contractual deposits
Restricted deposit for debt service reserve
Restricted for TRPA Deposits
Restricted State of Nevada Work Comp Deposit

Capital Assets
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and structures
Improvements and Infrastructure
Equipment and vehides
Total capital assets
Less: acumulated depredation
Total capital assets (net)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Acounts payable
Aarued personnel costs
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt
Total aurrent liabilities

Non-aurrent liabilities:
Non-airrent long term debt

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted Deposits by Third Party Agreement

Unrestricted

Total net position

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business - type

Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility Internal

Fund Services Fund
$ 6,764,416 817,812
1,189,596 -
26,111 -
127,668 -
155,982 89,398
171,463 9,531
8,435,236 916,741
3,452,821 -
100 -
219,626 -
89,618 -
- 103,880
3,762,165 103,880
6,715,544 -
4,151,041 -
15,166,010 -
108,626,081 -
3,721,984 263,912
138,380,660 263,912
(68,884,659) (174,443)
69,496,001 89,469
73,258,166 193,349
81,693,402 1,110,090
861,273 173,595
323,481 143,909
68,492 -
543,518 -
509,678 -
2,306,442 317,504
4,608,926 -
6,915,368 317,504
64,377,397 89,469
309,344 103,880
10,091,293 599,237

$ 74,778,034 792,586




INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Business - type

Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility Internal
Fund Services Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and fees $ 11,748,009 $ -
Interfund services 177,548 3,190,849
Total operating revenues 11,925,557 3,190,849
OPERATING EXPENSES
Wages and benefits 3,622,220 1,926,387
Cost of goods sold 20,613 -
Setrvices and supplies 1,974,478 747,196
Defensible Space 95,229 -
Central Services Cost 297,000 -
Insurance 184,537 348,886
Utilities 842,777 10,173
Professional fees 102,886 13,439
Depredation 2,973,631 10,319
Total operating expenses 10,113,371 3,056,400
Operating income 1,812,186 134,449
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 77,280 13,571
Gain (loss) on sales of assets 50,020 3,182
Interest on bond debt (140,463) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (13,163) 16,753
Income before transfers and contributions 1,799,023 151,202
Transfer In (Out) 120,000 (800,000)
Capital Grant Contributions 199,934 -
Changes in net position 2,118,957 (648,798)
Total net position, July 1 72,659,077 1,441,384
Total net position, June 30 $ 74,778,034 $ 792,586

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from austomets and users
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net ash provided (used) by

operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer (to) from other funds

Net ash provided (used) by non-capital

finandng activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of apital assets
Proceeds (costs) from sale of assets
Payments on apital debt

Capital contributions

Interest expense

Net cash provided (used) by capital

and related finandng activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Restricted investments released (inareased)
Investments purchased
Long-term investments sold
Investment earnings

Net aash provided (used) by
investing activities
Net change in cash

and ash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1

Short term investments

Cash, ash equivalents and investments, June 30

32

Business - type

Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility Internal
Fund Services Fund
$ 11,635,957 $ -
177,548 3,190,849
(3,196,345) (1,139,596)
(3,616,1406) (2,025,871)
5,001,014 25,382
120,000 (800,000)
120,000 (800,000)
(7,037,423) (26,719)
50,020 3,182
(495,761) -
72,266 -
(147,372) -
(7,558,270) (23,537)
(4,322) (1,452)
(2,750,000) -
6,050,000 999,367
115,650 11,992
3,411,328 1,009,907
974,072 211,752
1,796,283 606,060
3,994,061 -
$ 6,764,416 $ 817,812

(Continued)



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Business - type

Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility Internal
Fund Services Fund
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating
activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 1,812,186 $ 134,449
Non-cash adjustments -
Depredation 2,973,631 10,319
Increase (decrease) in cash from changes in:
Aaounts receivable (121,011) -
Inventory (14,107) (23,7406)
Prepaid expenses 23,912 4,458
Acounts payable 311,370 (614)
Acarued personnel costs 6,074 (99,484)
Unearned revenue and aistomer deposits 8,959 -
Total adjustments 3,188,828 (109,067)
Net ash provided (used) by operating activities $ 5,001,014 $ 25,382

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - INDEX

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

>

Reporting Entity

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

The Incline Village General Improvement District (the “District”) operates under provisions of the
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), Chapter 318. Under the law, this General Improvement District
has been granted authority by Washoe County to provide water, sewer and solid waste services, and
recreational facilities and programs for the benefit of individuals owning property or residing within
its geographical boundaries. The unincorporated rural areas of Incline Village and Crystal Bay,
Washoe County, Nevada are within these boundaries.

The District is governed by a board of five publicly elected trustees. The District is not included in
any other governmental reporting entity. The District is a legally separate government and it is
fiscally independent of any other governmental entity. The District is not financially accountable
for any other entity.

Basic Financial Statements - Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the District.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column is
presented on a consolidated basis, and is reflected on a full accrual, economic resource basis that
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The
District’s net position is reported in three parts —net investment in capital assets, restricted; and
unrestricted.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include charges to customers who receive a
direct benefit from goods or services. Grants and contributions are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a function. General revenues reflect items that are not
included as either program revenue or grants and contributions. The Statement of Activities
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and grants.

Basic Financial Statements - Fund financial statements

The financial transactions of the District ate reported in individual purpose based fund financial
statements. Hach fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Separate financial
statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. The District has no
fiduciary funds. Major funds for each fund type are presented as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting — Fund financial statements

The measurement focus describes the types of transactions and events that are reported in a fund’s
operating statement. Basis of accounting refers to the timing of revenues and how
expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement
focus applied.
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the close of the fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when the liability is
incurred as under the accrual basis of accounting.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administration and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met. The Proprietary funds
utilize the accrual basis of accounting,.

The District’s internal services are presented in the proprietary fund’s financial statements. The
principal users of Internal Services (Fleet, Engineering and Buildings) are the District’s utility and
recreation program fund activities. Another internal service provides Workmen’s Compensation
benefits to all funds. Each activity pays premiums based on its payroll to provide resources for the
coverage. The actual benefit is provided by purchasing a fully insured program from the Nevada
Public Compensation Trust. All Internal Services are considered a governmental - type activity for
the Government-wide financial statements. The majority of utilization of internal services is by the
Utility Fund, Community Services and the Beach funds. The effect of inter-fund activity has not
been eliminated from the Government-wide financial statements.

The District uses the following funds (all considered Major):
Governmental Funds -

General Fund - is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund’s primaty
function is to provide general administration for all other functions.

Community Services — providing recreation to approximately 8,200 parcel owners, their guests
and visitors.

- Special Revenue Fund — operation of golf, event facilities, downhill skiing, recreation and
fitness programs, parks and tennis

- Capital Projects Fund — capital projects related to recreation functions

- Debt Service Fund — debt service related to recreation functions

Beach — providing beach, picnic areas, boat launching and swimming pool programs to
approximately 7,700 parcel owners and their guests.

- Special Revenue Fund — operations of beach functions
- Capital Projects Fund — capital projects related to beach functions

- Debt Service Fund — debt service related to beach functions
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Proprietary Funds -

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations of the District’s
Utility Departments. Utility Fund — providing water, sewer, trash and recycling services to
approximately 4,100 customers.

Internal Service Funds — The Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department to other departments of the District. The District provides
Fleet, Engineering, and Buildings Maintenance which includes repair and maintenance of the
District’s vehicles and equipment, engineering services, and buildings maintenance. The District
has Worker’s Compensation that provides a combination of resources for prior claims and
purchases current coverage for benefits. The Fleet, Engineering and Buildings Maintenance
Departments also collectively provide planning, inspection, construction and maintenance for the
District’s structures and equipment. The Worker’s Compensation Department provides District—
wide worker’s current period compensation coverage of benefits through a government risk pool
and holds a reserve for claims incurred prior to July 1, 2013.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Chapter 354 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes, which includes the following major procedures to establish the budgetary data
reflected in these financial statements.

1. On or before April 15, 2017, the Board of Trustees filed a tentative budget with the Nevada
Department of Taxation. Public hearings on the tentative budget were held after the third Monday
in May. On May 24, 2017, at a public hearing, the Board adopted a final budget. On or before June
1, 2017 the final budget was filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation.

2. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) for all funds. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records is employed to enhance
management control during the year for all funds requiring budgets. Budgets are adopted for all
governmental and proprietary fund types. The governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a
modified accrual basis and the proprietary funds types budgets are adopted on an accrual basis.
The District can amend or augment the budget after following State Statutes and, if necessary,
public hearing procedures. The District did augment its budget for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

3. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Appropriations are adopted at the
function level. Management has no amendment authority without the District’s Board approval.
Generally the expenses in the proprietary funds also may not exceed appropriations. Management
is free to change the operating budgets of the proprietary funds but in practice rarely does so.
Statutes do not require that enterprise fund capital outlay, debt service payments and other non-
operating cash transactions, normally reflected in the balance sheet of the proprietary funds, to be
limited by the budget.

4. The District also presents select cash flow information in order to reflect all resources being used
to provide for capital outlay, debt service payments and other transactions particularly in
proprietary funds. This supplemental disclosure allows the District to identify the extent of current
yeat items that are being paid from previously funded resources. The presentation includes items
according to character and object. It also provides the Nevada Department of Taxation with
requested information that compares to amounts reported on their budget forms.
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F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash-on-hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition
that are held for routine expenditures.

District Funds share bank accounts for operations, payroll and reimbursements. Activity between
funds occurs in the regular activities of the District. The General Fund issues accounts payable and
payroll and related benefits for all funds. To the extent payment has not occurred, but the cost was
realized by the benefitted fund, internal balances for Due from or to Other Funds are established.
These are cleared monthly through pooled cash. The combined pooled balances ate monitored to
assure no fund makes temporary loans to another, within the context of Nevada Revised Statute
354.6118.

Short term investments reflect items held with maturities within one year. These are predominantly
certificates of deposit and agency issues. These provide funds for capital projects.

Long-term investments reflect items held with maturities beyond one year. These include
certificates of deposit and instruments issued by the Federal Government or its agencies.

Nevada Revised Statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government or
U.S. Treasury, providing maturities are 10 years or less from the date of purchase; the local
government investment pool (LGIP) (operated by the Nevada State Treasurer); negotiable
certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or insured savings and loans; short-term
negotiable notes or bonds issued by local governments; and bankers' acceptances eligible by law for
rediscount with the Federal Reserve Banks not to exceed 180 days.

The District’s Investments are stated at fair value as of the reporting date. These are categorized
using fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based in the valuation inputs used to measute the fair value
of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs: Level 3 are significant unobservable inputs.

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018:
U. S. Agencies securities are valued at quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
Certificates of Deposits valued at quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
G. Receivables

Property taxes are levied no later than July 10 of each year on property values assessed for the same
year. The taxes may be paid in four installments as follows: the first installment is due on or
before the third Monday in August, the second installment is due on or before the first Monday in
October, the third installment is due on or before the first Monday in January, and the fourth
installment is due on or before the first Monday in March. If payment of the taxes is not made
within ten days following the day the installments become due, penalties are assessed in accordance
with NRS 361.483. Once the installments become delinquent, interest is added at the rate of 10
percent per annum. Taxes levied become a perpetual lien against the property assessed until the tax
and any penalty charges and interest which may accrue thereon are paid. Washoe County assesses
the property tax, bills, collects, and distributes the property tax revenue.

Accounts receivable reflects service charges to customers and resident for deposits or fees that are
earned, but not collected. An allowance for doubtful accounts is considered and at present, the
allowance totals $3,832. The District may file a tax lien for uncollected utility service fees.

38



The District has been granted resources to finance the construction of various utility infrastructures
and restoration of a creek zone. These funds are earned when requisite construction costs are
incurred. The District has recognized funds earned but not collected by a Grants Receivable. The
District also has an operating grant from Washoe County, received monthly in arrears. The
uncollected balance of this grant is carried in Due from other governments.

The District receives certain tax revenues in the General Fund which are collected the by the State
of Nevada. These settlements arrive within 60 days of the month close when they are generated.
The amounts are listed as Due from Other Governments.

Inventory and Prepaid Items

There are no inventories in the General Fund. Inventories for Community Services Special
Revenue and Proprietary Funds are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Costs
are recognized under the consumption method as items are used or resold.

Certain payments are made to vendors for costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are
recognized under the consumption method when used.

I. Restricted Assets

The District has restricted several deposits for the benefit of other agencies in connection with
performance under a retail operation, construction, debt service and providing workers
compensation benefits. These agencies establish the restriction by regulation or agreement.

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, or water rights which are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. If purchased or constructed, all capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at acquisition value as of the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized. Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets (all categories except land and
construction in progress) is charged as an expense against each fund’s operation. The District’s
policy is to capitalize assets with a normal useful life of three or more years.  The District holds
4,272 Acre Feet of Water Rights. This represents about 1,405,000,000 gallons. Currently these
costs are included in Land. The District’s historical records cannot identify the cost of water rights.

Activities of the General Fund include District administration, accounting and finance, information
systems and technology, human resources, risk management, the General Managet’s office,
Communications and the Board of Trustees. The land, buildings, furniture and equipment,
including technology assets, represent items used in common by all of the activities of the General
Fund at the District’s administrative office. The computers and technology represent equipment of
the Information Systems & Technology (IST) department that services the needs of the entire
District. These assets are presented as a part of government-wide net assets.

Activities of the Community Services Special Revenue Fund include two 18-hole golf courses, a
large and small meeting facility, a ski resort, a recreation center, parks, tennis center, a skateboard
park and green spaces. Venue improvements includes the cost of developing program ready
locations.

Utility capital assets include traditional distribution lines, tanks, pumps and treatment. However,
since the District is located in the Lake Tahoe Basin, the number of pumps, tanks and export lines
is increased due to the requirements to manage in a mountainous and environmentally sensitive
area.
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The District has a number of Construction in Progress items since the fiscal year falls in the middle
of the active acquisitions season. It is the nature of major projects to span multiple fiscal periods.
The District accumulates costs through a series of pre-design, design and acquisition stages.

Interest is capitalized for assets used in business-type activities funded by debt.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of the various assets using the
straight-line method. Estimated lives and capitalization thresholds of major classes of depreciable
assets are as follows:

Asset Category Depreciable Life Capitalization
Threshold

Buildings and Structures 30 - 50 years $10,000
Improvements and Infrastructure 10-50 years $10,000
Equipment and Vehicles 3-20 years $ 5,000

With its location within the Lake Tahoe Basin, Defensible Space is an important function for the
District. This is generally accomplished through contracts with the North Lake Tahoe Fire
Protection District which serves essentially the same geographic area as the District. Defensible
Space expenditures range from clearing the understory to major tree removal and fuels reduction.
The goal of the program is to create a “halo” around the community restricting the movement of
wildfire in or out of the community. The substance of those efforts removes vegetation and other
fuels as they accumulate. The degree of work in any given area rotates over time based on
conditions as assessed by the Fire District. Much of the funding for the effort comes from other
governments on a Federal, State and local level. The IVGID contribution is focused on treatment
of District owned parcels. The District budgets to provide resources for its share of contracted
expenditures. The work provides an ongoing benefit, but the District expenses all costs as
incurred.

Amortization of Bond Discounts and Premiums

The discounts or premiums on bonds sold are being amortized to expense over the term of the
bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of related discounts and premiums.

Compensated Absences and Accrued Personnel Costs

Full-time employees are provided vacation benefits that specifically relate to tenure with the
District. After six months of service, employees are entitled to their vested vacation leave upon
termination. The liability for vacation benefits is recognized with an expenditure or charge to the
appropriate fund and activity as earned.

The District pays payroll every two weeks. Any District payroll earned as of month end is accrued
based on the number of days attributed to that month to the total 14 days paid with the next
scheduled payroll. Liabilities for fringe benefits and other costs, such as taxes, are also accrued on
the same method.

The District had adopted a Risk Management Program prior to July 1, 2013 that included a self-
insured workman’s compensation benefits. The District remains liable under Statute for those
claims. After June 30, 2013 these benefits are covered by membership in an insurance pool.

The District has adopted a plan under which certain retirees, who have met specific service
requirements, can roll unused sick leave pay to cover medical expenses after retirement. Otherwise
sick leave is not vested.
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M.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that will applies to a future period(s) and will
not be recognized as an outflow of resoutces (expense/expenditure) untl then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
of deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Unearned Revenue and Refundable Deposits

The District’s Utility Fund reads meters over 3 cycles over the coutse of a month. A portion of
each billing is in advance for services rendered. Billing occurs once a month. Billings in advance
are held in until recognition the next cycle when they are also reconciled with actual usage.

The District’s Community Services Fund recognizes unearned revenue to the extent it has issued
user passes, gift or payment cards that can be applied to future purchases. There also are advance
deposits made to reserve dates for facility rentals or program registrations. User passes expire with
each season.

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide financial statement, and proprietary fund financial statements, long term
debts are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or
proprietary fund statements net of related discounts or charges. Bond discounts are amortized
using the straight-line method. Bond premiums are being amortized using the effective interest
method. All are amortized over the term of the related debt.

P. Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds are reported in
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on how amounts can be spent. These
include “non-spendable’ which are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventory or
prepaid items, “restricted” by conditions of law, regulation grants or contract with external parties,
“committed” which arise from acts of the District’s Board, “assigned” which reflect an intent by
management of the District or “unassigned” which is the residual amount. The committed fund
balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Board of
Trustees is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District, which can act by their
resolution, prior to the end of the fiscal year, and thus commit fund balance. Once adopted, the
limitation imposed by the Board of Trustees remains in place until a similar resolution is taken to
remove or revise the limitation.

An assigned fund balance can be specified by the District’s General Manager.

The District’s Board of Trustees has adopted a policy and practice statement on the Appropriate
Level of Fund Balance.

The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities then unrestricted
resources, as they are needed when amounts are available for the same use. The District first
utilizes committed resources as authorized, then assigned and then unassigned when amounts are
available for the same use.
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Q. Net Position

In the fund and the government-wide financial statements, net position is presented in one of three
classifications. Net investment in capital assets, restricted and the residual unrestricted. The net
investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances on bonds that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. The restricted component of net position consists of
restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets. The unrestricted component of net
position is the net amount of assets and liabilities not included in the determination of net
investment of capital assets or the restricted component.

R. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

S. Central Services Cost Allocation

The District allocates the shared costs of Accounting and Human Resources based under a plan
which considers wages, benefits, full time equivalents and certain services and supplies as a basis
for determining charges. The charges are based on budgeted expenses. The revenue generated by
the allocation is recorded as a separate line item from the expense category.

T. Punch Cards Utilized

Under District Ordinance 7, parcel owners may use a portion of the value of their recreation passes
to pay down the difference between a regular rate and the resident rate for certain types of
recreational fees. These forms of payment are presented as contra revenue in the Fund statements.
Utilization is recognized based on the relationship of privileges used to total facility fee paid by the
parcel. Under the 2017-2018 fee structure, this is 85% to Community Services Special Revenue
Fund and 15% to the Beach Special Revenue Fund.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS
2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

At year-end, the carrying amount of the District’s checking deposits was $2,913,075 while the bank balance
was $2,850,508. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance Coverage
and the balance was covered by pledged collateral under an arrangement with the State of Nevada on behalf
of all local units of government.

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2018 consist of:
Operating Checking Accounts $2,913,075
Petty cash and change funds 71,360
Nevada Local Government Investment Pool
(average weighted maturity of 142 days)

General LGIP Account 2,992,689
US Government Money Market 431,088
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $6,408,212
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A portion of the District’s investments are placed with Wells Fargo Bank as custodian in the US
Government Money Market, where fair value is determined by multiplying the number of trading units
held, by the quoted market value on that date.

The District is a voluntary participant in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP),
which has regulatory oversight from the Board of Finance of the State of Nevada. The District’s investment
in the LGIP is equal to its original investment plus monthly allocation of interest income, and realized and
unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 355.170) set forth acceptable investments for Nevada local governments.
The District has adopted a formal investment policy that meets those limits and maturities for its
investment choices. Essentially those investments are brokered certificates of deposit and government
agencies.

The District categorizes its fair value measurements for investments within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used
to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs.

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2018: Level 1 Level 2 Total
Certificates of Deposit $ 13,891,588 $ - $13,891,588
US Agencies 9,906,564 - 9,906,564
Total Interest Bearing Amounts $23,798,152
Investment Maturities by type as of June 30 are:
2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
Certificates of Deposit  $6,979,102 $1,736,797 $5,175,690 $ - $13,891,589
US Agencies 4,244 912 5,420,467 - 241,185 9,906,564
Subtotal interest bearing 23,798,153
Restricted Deposits 486,206 - - - 486,206
All Investment Types $ 24,284,359

Investment Maturities by Activity as of June 30, 2018:

Governmental Business- Type
Activities Activities Total
Short term $ 7,229,953 $ 3,994,061 $11,224,014
Long term 9,121,318 3,452,821 12,574,139
Restricted 176,862 309,344 486,206
Total Investment Types $ 16,528,133 $ 7,756,226 $24,284,358

Interest Rate Risk - To the extent possible, the maturities of securities held within District portfolios shall
be closely matched to the District’s cash flow requirements for day to day operations, planned capital
projects and unknown future contingencies.

Credit Risk — The District’s Investment Policy is based on the Uniform Prudent Investors Act and Nevada
Revised Statutes 355.170 (NRS). The NRS authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the U.S.
Government or U.S. Treasury, providing maturities are 10 years or less from the date of purchase; the local
government pooled investment fund; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or
insured savings and loans; short-term negotiable notes or bonds issued by local governments; and bankers'
acceptances eligible by law for rediscount with the Federal Reserve Banks not to exceed 180 days.
Diversification of the District’s investments is guided by the Uniform Prudent Investors Act.
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Custodial Credit Risk — The District Investment Policy requires FDIC coverage or collateralization on
deposit-type securities. The District's cash accounts on deposit with financial institutions were covered by
federal depository insurance and are collateralized by the Office of the State Treasurer/Nevada Collateral
Pool.

Concentration Credit Risk — The District Investment Policy calls for diversification without setting
maximum allocations. The District invests in Federal government-sponsored enterprises (GSE) for safety
and to meet statutory requirements. All of these agencies have been rated Aaa by Moody’s. The District’s
GSE holdings are approximately 42% of total investments. Individual CD’s are held with a number of
banks at or under the FDIC insured limited calculated by those institutions. LGIP is an unrated external
investment pool administered by the State Treasurer, with oversight by the State of Nevada Board of
Finance.

3. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The State of Nevada requires a deposit for sales tax collection and electronic filing of $6,075, for a retail
location in non-District owned premises.

On September 13, 2017 the District’s Board of Trustees approved a settlement agreement relative to
ongoing litigation with a member of the public. Under this agreement, damages awarded by the Washoe
County District Court are held in a segregated account in the District’s name until the Nevada Supreme
Court Appeal is completed. The amount of the deposit was $241,646 and now stands at $242,019.

The assets of the EPA State Revolving Fund (SRF) Reserve may be used to service the Nevada SRF Sewer
Bond of 2002. These restricted assets are pledged to provide a measure of security for the Nevada State
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The pledge is for $213,000, interest earned is in the account at
the District’s discretion. The EPA SRF Reserve is in the LGIP Account totaling $219,626. The assets in
the TRPA (Tahoe Regional Planning Authority) Reserve may be used to satisfy performance obligations on
projects authorized by the TRPA. These usually cover several years for construction and inspection phases.
The total required deposits are $156,778, interest earned is in the account at the District’s discretion. The
TRPA Project Reserve is in the LGIP Account totaling $162,700. The Workers Comp Reserve exists
according to Nevada Revised Statutes as an amount designated annually by the State of Nevada Insurance
Commissioner. The amount is set aside in the event the State has to meet claims in excess of available
reserves. The amount of the pledge is $100,000 and interest earned is in the account at the District’s
discretion. The Work Comp Reserve is in the LGIP Account totaling $103,880. In connection with
completion of the Loss Portfolio Transfer and Assumption Agreement referred in Note 20, the Work
Comp Reserve was released August 2, 2018.

Deposit with State of Nevada for Sales Tax $ 6,075
Building Deposit held by Parasol Foundation 100
Litigation Damage Deposit held by the District 242,019
LGIP Restricted Deposits (SRF, TRPA & Work Comp) 486,206
Total Temporarily Restricted Deposits $ 734400
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018: Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases June 30, 2018

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land - General Government $ 2,669,904 § - 9 - $ 2,669,904
Land - Community Services 11,929,282 67,717 - 11,996,999
Land - Beach 2,304,850 - - 2,304,850
Construction in Progress - General Government 14,151 113,813 (108,373) 19,591
Construction in Progress - Community Services 1,629,467 3,905,926 (3,031,073) 2,504,320
Construction in Progress - Beach 197,623 221,248 (187,454) 231417
Construction in Progress - Internal Services - 26,719 (26,719) -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 18,745,277 4335423 (3,353,619) 19,727,081

Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings and Structures - General Government 846,899 - - 846,899
Buildings and Structures - Community Services 29,264,346 515,959 - 29,780,305
Buildings and Structures - Beach 2,687,860 - - 2,687,860
Venue Improvements - Community Services 28,380,323 723,764 - 29,104,087
Venue Improvements - Beach 2,034,160 139,678 - 2,173,838
Equipment and Vehicles - General Government 1,501,075 108,373 (18,261) 1,591,187
Equipment and Vehicles - Community Services 10,637,544 1,723,633 (747,631) 11,613,546
Equipment and Vehicles - Beach 472,801 47,776 9,851) 510,786
Equipment and Vehicles - Internal Services 246,777 26,719 (9,584) 263,912
Total capital assets, being depreciated 76,071,845 3,285,902 (785,327) 78,572,420

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Structures - General Government (780,647) (11,054) - (791,701)
Buildings and Structures - Community Services (12,923,079) (906,051) - (13,829,130)
Buildings and Structures - Beach (1,410,643) (95,933) - (1,506,576)
Venue Improvements - Community Services (18,002,175) (919,393) - (18,921,568)
Venue Improvements - Beach (1,258,460) (93,854) - (1,352,314)
Equipment and Vehicles - General Government (762,263) (231,660) 17,956 (975,967)
Equipment and Vehicles - Community Services (5,510,808) (997,730) 735,422 (5,773,116)
Equipment and Vehicles - Beach (224,091) (39,409) 9,851 (253,649)
Equipment and Vehicles - Internal Services (173,708) (10,319) 9,584 (174,443)
Total accumulated depreciation (41,045,874) (3,305,403) 772,813 (43,578,464)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 35,025,971 (19,501) (12,514) 34,993,956
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 53771248 § 4315922 § (3,366,133) § 54,721,037

45



Continned Business-Type Activities

Utility Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 6,715544  § - $ - % 6,715,544
Construction in Progtess 4,519,384 7,037,423 (7,406,266) 4,151,041
Total utility capital assets, not being depreciated 11,235,428 7,037,423 (7,400,266) 10,866,585

Utility Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings and structures 11,900,359 3,272,789 (7,638) 15,166,010
Service infrastructure 105,000,108 3,633,611 (7,638) 108,626,081
Equipment and vehicles 3,483,938 499,866 (261,820) 3,721,984
Total utility capital assets at historical cost 120,384,905 7,406,266 (277,096) 127,514,075

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and structures (7,033,426) (285,276) 7,638 (7,311,064)
Service infrastructure (56,580,752) (2,496,893) 7,638 (59,070,007)
Equipment and vehicles (2,573,945) (191,463) 261,320 (2,503,588)
Total accumulated depreciation (66,188,123) (2,973,632) 277,096 (68,384,659)
Total utility capital assets being depreciated, net 54,196,782 4,432,634 - 58,629,416
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net $ 65432210 $§ 11470057 $§  (7,406,266) $ 69,496,001

The District has a number of Construction in Progress projects open as of June 30, 2018. Community Services includes
$223,333 for the Diamond Peak Master Plan, and $1,320,561 for the Incline Creek Culvert Rehabilitation. Beach includes
$210,032 for the Incline Beach Facility Study. The Utility Fund includes $3,831,490 for the design phase of the Effluent
Export Line that project will be ongoing through at least 2021. The District’s primary building season is limited to May to
October because of regulations from the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Most equipment purchases follow the budget
and fiscal year cycle.

Depreciation expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018 was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 242714
Recreation 2,823,174
Beach 229,196
Internal Services 10,319

Total Depreciation Expense $ 3,305,403

Business-Type Activities:
Utility Fund Water and Sewer $2973,632

The District holds a substantial number of land parcels for recreation and public purposes. Approximately 80 parcels
wete acquired at no cost through a Washoe County tax forfeiture transfer. These lands ate not held for the purpose of
income or profit, and therefore are not considered an investment.
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5.  ACCRUED PERSONNEL COSTS

The General Fund processes and issues payments for all payroll and most related personnel and benefit
costs for all funds of the District. At the time the expenses are incurred, each fund records its appropriate
costs. As payments are made, the individual funds provide their share through the pooled cash. This
process provides the General Fund with the necessary available financial resources to meet the District wide
obligations. Generally, no regular payroll or personnel accruals are recorded to the individual funds.
Accruals for special payments, Health Reimbursement Accounts, Sick Leave at Retirement, Workers
Compensation and Vacation can appear in individual funds, because they are recognized well in advance of
the payment process. The General Fund also maintains any banks accounts specific for payment of
benefits except for those accumulated for Workers Compensation claims under the Internal Service Fund.

As a regular course of operations, the payroll including June 30 was paid July 7. The employee benefits
earned through June 30 are also funded in the following month. At any given point the District has an
obligation to its employees for the value of vacation time earned and not taken. The obligation is measured
by the value due as if the employee terminated. The District allows retiring employees with an excess of 20
years of service, and that have accrued sick leave, to have it converted to Medical Retiree Benefit for
reimbursing post employment heath related costs. There are 17 eligible employees covered. The District
has no other post-employment benefit obligations for health insurance or retitement benefits.

The District offers health reimbursement accounts (HRA) in exchange for the insured accepting a higher
deductible or co-insurance. The Plan is administered by the health insurance carrier. The District also has a
third party administered flexible spending account (FSA). The District maintains bank accounts exclusively
for reimbursements for HRA and FSA transactions.

The District’s Workers Compensation claims are processed by a Third Party Administrator. Claims are paid
through a District zero balance account. Checks issued are payables until presented to the bank for
payment.

As of June 30, 2018, the Accrued Personnel Costs were comprised of:

Current Payroll Liabilities: Governmental Business-type Total
Accrued Payroll $ 595,235 $ - $ 595,235
Taxes Withheld 44378 - 44378
Accrued Benefits 52,583 - 52,583
Deferred Comp 8,461 - 8,461
Pension 37,449 - 37,449
Health Reimbursement Accounts 163,683 - 163,683
Sick Leave Retirtement Benefit 133,861 153,479 287,340
Workers Comp unpaid losses and expenses 57,575 - 57,575
Accrued Vacation 376,960 170,002 546,962
Total Government-wide $1,470,185 $ 323,481 $1,793,666

The Government-wide Accrued Personnel Costs could be liquidated within one year and has been classified
as current. The following accounts are based on ongoing activity as opposed to a point in time accrual:

Balance Provisions Balance
Select Benefit Liabilities June 30,2017 Additions Payments [une 30, 2018
Health Reimbursement $ 129,715 $ 74,002 $ 40,034 $ 163,683
Sick Leave Retirement 281,976 21,916 16,552 287,340
Work Comp unpaid losses 156,275 (98,700) - 57,575
Accrued Vacation 536,624 651,741 641,404 546,961
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6. UNEARNED REVENUE

The District receives a number of payments that will be recognized as revenue or a liquidated liability based
upon a future transaction when the service is provided. These include:

Community
Services Beach
General Special Rev. Special Rev. Utility Total
Billed in advance $ 12 $ 464,847 $126,915 $543,518 $1,135,292
Unexpired season passes - 894,784 - - 894,784
External Gift Cards - 146,326 - - 146,326
Internal Gift Cards - 85,519 - - 85,519
Total $ 12 $1,591,476 $126,915 $543,518 $2,261,921

7. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS AND TRANSFERS

The outstanding balances between funds results mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1)
interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded
in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. The balances settle monthly through
pooled cash and therefore there are no open balances as of June 30, 2018.

Transfers reported on the financial statements as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Fund Transfer In:
Community Community Community

Services Setvices Services Beach Beach Beach

Special Capital Debt Special Capital Debt Utility

Revenue Projects Service Revenue Projects Service Fund
Fund Transfer Out: Total Out
Internal Services Fund § 645,000 $ $ $ 35,000 $ - $ - $ 120,000 $ 800,000
Community Services
Special Revenue - 3,650,842 1,309,499 - - - - $4,960,341
Beach
Special Revenue - - - - 301,833 7,739 - $ 309,572

TotalIn §$ 645,000  $3,650,842  $1,309,499  $ 35000 $ 301,833 $ 7,739 $ 120,000  $6,069,913

Transfers for Capital Projects and Debt Service are (1) movement of revenues from the fund that by statue
or budget authority collects the revenue to provide resources for specified functions and transaction types
to the fund that will expend them. Transfers from Internal Services move unique resources to finance
various operations in accordance with budgetary authorizations in relation to discontinuing self-insurance.
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT

All of the District’s Long Term Bonds are collateralized by a pledge of revenues derived and to be derived from the
operation of either the Utility, Community Services or Beach venues, after deduction there from of the amount
necessary to pay all operating and maintenance charges as required by applicable bond agreements. The District is
also required to maintain rates sufficient to pay all maintenance, depreciation, replacement, betterment, and interest
charges.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt as of June 30, 2018
Governmental Activities:

Issue Maturity Interest Amount Principal Due
Issue Date Date Rate Issued Outstanding 2017-18
General Obligation Revenue Bonds Recreation
Recreation Facilities

and Recreation

Refunding 2012 07/18/12 09/01/22 2.25% 3,475,000 $1,848.,000 $350,000
Total Recreation Revenue Supported Debt $1,848,000 $350,000

Business Type Activities:
Utility

State of Nevada

Sewer C32-0204 10/28/02 01/01/23 3.144%  $1,720,380 $ 590,633 $ 110,875
Water IVGID-1 09/09/04 07/01/25 3.082% 1,687,282 755,855 91,048
Sewer C$32-0404 (G.O.) 08/01/06 01/01/26 2.73% 3,000,000 1,482,764 168,270
Water DW-1201 (G.O.) 03/16/12 01/01/32 2.39% 3,000,000 2,289,352 139,485
Total Utility Revenue Supported Debt $5,118,604 $.509,678
Total Debt — All Activities $6,966,604 $859,678

Long-Term bonded debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2017

Beginning New Principal Ending Due Within
Balance Issues Reductions Balance One Year
General Obligation $7,107,102 $ - $1,486,986 $5,620,116 $657,755
Revenue 1,542,263 - 195,775 1,346,488 201,923
Total 8,649,365 - 1,682,761 6,966,604 $859,678
Bond discounts (8,649) - (1,666) (6,983)
Bond Premiums 14,997 - 14,997 -
Long-term Debt, net $8,655,713 $ - $1.696,092 $6,959,621
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Future Debt Service Requirements as of June 30, 2018

Debt Supported by Debt Supported by
Fiscal Year Utility Revenue Recreation Revenue
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2019 $ 509,678 $ 133,457 $ 350,000 $ 37,0642
2020 523,988 119,145 361,000 29,643
2021 538,707 104,428 368,000 21,442
2022 553,841 89,291 378,000 13,050
2023 569,405 73,728 391,000 4,399
2024 to 2028 1,689,488 184,102 - -
2029 to 2032 733,497 39,990 - -
Total $5,118,604 $ 744141 $ 1,848,000 $ 106,176

At June 30, 2018, principal and interest to maturity in 2032, paid from pledged future revenues, totaled
$7,816,921. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the net pledged revenue was $4,059,397.

9. DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

The District is holding a deposit of $242,019 for a damage award as part of ongoing litigation relating to
matters asserted by a member of the public. The litigation is under appeal with the Nevada Supreme Court.
If the District prevails, the award will become revenue to the General Fund. If the member of the public
prevails, the deposit will be refunded under terms of a settlement agreement approved September 13, 2017.

The District has been awarded FEMA /Nevada Department of Emergency Management grants for 2017
damage to the Diamond Peak Maintenance Building $38,643 and a portion of the culvert for $331,019.
Review of the final costs and determination of payment is ongoing. They will settle after August 31,
therefore these amounts are deferred at the fund level.

The District has billed Pump Track costs of $31,691 incurred by June 30, but will be paid after August 31.
Therefore this amount is deferred at the fund level.

10. CAPITAL GRANTS

The Utility Fund received $187,053 as a capital grant for enhanced fire flow water mains. The Utlity Fund
was awarded a FEMA/Nevada Department of Emergency Management Grant for 2017 damages to the
wetlands of $12,881. Final review and payment is ongoing.

The Community Services Capital Projects Fund was awarded a capital grant for $225,000 for the Pump
Track, and has received $153,778. Another $31,691 was billed for costs incurred by June 30. The
Community Services Capital Projects Fund received a State of NV grant of $2,996 for costs of a creek
restoration project.

1. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The District offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plans, available to all District employees, permit them to defer a portion of their
earnings until future years. The deferred compensation benefit is not collectible by employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.
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12. DISTRICT RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The District has two retirement plans covering substantially all of its full-time year round employees. Those
not covered under the Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers are covered by the District's Money
Purchase Pension Plan (Section 401(a). The District also sponsors a Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plan.

The District's Money Putrchase Pension (Section 401(a) Plan is a defined contribution plan. The plan is
administered by third party administrators. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate after six
months of setvice. The District's provides a non-elective contribution of 12.3% of the employee’s earnings.
The District's contributions for each employee are fully vested after four years of service. District
contributions for, and interest forfeited by employees who leave employment before fully vesting, are used
to reduce the District's current-period contribution requitement. Employees are not allowed to contribute
directly into this plan.

The Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers is a cost sharing, multiple employer, defined benefit plan
contract between the District's employees and the Operating Engineers Union. The plan provides
retirement and medical benefits to eligible participants based on a formula of years of service and reaching a
qualifying age. It is available to approximately 45 positions in the District, covered by the collective
bargaining agreements, with only four electing to do so. The District is not a party to this defined benefit
plan. The District's liability under the union collective bargaining agreement is limited to making monthly
contributions based on union employees’ pay for hours worked. Consequently, the District is not liable for
any funding shortage of the defined benefit plan. Each year the District contributions to the plan equal
100% of the District’s liability under the bargaining agreement. The Pension Trust Fund for Operating
Engineers issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Pension Trust Fund for
Operating Engineers, 1600 Harbor Bay Parkway, Suite 200, Alameda, California 94502 or by calling (800)
251-5014.

The District’s Deferred Compensation (Section 457) Plan is a defined contribution plan. The plan is
administered by third party administrators. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate
immediately after the first day of a month of employment. Employee contributions are subject to Internal
Revenue Service regulations for Section 457 plans. The District provides a matching contribution up to
3%. Both employee and District contributions are fully vested 100% as made.

The District's total contributions equal to required contributions for employees covered by the above plans
are as follows:

Contribution to:

401(a) Money Operating Employer Employee
FYE June 30 Purchase Engineers Section 457 Section 457
2018 $942,023 $37,898 $211,945 $4006,548
2017 881,780 38,839 195,958 388,287
2016 796,148 42,559 179,873 349,945
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13. SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Insurance Coverage on June 30, 2018 consists of the following:

Type Carrier/Provider Amount

Property Liability NV Public Agency Pool $ 300,000,000

on buildings & contents

Earthquake & Flood NV Public Agency Pool 150,000,000
Boiler & Machinery NV Public Agency Pool 100,000,000
General Liability NV Public Agency Pool 10,000,000
Cyber Security Event NV Public Agency Pool 2,000,000
Money & Securities NV Public Agency Pool 500,000
Site Pollution Incident NV Public Agency Pool 2,000,000
Ski Resort Gen. Liability Nova Casualty Company 1,000,000
Ski Resort Excess Liability Nova Casualty Company 6,000,000
Workers Compensation NV Public Agency Comp. Trust 2,000,000

The District has elected to participate in the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool. The risk-sharing Pool
secures insurance coverage for all its members. The Pool agreement provides coverage for the equivalent

of errors and omissions and directors and officers acts. The Pool does not offer general or excess liability

coverage for the Diamond Peak Ski Resort. Therefore, separate coverage is purchased.

A portion of each member’s premium contributions to the Pool goes into the Loss Fund and the remainder
pays for the excess insurance premiums and administrative expenses. The amount of the Loss Fund
contribution is determined by the underwriters based on each membet's average annual losses over the
prior five years. This amount may vary each year.

The Pool pays all losses from the Loss Fund per occurrence, less the membet's maintenance deductible.
The District has a $5,000 deductible. Excess insurance above the Pool’s self-funded amount, is provided by
secondary markets based on arrangements made with the Pool, including a Pool owned captive.

There were no District settlements in excess of insurance coverage in any of the three prior fiscal years.

Ski Liability Insurance is not covered by the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool. A separate insurance
program, less the District’s $10,000 deductible, provides coverage.

Workers Compensation Coverage

Prior to July 1, 2013 the District was self-insured for Worker’s Compensation coverage through an internal
service fund. This fund was liable for claim costs incurred during that time. Effective July 1, 2018 the
District has executed a Loss Portfolio Transfer and Assumption Agreement with Public Agency
Compensation Trust, which removes all liability in exchange for a one-time assessment of $57,300. As of
July 1, 2013 the District utilizes the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust to provide work comp
coverage for all employees.

Workers Compensation (an element of the Internal Service Fund) accounts for and finances its risks of loss
for Workers Compensation benefits. Through the Internal Service Fund, the District collects charges based
on compensation, and then pays pooling assessments to the Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust
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(NVPACT). All funds of the District participate in the program and made payments to the Workers
Compensation Fund based on actuarial estimates provided by NVPACT for the amounts needed to pay
claims as member of the risk sharing pool.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Internal Services Fund billed other District funds a total of $464,551
and made member assessment payments for coverage of $441,606. There were no new claim costs for the
period prior to July 1, 2013. The claim reserves and future administration costs have been re-evaluated each
of the last three years. The District made general provisions of $56,000 for 2016, and reductions of §98,700
for 2018. The District had a Third Party Administrator monitors open claims. As of June 30, 2018, the
District carries $57,300 as the Claims Liability based on the amount due July 1, 2018 to complete a Loss
Portfolio Transfer and Assumption Agreement. Under this Agreement the District will no longer be liable
for costs for claims incurred prior to July 1, 2013.

Following is a reconciliation of Workers Comp claims liability as of June 30, 2018, for claims incurred prior
to July 1, 2013.

Beginning Ending

Claims Claims Claims General Claims

Liability Made Payments Provision Liability
June 30,2018 $156,000 $ - $ - $ (98,700) $ 57,300
June 30,2017 $156,000 $ - $ - $ - $156,000
June 30,2016 $ 100,000 $ - $ - $ 56,000 $156,000

14. CONTINGENCIES

The District participates in various federal programs, which are subject to program compliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the District’s compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at a future date.

Washoe County is currently the defendant in various lawsuits with property owners disputing the County
Assessor’s valuation methods used for property within the Lake Tahoe Basin. The County intends to
vigorously defend the Assessor’s valuations; however, the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable. An adverse ruling could result in a rollback of property values and subsequent rebates to
property owners. Similar cases have resulted in the County charging a portion of the rebates against the
District’s tax settlements in 2012 through 2014. The impact of the current claims, on the District’s financial
condition, cannot be reasonably estimated.

15. COMMITTED AND ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

As of July 1, 2015, the Board of Trustees established Special Revenue, Capital Project and Debt Service
funds for District Community Services and Beach activities. Based on governmental accounting standards
the fund balance for the Special Revenue funds are reported as committed for the purpose of recreation
privileges utilizing the facility fee. The fund balance in the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds are
reported as assigned since they represent amounts designated through the budget process for approved but
uncompleted expenditures under the direction of the District General Manager.

16. LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Current Expenses:

During the year ended June 30, 2018, $31,813 was paid for leased golf carts used at the Mountain Golf
Course. These payments are included under Services and Supplies in the Community Services Fund. A
residual payment due on the Mountain Golf Carts of $48,730 was paid as an unbudgeted capital expenditure
to purchase the 58 cart fleet.
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17. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The Nevada Department of Taxation has notified the District of refund of sales tax due another taxpayer,
resulting in reductions of monthly Consolidated Tax Distributions. While the exact amount and terms for
the reductions is not determined, sufficient information is available to arrive at an estimated $60,000
liability. The refund applies to taxes received over three years ending in March 2017. The District shatre
of recognizing the consequences of this refund will be made through 18 monthly reductions beginning
with the July 2018 Consolidated Tax Distribution.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR COMMUNITY SERVICES AND BEACH SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS

The District provides recreation functions through two individual special revenue funds. Each serves a
different set of venues and customer base. A significant soutce of revenue for these functions for
operations, capital expenditure and debt service comes directly from a facility fee assessed by parcel for
each function and expenditure type. Facility Fees have been listed separately by fund and function. The
operating portion of the facility fee is combined with charges for services to provide the resources for
providing services. Charges for services are aggregated, while expenditures are provided by function. As
stated in Note 1 T, part of the facility fee can be used to pay for charges for services in lieu of other forms
of privileges. These are referred to as Punch Cards. The following are major functions included in
Charges for Services and the approximate amounts of punch cards activity that is included.

Charges for Paid with Punch Cards

Services Punch Cards Value Utilized
Community Services Fund:
Championship Golf $ 3,765,419 $ 26,000 $ -
Mountain Golf 630,214 97,000 -
Facilities 355,696 - -
Ski 9,155,646 109,000 -
Community Programming 1,289,953 1,000 -
Parks 48,910 - -
Tennis 145,197 - -
Recreation Administration (758,481) - (780,000)

Total $ 14,632,554 $233,000 $(780,000)

Beach Fund $ 1,266,613 $691,000 $(144,000)

District Total $924,000 $(924,000)

19. COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FUTURE PERIODS

General Fund:

The District entered into an unemployment insurance contract with First Nonprofit Companies for total
premiums of §185,000 for calendar year 2018 services. As of June 30, 2018 $92,500 in quarterly deposits
are remaining as a part of the subsequent year’s budget.

Capital Project Carryover:

The District budgets for capital projects one year at a time for capital improvement project spending
authority. However, the actual execution of construction or acquisition can span one or more fiscal years.
The District has identified carryover and unspent budget authority for those projects. The amounts for
governmental fund types are re-budgeted for the subsequent fiscal year. The unused Utility Fund
resources become part of Unrestricted Net Position, but are budgeted under cash flow on the State of NV
budget forms.

General Fund:
As of June 30, 2018, there is $43,700 for a carryover project for the Administration Building.

54



Utility Fund:
As of June 30, 2018, there is $9,703,020 of identified projects included in the carryover. The most
significant portion is $8,756,603 for the Effluent Export Line.

Community Services Fund:

As of June 30, 2018, there is $2,346,762 of identified projects in the carryover. The most significant
portion is $604,600 for the Incline Creek Culvert Rehabilitation, $682,600 for the Diamond Peak Master
Plan Implementation, and $138,000 for the Community Services Master Plan.

Beach Fund:
As of June 30, 2018, there is $30,000 in the carryover for the Incline Beach Facility Study.

Budgeting for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2019:

As a part of the budgeting for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the District identified transfers of
$2,458,275 for capital expenditures from the Community Services Special Revenue Fund and $3,844 for
capital expenditures from the Beach Special Revenue Fund. These operating transfers ate from those
Funds to their respective Capital Projects Fund. The source of those transfers is presumably fund
balance, reported as Unrestricted Net Position.

The District has committed to these capital improvement projects through contractual arrangements:

Contract Completed Remaining
Award at June 30, 2018 Commitment
Utility Fund
Effluent Pipeline Project — State Route 28 Line Repairs
State of Nevada $1,152,600 $ 955,028 $ 197,572
Community Services Fund
Incline Creek Culvert Restoration
Q&D Construction, Inc. 3,792,459 - 3,792,459
CH2M Hill 64,000 22,785 41,215
CH2M Hill 70,000 - 70,000
Tri Sage Consulting 92,150 - 92,150

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has been engaged in a lawsuit with an individual over many years. A District Court decision
made an award to the District for the recovery of fees. Both the Court decision and the fess awarded are
under an appeal. In order to reduce possible longer-term exposure to the individual, the District received
$241,646 on September 14, 2017. These refunds atre in a separate money market account and are
classified as a Deferred Inflow until all appeals under the lawsuit are resolved. The timeframe for a
decision is unknown.

The District and Public Agency Compensation Trust (PACT) have entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer
and Assumption Agreement effective July 1, 2018. Under the agreement all of the past liability for the
District’s self-insured workers compensation program from 1992 through June 30, 2013 is transferred to
PACT. The District will pay a one-time assessment of $49,000 and file conversion costs of $8,700.
Incidental to completing this agreement, the District was able to have the restricted deposit for the benefit
of claims liability released on August 2, 2018. Once the other steps are accomplished, the Board of
Trustees has budgeted a transfer of fund balance totaling $300,000 from the Internal Services Fund to the
Utility, Community Service Special Revenue and Beach Special Revenue Funds for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2019. This transfer was made as budgeted, September 1, 2018.

21. STATE OF NEVADA TAX ABATEMENTS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES
The State of Nevada has entered into various tax abatement agreements that reduce the tax revenues of
local governments. Taxes reduced include the Consolidated Tax, which includes allocated sales and use

tax revenue. State law establishes the abatements. The District’s estimated share of abatements for this

fiscal year is $39,622.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS
TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION MULTI-EMPLOYER PLANS
FOR THE TEN MOST RECENT FISCAL YEARS

401(a) Money Purchase Operating Engineers 457 Employer Portion
Number of Covered Required Number of Covered Required Number of Covered Required
For the year ending June 30: Partidpants Payroll Contributions Partidpants Payroll Conttibutions Partidpants Payroll Contributions
2018 111 $ 7,058,724 $ 942,023 4 $ 308,114 $ 37,898 109 $ 7,907,817 $ 211,945
2017 100 7,168,943 881,780 4 315,764 38,839 101 7,552,383 195,958
2016 97 6,472,748 796,148 5 346,008 42,559 99 6,971,739 179,872
2015 92 5,945,967 731,354 4 275,846 33,929 91 6,272,193 161,521
2014 90 6,114,415 752,073 5 346,797 42,656 88 6,244,762 168,321
2013 95 5,934,439 729,936 5 377,293 46,407 91 6,193,143 190,035
2012 97 6,049,829 744,129 7 395,512 48,648 96 6,727,903 191,087
2011 102 6,482,260 797,318 7 463,862 57,055 99 6,566,779 188,652
2010 106 6,133,951 754,476 8 477,382 58,718 102 7,034,731 192,637
2009 116 6,305,970 630,597 8 550,447 67,705 107 7,065,990 193,493
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COMMUNITY SERVICES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Sales of Assets
Charitable - Capital Grants

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
COMMUNITY SERVICES RECREATION:
Championship Golf New projects
Carryover projects
Mountain Golf New projects

Carryover projects

Fadlities New projects
Carryover projects
Ski New projects

Master Plan

Carryover projects
Community Programming New projects
Carryover projects
Parks New projects

Carryover projects
Tennis New projects
Carryover projects
Comm. Serv. Administration New projects

Carryover projects

Total expenditures

Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fees
Operating Transfers In - CIP
Total other finandng sources
Net changes in fund balance

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance

- $ - $ 1,980 1,980

- - 156,775 156,775

- - 158,755 158,755

570,100 570,100 538,138 31,962
255,550 255,550 125,983 129,567
413,000 413,000 312,024 100,976
184,450 184,450 90,931 93,519
109,950 109,950 105,273 4,677
149,000 149,000 93,331 55,669
2,305,122 2,305,122 1,525,333 779,789
690,000 690,000 7,422 682,578
418,000 418,000 281,266 136,734
194,130 194,130 71,100 123,030
113,000 113,000 - 113,000
268,000 268,000 498,206 (230,2006)
177,000 177,000 103,107 73,893
46,660 46,660 5,000 41,660
20,000 20,000 - 20,000
95,000 95,000 76,926 18,074
208,000 208,000 71,886 136,114
6,216,962 6,216,962 3,905,926 2,311,036
(6,216,962) (6,216,962) (3,747,171) 2,469,791
2,704,020 2,704,020 2,700,842 (3,178)
2,900,000 2,900,000 950,000 (1,950,000)
5,604,020 5,604,020 3,650,842 (1,953,178)
(612,942) (612,942) (96,329) 516,613
2,284,781 2,284,781 2,423,806 139,025
1,671,839 $ 1,671,839 $ 2,327,477 655,638

Note: The State Budget Form 4404L.GF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers

to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BEACH CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXPENDITURES
Beach New projects
Carryover projects
Total expenditures

Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fee
Operating Transfers In - Carryover CIP
Total other finandng soutces
Net changes in fund balance

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance

130,500 $ 130,500 $ 159,215 $ (28,715)
202,000 202,000 62,033 139,967
332,500 332,500 221,248 111,252
(332,500) (332,500) (221,248) 111,252
302,484 302,484 301,833 (651)
25,000 25,000 - (25,000
327,484 327,484 301,833 (25,651)
(5,016) (5,016) 80,585 85,601
5,235 5,235 5,155 (80)
219 $ 219 $ 85,740 $ 85,521

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Serviaes and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COMMUNITY SERVICES DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES
Community Services - GO Revenue Supported
Prindpal $ 336,494 $ 336,494 $ 336,494 $ -
Interest 44,696 44,696 44,696 -
Community Services - Medium Term Finandng
Prindpal 845,000 845,000 845,000 -
Interest 59,150 59,150 59,150 -
Total expenditures 1,285,340 1,285,340 1,285,340 -
Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures (1,285,340) (1,285,340) (1,285,340) -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fees 1,311,040 1,311,040 1,309,499 (1,541)
Total other finandng souraes 1,311,040 1,311,040 1,309,499 (1,541)
Net changes in fund balance 25,700 25,700 24,159 (1,541)
Fund Balance, July 1 26,975 26,975 27,394 419
Fund balance, June 30 $ 52,675 $ 52,675 $ 51,553 $ (1,122)

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BEACH DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES
Beach
Prindpal $ 5,506 $ 5,506 $ 5,506 $ -
Interest 732 732 731 1
Total expenditures 6,238 0,238 6,237 1
Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures (6,238) (6,238) (6,237) 1
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fees 7,756 7,756 7,739 (17
Net changes in fund balance 1,518 1,518 1,502 (16)
Fund Balance, July 1 3,101 3,101 3,104 3
Fund balance, June 30 $ 4,619 $ 4,619 $ 4,606 $ (13)

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Personal Property Tax
Intergovernmental:
Consolidated Tax
Loal Government Tax Act
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Central Services Revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government - All Functions:
Function Summary
Total expenditures

Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingency
Sale of aapital assets
Net changes in fund balance
Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 1,537,050 $ 1,537,050 $ 1,524,623 $ (12,427)
12,000 12,000 12,671 671
1,363,510 1,363,510 1,388,529 25,019
216,000 216,000 248,721 32,721
36,000 36,000 89,960 53,960
3,600 3,600 2,033 (1,567)
1,094,000 1,094,000 1,094,000 -
4,262,160 4,262,160 4,360,537 98,377
4,206,620 4,206,620 3,700,016 506,604
4,206,620 4,206,620 3,700,016 506,604
55,540 55,540 660,521 604,981
(120,000) (120,000) - 120,000
- - 16 16
(64,460) (64,460) 660,537 724,997
1,837,533 1,837,533 1,862,249 24,716
$ 1,773,073 $ 1,773,073 $ 2,522,786 $ 749,713

61



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

EXPENDITURES
General Government:

General Administration
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Capital Outlay

Subtotal General Administration

General Manager
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal General Manager

Trustees
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Trustees

Acounting
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Acounting

Information Services
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Capital Expenditure

Subtotal Information Services

Risk Management
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Risk Management

Human Resources
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Human Resources

Health and Wellness
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Health and Wellness

Community & Employee Relations
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Comm. Relations

Function Subtotal - Form 10

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 29,125 $ 29,125 $ 42,668 $ (13,543)
17,975 17,975 13,250 4,725
418,664 418,664 406,634 12,030
278,900 278,900 34,361 244,539
744,664 744,664 496,913 247,751
250,590 250,590 237,500 13,090
98,110 98,110 104,419 (6,309)
31,520 31,520 13,093 18,427
380,220 380,220 355,012 25,208
99,087 99,087 99,852 (765)
29,398 29,398 27,905 1,493
87,492 87,492 48,693 38,799
215,977 215,977 176,450 39,527
544,869 544,869 537,564 7,305
235,182 235,182 240,003 (4,821)
70,900 70,900 55,781 15,119
850,951 850,951 833,348 17,603
443,860 443,860 368,250 75,610
195,407 195,407 145,695 49,712
309,304 309,304 306,713 2,591
- - 79,452 (79,452)
948,571 948,571 900,110 48,461
77,701 77,701 75,689 2,012
43,003 43,003 42,005 998
21,700 21,700 9,338 12,362
142,404 142,404 127,032 15,372
323,958 323,958 369,565 (45,607)
177,556 177,556 181,497 (3,941)
68,556 68,556 46,813 21,743
570,070 570,070 597,875 (27,805)
16,451 16,451 13,786 2,665
8,757 8,757 4,800 3,957
21,500 21,500 6,008 15,492
46,708 46,708 24,594 22,114
103,255 103,255 103,766 (511)
54,220 54,220 44,267 9,953
149,580 149,580 40,649 108,931
307,055 307,055 188,682 118,373
$ 4,206,620 $ 4,206,620 $ 3,700,016 $ 506,604

62



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Charges for Services
Championship Golf $ 3,687,462 $ 3,687,462 $ 3,765,419 $ 77,957
Mountain Golf 683,670 683,670 630,214 (53,450)
Fadlities 358,225 358,225 355,696 (2,529)
Ski 8,268,215 9,118,215 9,155,646 37,431
Community Programming 1,266,772 1,266,772 1,289,953 23,181
Parks 54,400 54,400 48,910 (5,490)
Tennis 167,500 167,500 145,197 (22,303)
Recreation Administration (510,000) (510,000) (758,481) (248,481)
Fadlity Fee: -
Championship Golf 794,818 794,818 795,437 619
Mountain Golf 508,028 508,028 505,878 (2,150)
Fadlities 458,864 458,864 458,325 (539)
Ski 221,238 221,238 220,978 (260)
Community Programming 1,294,652 1,294,652 1,293,131 (1,521)
Parks 958,698 958,698 957,571 (1,127)
Tennis 163,880 163,880 163,687 (193)
Recreation Administration 1,376,592 1,376,592 1,374,975 (1,617)
Operating Grants 17,000 17,000 17,000 -
Interfund Services 91,000 91,000 74,014 (16,9806)
Intergovernmental Services 31,100 31,100 20,220 (10,880)
Investment Earnings 48,000 48,000 69,303 21,303
Sale of Assets - - 85,562 85,562
Miscellaneous 86,400 86,400 109,462 23,062
Total revenues 20,026,514 20,876,514 20,778,097 (98,417)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and Recreation - All Functions:
Function Summary 15,975,174 16,345,174 16,137,428 207,746
Total expenditures 15,975,174 16,345,174 16,137,428 207,746
Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures 4,051,340 4,531,340 4,640,669 109,329
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingency (475,000) (475,000) - 475,000
Operating Transfers In - Internal Services 645,000 645,000 645,000 -
Operating Transfers Out - Capital Projects (5,604,020) (5,604,020) (3,650,842) 1,953,178
Operating Transfers Out - Debt Service (1,311,040) (1,311,040) (1,309,499) 1,541
Net changes in fund balance (2,693,720) (2,213,720) 325,328 2,539,048
Fund balance, July 1 9,835,803 10,320,141 10,320,141 -
Fund balance, June 30 $ 7,142,083 $ 8,106,421 $ 10,645,469 $ 2,539,048

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized the Total Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing
transfers to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure by those Funds.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES
Community Services:
Championship Golf
Salaries and Wages $ 1,335,797 $ 1,335,797 $ 1,450,745 $ (114,948)
Employee Benefits 434,814 434,814 378,678 56,136
Services and Supplies 2,097,883 2,097,883 2,226,279 (128,396)
Subtotal Championship Golf 3,868,494 3,868,494 4,055,702 (187,208)
Mountain Golf
Salaries and Wages 381,142 381,142 327,821 53,321
Employee Benefits 111,183 111,183 88,958 22,225
Services and Supplies 543,442 543,442 555,392 (11,950)
Subtotal Mountain Golf 1,035,767 1,035,767 972,171 63,596
Fadlities
Salaries and Wages 89,577 89,577 80,096 9,481
Employee Benefits 49,752 49,752 38,460 11,292
Services and Supplies 357,745 357,745 330,241 27,504
Subtotal Fadlities 497,074 497,074 448,797 48,277
Ski
Salaries and Wages 2,544,098 2,794,098 2,767,963 26,135
Employee Benefits 938,084 1,023,084 847,817 175,267
Services and Supplies 3,218,973 3,253,973 3,408,547 (154,574)
Subtotal Ski 6,701,155 7,071,155 7,024,327 46,828
Community Programming
Salaries and Wages 1,062,970 1,062,970 1,093,852 (30,882)
Employee Benefits 346,410 346,410 319,199 27,211
Services and Supplies 905,581 905,581 819,054 86,527
Subtotal Community Programming 2,314,961 2,314,961 2,232,105 82,856
Parks
Salaries and Wages 335,654 335,654 332,157 3,497
Employee Benefits 85,271 85,271 71,527 13,744
Services and Supplies 429,924 429,924 414,614 15,310
Subtotal Parks 850,849 850,849 818,298 32,551
Tennis
Salaries and Wages 149,310 149,310 120,151 29,159
Employee Benefits 26,249 26,249 19,854 6,395
Services and Supplies 102,869 102,869 88,525 14,344
Subtotal Tennis 278,428 278,428 228,530 49,898
Community Services Administration
Salaries and Wages 142,242 142,242 144,815 (2,573)
Employee Benefits 53,704 53,704 41,518 12,186
Services and Supplies 232,500 232,500 171,165 61,335
Subtotal Recreation Administration 428,446 428,446 357,498 70,948

Function Subtotal ~ $ 15,975,174 $ 16,345,174 $ 16,137,428 $ 207,746
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BEACH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Charges for Services
Culture and Recreation:

Beach $ 1,023,200 $ 1,023,200 $ 1,266,613 $ 243,413
Fadlity Fees 969,500 969,500 967,414 (2,080)
Investment Earnings 9,000 9,000 2,288 (6,712)
Sale of Assets - - 857 857

Total revenues 2,001,700 2,001,700 2,237,172 235,472
EXPENDITURES
Beach:
Salaries and Wages 763,266 763,266 748,538 14,728
Employee Benefits 214,396 214,396 182,791 31,605
Setvices and Supplies 702,727 702,727 688,417 14,310
Total expenditures 1,680,389 1,680,389 1,619,746 60,643
Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures 321,311 321,311 617,426 296,115
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingency (50,000) (50,000) - 50,000
Operating Transfer In - Internal Services 35,000 35,000 35,000 -
Operating Transfers Out - Capital Projects (327,484) (327,484) (301,833) 25,651
Operating Transfers Out - Debt Service (7,756) (7,756) (7,739) 17
Net changes in fund balance (28,929) (28,929) 342,854 371,783
Fund balance, July 1 1,037,000 1,037,000 1,070,237 33,237
Fund balance, June 30 $ 1,008,071 $ 1,008,071 $ 1,413,091 $ 405,020

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
UTILITY FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
WATER, SEWER AND TRASH ACTIVITIES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Original &
Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Sales and service fees $ 11,559,102 $ 11,597,653 $ 38,551
Intergovernmental services 145,029 150,356 5,327
Interfund services 141,400 177,548 36,148
Investment earnings 96,000 77,280 (18,720)
Total revenues 11,941,531 12,002,837 61,306
EXPENSES
Wages 2,561,058 2,505,990 55,068
Benefits 1,209,975 1,116,230 93,745
Setrvices and supplies 2,034,476 2,179,628 (145,152)
Utilities 953,002 842,777 110,225
Legal and audit 97,800 102,886 (5,086)
Central Setvices cost 297,000 297,000 -
Defensible Space 100,000 95,229 4,771
Deptedation 2,950,000 2,973,631 (23,631)
Debt service intetest 147,373 140,463 6,910
Total expenses 10,350,684 10,253,834 96,850
NONOPERATING ITEMS
Gain (loss) on sale of assets - 50,020 50,020
Transfers In (Out) - 120,000 120,000
Capital Grants - 199,934 199,934
Total Nonoperating items - 369,954 369,954
Changes in Net Position $ 1,590,847 $ 2,118,957 $ 528,110
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Adaquisition of Capital Assets - New Projects $ 4,428,100 $ 2,911,706 $ (1,516,394)
Acaquisition of Capital Assets - Carry Over Projects $ 3,576,000 $ 4,125,717 $ 549,717
Payments of Prindpal on Capital Debt $ 495,761 $ 495,761 $ -
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

INTERNAL SERVICES FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

(FLEET, ENGINEERING AND BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE

AND WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTIVITIES)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Services provided by:
Fleet
Engineering
Buildings Maintenance
Workers Compensation
Interfund Services

Investment earnings
Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Wages

Benefits

Services and Supplies
Utilities

Legal & Audit
Depredation

Total expenses

NONOPERATING ITEMS

Gain on sale of assets
Transfers Out

Total nonoperating items

Changes in Net Position

Budget Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance

$ 1,043,000 $ 1,043,000 1,059,405 $ 16,405
787,200 787,200 754,258 (32,942)
963,700 963,700 912,635 (51,065)
425,000 425,000 464,551 39,551
3,218,900 3,218,900 3,190,849 (28,051)
2,400 2,400 13,571 11,171
3,221,300 3,221,300 3,204,420 (16,880)
1,348,106 1,348,106 1,309,713 38,393
644,204 644,204 616,674 27,530
1,185,212 1,185,212 1,102,921 82,291
10,500 10,500 10,173 327

9,000 9,000 9,600 (600)

12,000 12,000 10,319 1,681
3,209,022 3,209,022 3,059,400 149,622

- - 3,182 3,182

(800,000) (800,000) (800,000) -
(800,000) (800,000) (796,818) 3,182

$ (787,722) $ (787,722) (651,798) $ (163,320)
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

The Statistical Section of the Incline Village General Improvement District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures and required supplementary information indicates about the District’s overall financial health.
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Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help understand how the District’s financial performance and well-
being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help assess the District’s most significant local revenue source, the Facility
Fee, property tax and local share of state-wide shared taxes.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help assess the affordability of the District’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help understand the environment within which the
District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain setvice and infrastructure data to help understand how the information in the District’s

financial report relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports for the relevant year. Certain amounts in prior year statements have been reclassified for
comparisons purposes to conform to current year presentations.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

District-wide Net Position, based on Statement of Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years - (unaudited)

Governmental Activities
Net invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities
Net invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net position

Primary government
Net invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net position

Fiscal Years
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$ 52,880,021 $ 50,729,901 § 48,555,965 $ 47,729,659 $§ 44,322,574 $ 42,560,434 $ 40,313,677 $ 38,304,227 30,800,605 27,660,846
183,037 180,564 178,426 187,825 246,604 270,359 955,415 869,013 341,784 339,193
18,010,708 16,887,487 13,973,745 9,114,898 10,106,521 9,434,133 6,473,085 5,432,800 8,309,236 9,666,431

$ 71,073,766 $ 67,797,952 § 62,708,136 $ 57,032,382 $§ 54,675,699 $ 52,264,926 $ 47,742,177 $§ 44,606,040 39,451,625 37,666,470
$ 64,377,397 $ 59,817,845 § 57,974,014 $ 57,365,832 $§ 56,875,962 $ 56,144,425 $ 56,598,673 $ 53,051,044 49,445,970 47,785,869
309,344 305,022 226,208 225,435 225,185 224,951 226,777 231,514 558,563 497,371
10,091,293 12,536,210 12,026,276 11,228,881 10,113,847 9,197,509 5,554,147 7,552,741 9,406,203 10,683,500

$ 74,778,034 $ 72,659,077 § 70,226,498 $ 68,820,148 $ 67,214,994 $ 65,566,885 $ 62,379,597 $§ 60,835,299 59,410,736 58,966,740
$117,257,418 $ 110,547,746 $ 106,529,979 $ 105,095,491 $ 101,198,536 $ 98,704,859 $ 96,912,350 $§ 91,355,271 80,246,575 75,446,715
492,381 485,586 404,634 413,260 471,789 495,310 1,182,192 1,100,527 900,347 836,564
28,102,001 29,423,697 26,000,021 20,343,779 20,220,368 18,631,642 12,027,232 12,985,541 17,715,439 20,349,931

$ 145,851,800 $ 140,457,029 § 132,934,634 $ 125,852,530 $ 121,890,693 $ 117,831,811 $ 110,121,774 §$ 105,441,339 98,862,361 96,633,210

Source: District Comprehensive Annual Finandal Report Government-wide Statement of Net Position, restated to align dassifications for all years to governmental activities.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

District-wide Changes in Net Position, based on Statement of Activities

Last Ten Fiscal Years - ( dited)

Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government

Community Services

Beach

Internal services

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activities:

Utilities

Interest on long-term debt
Total business-type activities expenses
Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Central Services Costs (& equivalent pre-2012)

Charges for services
Community Services
Beach
Internal Services
Total governmental activities revenues
Business-type activities:
Charges for services
Utilities
Operating Grants and Contributions
Total business-type activities revenue
Total primary government revenue
Net (Expense) /Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government net (expense)/revenue

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Governmental activities
Taxes
Property taxes
Combined taxes
Fadlity Fees - Community Services
Fadlity Fees- Beach
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Capital Grants and contributions
Transfers
Acounting Adjustments
Total governmental activities other changes
Business-type activities
Investment earnings
Capital Grants and contributions
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Aaounting Adjustments
Total business-type activities other changes
Change in Net Position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
3828917 $ 3814458 § 3672661 $ 3220478 § 3189506 $ 2929928 $ 3265830 $ 3882904 § 3,067,477 $ 3,150,889
18,947,246 18,599,633 17,237,889 15,359,833 15,036,116 14,704,572 14,936,806 15,609,165 15,237,986 16,093,314
1,848,969 1,802,103 1,689,472 1,517,855 1,363,778 1,144,073 1,145,077 1,267,913 1,252,753 1,266,410
3,053,400 2,947,302 2,972,060 2,503,958 2,267,111 1,792,260 1,949,861 1,979,196 1,766,735 2,001,647
97,083 160,366 205,263 201,882 252,324 371,938 476,635 437,360 592,288 686,854
27,775,615 27,323,862 25,777,345 22,804,006 22,108,925 20,942,771 21,774,299 23,176,538 21,917,239 23,199,114
10,113,371 9,729,775 9,781,165 9,442,666 9,029,675 8,480,954 8,404,350 8,568,015 8,815,457 8,781,474
140,463 154,186 167,530 180,505 193,123 186,608 178,631 207,139 234,416 260,604
10,253,834 9,883,961 9,948,695 9,623,171 9,222,798 8,667,562 8,582,981 8,775,154 9,049,873 9,042,078
38,029,449 37,207,823 35,726,040 32,427,177 31,331,723 29,610,333 30,357,280 31,951,692 30,967,112 32,241,192
1,094,000 1,177,200 1,123,000 1,101,000 1,068,996 1,000,200 1,074,000 924,154 1,267,842 863,532
14,743,788 16,820,165 15,596,222 10,485,799 10,634,172 10,900,298 10,435,232 11,629,020 11,151,940 11,376,209
1,266,613 1,065,015 1,002,518 989,602 1,032,621 980,240 568,277 445,307 600,280 750,076
3,190,849 3,114,747 2,935,521 2,560,122 2,280,296 2,045,412 1,891,200 1,964,322 1,814,349 2,095,747
20,295,250 22,177,127 20,657,261 15,136,523 15,016,085 14,926,150 13,968,709 14,962,803 14,834,411 15,085,564
11,925,557 11,813,169 11,158,119 10,851,123 10,434,118 9,767,475 9,127,955 8,485,161 8,051,694 8,182,416
11,925,557 11,813,169 11,158,119 10,851,123 10,434,118 9,767,475 9,127,955 8,485,161 8,051,694 8,182,416
32,220,807 33,990,296 31,815,380 25,987,646 25450203 24,693,625 23,096,664 23,447,964 22,886,105 23,267,980
(7,480,365) (5,146,735) (5,120,084) (7,667,483) (7,092,840) (6,016,621) (7,805,590) (8,213,735) (7,082,828) (8,113,550)
1,671,723 1,929,208 1,209,424 1,227,952 1,211,320 1,099,913 544,974 (289,993) (998,179) (859,662)
(5,808,642) (3217,527) (3.910,660) (6:439,531) (5,881,520) (4.916,708) (7.260,616) (8,503,728) (8,081,007) (8.973,212)
1,546,575 1,476,148 1,498,519 1,377,337 1,293,676 1,307,715 1,325,436 1,094,166 796,482 985,295
1,637,250 1,484,830 1,487,986 1,369,950 1,277,567 1,205,091 1,106,183 1,101,055 1,136,483 1,218,893
5,799,206 5,973,914 5,995,248 6,018,616 6,024,564 5,962,384 5,919,707 6,067,022 5,126,716 4,921,834
972,316 775,337 777,574 778,149 780,716 775,102 899,565 783,029 865,540 1,210,476
175,122 83,842 150,795 124,306 103,106 88,116 193,562 102,384 212,096 313,576
190,578 310,425 299,355 120,134 170,981 63,692 127,338 306,352 730,666 595,355
558,128 132,055 586,361 235,674 (407) 1,137,270 1,369,936 2,126,748 - 1,031,329
(120,000) - - - - - - - - (800,000)
- - - - (146,589) - - 1,787,393 - -
10,759,175 10,236,551 10,795,838 10,024,166 9,503,614 10,539,370 10,941,727 13,368,149 8,867,983 9,476,758
77,280 60,132 154,162 81,996 61,007 55,666 86,010 151,646 189,786 236,935
199,934 425,509 - 329,705 461,994 2,013,853 912,933 1,220,938 1,476,174 663,597
50,020 17,730 42,764 (34,499) (4,712 17,856 381 7,756 (223,785) 19,443
120,000 - - - - - - - 800,000
- - - - (81,501) - - 334217 - -
447,234 503,371 196,926 377,202 436,788 2,087,375 999,324 1,714,557 1,442,175 1,719,975
3,278,810 5,089,816 5,675,754 2,356,683 2,410,774 4,522,749 3,136,137 5,154,414 1,785,155 1,363,208
2,118,957 2,432,579 1,406,350 1,605,154 1,648,108 3,187,288 1,544,208 1,424,564 443,996 860,313
5397767 S 7522395 $ 7,082,104 § 3961837 § 4058882 $ 7710037 $ 4680435 S 6578978 S 2229151 § 2223521

Source: District Comprehensive Annual Finandal Report Government-wide Statement of Adtivities, restated all years to align with the dassifiations of governmental activities.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)

General Fund
Non-spendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total General Fund

Community Services
Spedal Revenue Fund
Non-spendable
Restricted
Committed - operations
Capital Projects - Assigned
Debt Service - Assigned
Total Comm. Services

Beach
Spedal Revenue Fund
Non-spendable
Restricted
Committed - operations
Capital Projects - Assigned
Debt Service - Assigned
Total Beach

Board of Trustee action to create the Spedal Revenue, Capital Project and Debt Service Funds was effective July 1, 2016, and thus start the separate commitments and assignments.

Fiscal Year ended June 30

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
224707 $ 213462 $ 268,005 § 218623 § 237,021 $ 191,780 $ 174,157 504,077 154087 $ 143,088
- - - - - - 52,000 - 129,000 -

B B 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 - - -
2,298,079 1,648,787 1,151,988 882,664 754,000 294,887 357,734 111,697 332,687 472,686
2522786 §  1,862249 § 1819993 $ 1501287 § 1391,021 $ 886,667 $ 983,891 615,774 6157